CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025 ¥ in Crore
n Note As at As at
Parkiculars No. 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
I ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 7289.10 7467.56
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2,1 208.04 210.11
(c) Intangible assets 3 35.88 38.42
(d) Intangible assets under development 3.1 - -
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
-Equity Investment in Joint Ventures and Associates 4 11.84 11.84
-Other Investments 4.1 0.11 0.11
(ii) Loans 5 140.68 112.75
(iii) Other Financial Assets 6 0.63 0.58
(f) Income tax assets (Net) 7 57.45 28.88
(g) Other non-current assets 8 161.43 139.90
7905.16 8015.15
(2) Current assets ’
(a) Inventories 9 6493.10 7830.91
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 194.75 461.55
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 183.97 0.17
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 191.32 94.08
(iv) Loans 5 25.50 22.26
(v) Other Financial Assets 6 132.74 123.39
(c) Other current assets 8 350.20 453.04
7571.58 8985.40
(3) Assets included in disposal group held for transfer 44.1 1320.10 1102.76
TOTAL ASSETS 16796.84 18103.31
ITI EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 13 148.91 148.91
(b) Other Equity 14 7789.59 8444.05
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 158.12 1334.70
(i) Lease Liabilities 8.95 16.81
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 6.22 6.35
(b) Provisions 17 12.46 11.08
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 7 881.45 814.31
(d) Other non-current liabilities 18 210.42 19.49
1277.62 2202.74
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 2942.32 1427.05
(ii) Lease liabilities 8.04 7.34
(iii) Trade payables 20
-Total qutstandlng dues of micro and small 10.33 13.18
enterprises
-Total outstandmg_ dues of creditors other than micro 3153.98 4269.33
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 473.94 522.75
(b) Other current liabilities 18 463,93 513.96
(c) Provisions 17 513.20 535.23
7565.74 7288.84
(3) Liability included in disposal group held for transfer 44.1 14.98 18.77
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16796.84 18103.31
Material Accounting Policies, Estimates & Judgei:ients 1A & 1B
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

Zin Crore

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

‘ Particulars Note No. 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
I. Revenue from operations 21 71049.91 79272.25
II. Other income 22 43.52 13.25
III. Total Income (I + II) 71093.43 79285.50
IV. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 23 55347.69 60402.39
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 206.96 481.77
Changes in Inventories (Finished Goods and Work-In Progress) 24 855.62 (831.68)
Excise Duty ” 11693.93 12886.81
Employee benefits expense 25 464.68 546.71
Finance costs 26 244,52 223.28
Depreciation and Amortisation expense on:
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 602.95 602.31
b) Intangible Assets 3 3.44 3.32
606.39 605.63
Impairment losses / (gain) on Property, Plant & Equipment 0.32 -
Other expenses 27 1465.22 1310.72
Total Expenses (IV) 70885.33 75625.63
Profit before Excepti i
v ok eptional items and tax 208.10 3659.87
VI Exceptional Items - i
VII Profit before tax (V + VI) 208.10 3659.87
VIII Tax expense: 7
(1) Current tax (32.57) 898.89
[Includes ¥ (32.57) Crore (2024: Nil) relating to prior years]
(2) Deferred tax 67.14 49.73
IX Profit forthe year from continuing operations (VII - VIII) 173.53 2711.25
X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - =
XI Tax expense of discontinued operations - -
XI1T Profit from Discontinued operations(after tax) _ _
(X = XI)
XIII Profit for the year (IX + XII) 173.53 2711.25
XIV Other Comprehensive Income 28
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (13.24) 3.79
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 4.26 (0.98)
profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XIII + XIV)
XV (Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for 164.55 2714.06
the year)
XVI Earning per equity share:
(1) Basic (%) -~ 11.65 182.07
(2) Diluted (%) 11.65 182.07
Face Value per Equity Share (%) 10.00 10.00
Material Accounting Policies, Estimates & Judgements 1A& 1B
Accompanying notes to the Standalone financial statements 2-44
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

(a) Equity Share Capital Z in Crore
No of Equity | Subscribed, Changes in |Restated Total paid-up equity
shares of called-up and | Equity Share |balance at| Changes in | share capital balance at
% 10 each |paid-up share|Capital due to|the equity the end of the reporting
issued, capital prior period |beginning capital period
subscribed errors of during the
and fully paid reporting year
period
At 31 March 2024 148911400 148.91 - 148.91 - 148.91
At 31 March 2025 148911400 148.91 = 148.91 - 148.91
(b) Other equity
T in Crore
Reserve and Surplus
Securities Insurance Capital Capital Retained General Total
Premium Reserve Redemption reserve earnings reserve
reserve
At 01 April 2023 250.04 15.00 1,000.00 0.09 402.06 4464.86 6132.05
Profit for the Year - 5 E - 2711.25 - 2711.25
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of gain or loss on defined benefit - - - N & 2.81 2.81
plan
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2711,25 2.81 2714.06
Appropriation towards insurance reserve = 14.00 = - (14.00) = -
Appropriation towards Final Dividend # - = - (402.06) - (402.06)
Transfer to General Reserve - - - - (1878.24) 1,878.24 -
At 31 March 2024 250.04 29.00 1000.00 0.09 819.01 6345.91 8444.05
% in Crore
Reserve and Surplus
Securities Insurance Capital Capital Retained General Total
Premium Reserve Redemption reserve earnings reserve
reserve
At 01 April 2024 250.04 29.00 1000.00 0.09 819,01 6345.91 8444.05
Profit for the Year - = - = £73.53 = 173.53
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of gain or loss on defined benefit - - - - - (8.98) (8.98)
plan
Total comprehensive income - = - = 173.53 (8.98) 164.55
Appropriation towards insurance reserve 11.00 - (11.00) = -
Appropriation towards Final Dividend - - - - (819.01) - (819.01)
Transfer to General Reserve - - - - (88.07) 88.07 -
At 31 March 2025 250.04 40.00 1000.00 0.09 74.46 6425.00 7789.59

As per our attached Report of even date

For R.G.N. Price & Co
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(FR 02785S)

il (9 o
K. Venk; rishnan (H. Shankar) (Rohi (P.Shankar)
Partner Managing Director Company Secretary
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CHENNAE PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

¥ in Crore
particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1 Profit Before Tax 208.1i0 3659.87
2 Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 602.95 602,31
Impairment losses / {gain) on Property, Plant & Equipment 0.32 -
Unclaimed / Unspent liabilities written back (0.56) {1.24}
Loss/(gain} on dispasal of property, plant and equipments (net) 21.95 5.08
Amortisation on intangibie assets 3.44 3.32
Amortisation of Government Grants (8.39) {0.62}
Pravision for Probable Contingencies (net) 12.08 9.30
Provision for Capitaj work-in-progress / Doubtful Debts written back - i.30
Provision for Doubtful Debts, Advances and Claims - 1,54
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans through OCI (13.24) 3.79
Provision for Stores {net) .72 0.38
Interest income (17.42) (10.43)
Finance costs 244.52 223.28
Dividend Income {18.28) (2.78)
3 oOperating Profit before Working Capital Changes (1+2} 1036,20 4495.10
4 Change in Working Capital:
{Excluding Cash & Cash equivalents)
Trade Receivables & Other receivables 215.20 (452,75)
Inventories 1337.09 {1857.70)
Trade and Other Payables (1223,83) 1415.42
Provisions (20.65) 12,67
Change in Working Capital 307.91 (882.36)
5 Cash Generated From Operations (3+4) 1344.11 3612.74
6 Less: Taxes paid {8.26) 918.49
7 MNet €Cash Flow from Operating Activities (5-6) 1352.37 2694.25
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment / Transfer of 0.30 0.27
Assets ' )
(P:L\:\;;Q?::S:I rlzer::)g?;‘;yérsfsr;grand equipment & intangible Assets / (685.49) (602.68)
Enterest income received 17.42 10.43
Dividend income on investments 18.28 2,78
Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Investing Activities: {649.49} (589,20}
C Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings 370.40 -
Repayments of Long-Term Borrowlngs (including lease lability) (838.29) (57.06)
Proceeds from/(Repayments of) Short-Term Borrowings 1002.54 {1424.29)
Interest paid (235.12) (222.70)
Dividends paid (815.01) (402.06)
Net Cash Generated/{Used} from Financing Activities: (519.08) {2106.11)
D Net Change in Cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 183.80 (1.06)
BE-1 Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year 183.97 0.17
E-2 Cash & cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 0.17 1.23
NET CHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (E 1- E 2} 183,80 {1.06)
Notes:

1. Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using Indirect method as per Indian Accounting Standard -7 Statement of Cash Flows .




Reconciliation between opening and closing balances of financial liabilites with the net cash generated /(Used) from financing activities:

% in Crore
Financial Liabilities Non-cash Changes
As at Caski Flsvie F— Interest Foreign As at
31.03.2023 s Accrued but exchange 31.03.2024
Liability
not due _movement
Borrowings (Including lease liabilities) 4259.60 (1580.33) 7.05 99.58 - 2785.90
Non-cash Changes
b 2 S s S As at Interest Foreign As at
Financlal Lisbilities 31.03.2024 Cash.Flow !.ea.sle Accrued but exchange 31.03.2025
Liability
not due movement
Borrowings (Including lease liabilities) 2785.90 248.83 16.36 66.34 - 3117.43
As per our attached Report of even date
For R.G.N. Price & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartgrad Accountants
(FRN: 85S)
g /14 Lok ok
K. Venka ishnan (H. Shankar) (Rohit Kumar Agrawala) . (P.Shankar)
Partner Managing Director Director (Financ Company Secretary
Membership No, 208591 DIN - 08845247 DIN—= 1004896 ACS -7624

Place : Chennai
Date : 25-Apr-2025
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE-1A: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
i. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The standalone financial statements of "Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited” {“the Company”
or “CPCL"} are for the year ended March 31, 2025.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. Its shares are listed
on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at 536, Anna Salai, Teynampet, Chennai- 600018. (CIN -
L40101TN1965GCI005389)

CPCL is in the business of refining crude oil to produce & supply various petroleum products.

The standalone financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the Board of Directors passed in its meeting held on April 25, 2025.

1. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and in accordance with the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules and other
relevant provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, as amended from time to time, and to the
extent applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and lizbilities which have been measured at fair value:
» Derivative financial instruments,
¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer serial no. 15 of material
accounting policies regarding financial instruments) and
¢ Plan assets related to employee benefits (refer serial no. 12 of material accounting policies
regarding employee benefits)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is Company’s presentation and
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Crores {up to two decimals) except
when otherwise indicated.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets

Property, Piant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses {if any), except freehold land which are carried
at historical cost.




2.1.2.

2.1.3.

2.1.4.

2.1.5.

2.2,

2.2.1.
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2.2.3.

2.3,

2.3.1.

2.3.2.

2.3.3.

Technical know-how / license fee relating to plants/facilities and specific software that are integral
part of the related hardware are capitalized as part of cost of the underlying asset.

Spare Parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends
to use these for a period exceeding 12 months.

Environment responsibility related obligations directly attributable to projects is recognized as
project cost on the basis of progress of project or on actual incurrence, whichever is higher.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
PPE recognized as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value
as the deemed cost of the PPE.

Capital Work in Progress {CWIP)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction {including a project} is carried at cost under
CWIP.

Construction Period Expenses

Revenue expenses exclusively attributable to projects incurred during construction period are
capitalized. However, such expenses in respect of capital facilities being executed along with the
production/operations simultanecusly and where the expenses are not attributable exclusively are
charged to revenue,

Borrowing cost incurred during construction period on loans specifically borrowed and utilized for
projects is capitalized on quarterly basis up to the date of capitalization.

Borrowing cost, if any, incurred on General Borrowings used for projects is capitalized at the other
than those mentioned above weighted average cost. The amount of such borrowings is determined
on quarterly basis after setting off the amount of internal accruals.

Capital Stores

Capital Stores are valued at weighted average cost. Impairment is recognized for likely diminution
in value, wherever required.

Intangible Assets & Amortisation

Technical know-how / license fee relating to production process and process design are recognized
as Intangible Assets and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the underlying plant/
facility.

Cost incurred on computer software/licenses purchased/developed resulting in future economic
benefits, other than specific software that are integral part of the related hardware, are capitalized
as Intangible Asset and amortised over a period of three years beginning from the month in which
such software/ licenses are capitalized. However, where such computer software/ license is under
development or is not yet ready for its intended use, accumulated cost incurred on such items are
accounted as “Intangible Assets Under Development”,

Right of ways with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment annually at
the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine




234,

2.3.5.

2.3.6.

23.7.

2.4,

2.4.1.

2.4.2.

2.4.3.

2.4.4,

whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible Assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
Intangible Assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. '

intangible Assets are amortised over the useful life on straight line basis and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the Intangible Asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible Asset are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
Intangible Assets recognized as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets.

Amortisation is charged pro-rata on monthly basis on assets, from/upto the month of
capitalization/ sale, disposal/ or earmarked for disposal.

Depreciation

Cost of PPE {net of residual value} excluding freehold land is depreciated on straight-fine method
as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1} to the Act except in case of the following assets:

A. Useful life based on technical assessment

e 25 years for solar power plant
¢ [n other cases, like Spare Parts etc. {2-30 years)

B. In case of immovahle assets constructed on leasehold [and, useful life as per Schedule-Il to the
Act or lease period of land {including renewable/ likely renewable period}, whichever is lower,
and

The Company depreciates components of the main asset that are significant in value and have
different useful lives as compared to the main asset separately. The Company depreciates spares
over the life of the spare from the date it is available for use.

Depreciation is charged pro-rata on monthly basis on assets, from/up to the month of
capitalization/ sale, disposal/ or classified to Asset held for disposal.

Residual value is determined considering past experience and generally the same is between 0 to
5% of cost of assets except:
e incase of catalyst with noble metal content, residual value is considered based on the cost
of metal content

PPE costing upto X 5,000/- per item are depreciated fully in the year of capitalization. Further,
spares, components like catalyst excluding noble metal content and major overhaul/ inspection are
also depreciated fully over their respective useful life.




2.4.5.

3.1

3.1.1.

3.1.2

3.1.3.

3.2

321

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Leases as Lessee {Assets taken on lease)

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value
of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made.

Right-of-use Assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use (ROU) assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
Property, Plant and Equipment {i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term or another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the
lessee’s benefit. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered of low value and is not intended for sublease.

Leases as Lessor (assets given on lease)

When the company acts as lessor, it determines at the commencement of the lease whether it is a
finance lease or an operating lease. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the benefit derived from the asset given on lease.

All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment in
the lease. Principal component of the lease receipts is adjusted against outstanding receivables and




6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

interest income is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease to the net
investment.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use,
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. in determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation muitiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of 15 years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the
fifteenth year. To estimate cash flow projections heyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of the qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of such asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended when
active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted other than on temporary basis
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during such extended periods. All other borrowing
costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the same are
incurred.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at spot exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies (such as cash, receivables, payables etc.)
outstanding at the end of reporting period, are translated at exchange rates prevailing on that date.

MNon-monetary items denominated in foreign currency, (such as PPE, intangible assets, equity
investments, capital/ revenue advances other than expected to be settled in cash etc.) are
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or
settlement are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss either under the head foreign
exchange fluctuation or interest cost to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs
as the case may be,




7.1
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7.1.2.

7.2,

7.2.1.

7.2.2,

7.3,

7.3.1.

7.3.2.

8.1.

8.2.

8.2.1.

8.2.2.

Inventories

Raw Materials & Stock-in-Process

Raw materials including crude oil are valued at cost determined on weighted average basis and net
realisable value, whichever is lower. Stock in Process is valued at raw materials cost-plus processing
cost as applicable and net realisable value, whichever is lower. Crude oil in Transit is valued at cost

and net realisable value, whichever is lower,

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges,
recognized in OCl, in respect of the purchases of raw materials.

Finished Products and Stock-in-Trade

Finished Products and Stock in Trade are valued at cost determined on ‘First in First Qut’ basis and
net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost of Finished Products internally produced is
determined based on raw materials cost and processing cost.

Imported products in transit are valued at cost and net realisable value whichever is ower.

Stores and Spares

Stores and Spares {including Chemicals) are valued at weighted average cost. In case of declared
surplus/obsolete stores and spares, provision is made for likely loss on sale/disposal and charged
to revenue. Further, provision is made to the extent of 97 per cent of the value of non-moving
inventory of stores and spares (excluding maintenance, repair & operation items, pumps and
compressors) which have not moved for six years and above.

Stores and Spares in transit are valued at cost.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic henefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Show-cause notices issued by various Government Authorities are generally not considered as
obligations. When the demand notices are raised against such show cause notices and are disputed
by the Company, these are classified as disputed obligations.

The treatment in respect of disputed obligations is as under:

a) a provision is recognized in respect of present obligations where the outflow of resources is
probable as per 8.1 above.




8.2.3.

8.2.4.

9.1,

9.2.

9.3,

9.4,

b} all other cases are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the possibility of outflow of
resources is remote.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities/assets are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/
independent experts and reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reflect the current management
estimate.

REVENUE
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because
it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. in
determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the Company considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration
and consideration payable to the customaer (if any).

Revenue from the sale of petroleum products, petrochemical products, Crude and gas are
recognized at a point in time, generally upon delivery of the products

The Company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account,
This is for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of
production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty
flows to the Company on its own account, revenue includes excise duty.

However, Sales Tax/ Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Value Added Tax (VAT) is not received by
the company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the product by the
seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Variable consideration

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the guantity of products
purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset
against amounts payable by the customer. The volume rebates/ cash discount give rise to variable
consideration.

Claims (including interest on outstanding claims) are recognized at cost when there is reasonable
certainty regarding its ultimate collection. Insurance claims are recognised based on acceptance.

Claims on Petroleum Planning and Analysis Cell (Formerly known as Qil Coordination Committee) /
Government arising on account of erstwhile Administered Pricing Mechanism / notified schemes




10.

11.

11.1.

11.2.

11.2.1.

11.2.2.

12,

12.1.

12.2.

are booked on acceptance in principle thereof. Such claims and provisions are booked on the basis
of available instructions /clarifications subject to final adjustment as per separate audit.

Excise Duty

Excise duty is accounted on the basis of both, payments made in respect of goods cleared and
provision made for goods lying in stock. Value of stock includes excise duty payable / paid on
finished goods, wherever applicable.

Taxes on income

Current Income Tax

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at

the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit

. or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates

positions taken in the tax returns with respect to applicable tax regulations which are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on tax rates (and tax laws}
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized cutside profit or oss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Employee Benefits
Short Term Benefits:

Short Term Employee Benefits are accounted for in the statement of Profit and Loss for the period
during which the services have been rendered.

Post-Employment Benefits and Other Long Term Employee Benefits:

The Company’s contribution to the Provident Fund is remitted to separate trusts established for
this purpose based on a fixed percentage of the eligible employee’s salary and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss/CWIP, Shortfall, if any, in the fund assets, based on the Government
specified minimum rate of return, is made good by the Company and charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss/CWIP.

The Company operates defined benefit plans for Gratuity, Post-Retirement Medical Benefits. The
cost of providing such defined benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method of
actuarial valuation made at the end of the year. Out of these plans, Gratuity and Post-Retirement
Medical Benefits are administered through respective Trusts.
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13.2.
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Obligations on other long term employee benefits viz leave encashment and Long Service Awards
are provided using the projected unit credit method of actuarial valuation made at the end of the
year. Out of these obligations, leave encashment obligations are funded through qualifying
insurance palicies made with insurance companies.

The Company also operates a defined contribution scheme for Pension benefits for its employees
and the contribution is remitted to a separate Trust/Corporate NPS.

Remeasurements:

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets {excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately
in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other
Comprehensive Income (OCl} in the period in which it occurs. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Remeasurements in respect of other long-term benefits are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Government Grants
Grant relating to Assets (Capital Grants)

In case of grants relating to depreciable assets, the cost of the asset is shown at gross value and
grant thereon is treated as Deferred income which are recognized as "Other Operating Revenues”
usually in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period and in the proportion in which
depreciation is charged.

Grant related to Income (Revenue Grants)

Revenue grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the entity recognizes as expenses the related cost for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

The Company has treated waiver of duty under EPCG (Export Promotion Capital Goods) Scheme
as revenue grant as the condition of meeting the export obligations is a primary condition of
availing the grant as per the EPCG Scheme. The above grant is set up by recording the assets at
gross value and corresponding grant amount as deferred income. Such grant is recognized
recognized in “Other Operating Revenues” in proportion of export obligations actually fulfilled
during the accounting period.

Revenue grants are generally recorded under “Gther Operating Revenues”, except some grants

which are netted off with the related expense.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate or NIL interest rate, the effect of this
favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized
and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the
initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The [oan is subsequently measured as
per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities. Classification of the grant is made
considering the terms and condition of the grant i.e. whether grants relates to assets or otherwise.

Current Versus Non-Current Classification




15.

The company uses twelve months period for determining current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Financial Instruments

15.1. Financial Assets

15.1.1.

15.1.2.

a)

b}

Initial recognition and measurement

All Financial Assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition
of the Financial Asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subseguent measurement, Financial Assets are classified in four categories:
e Financial Assets at amortised cost
o Debt Instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVTOCI)
e Equity Instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
s Financial Assets and derivatives at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount ocutstanding.

Financial Assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acguisition and fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit
or loss. Apart from the same, any income or expense arising from remeasurement of financial
assets measured at amortised cost, in accordance with Ind AS 109, is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt Instrument at FYTOCI

A ‘Debt Instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

Debt Instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair Value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive




15.1.3.

15.1.4.

15.1.5.

Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from the Equity to the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI Debt Instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Equity Instrument
Equity Investments at FVTOCI (Other than Joint Ventures and Associates)

All such equity investments are measured at fair value and the Company has made an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in Other Comprehensive Income.

There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of
investments.

Equity Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates at cost

investments in Joint Ventures and Associates are accounted for at cost in the financial statements
and the same are tested for impairment in case of any indication of impairment.

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company’s right to
receive dividend is established.

Debt Instruments and Derivatives at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for Debt Instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.Debt
Instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income on such instruments has been
presented under interest income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company applies Expected Credit Loss {ECL} model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the financial Assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
Receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
abserved default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
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15.2.1.

15.2.2.

looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates
provision on trade receivables at the reporting date.

General Approach

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-months
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of liabilities subsequently
measured at amortised cost, they are measured net of directly attributable transaction cost. In case
of Financial Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities are recognized immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

The Company’s Financial Liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
A. Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category” also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
B. Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Financial Liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying

amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the




Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

16. Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank overdraft (negative balance in Account) is shown under short term
borrowings under Financial Liabilities & Positive balance in that account is shown in Cash & Cash
Equivalents.

i, NEW STANDARDS/ AMENDMENTS AND OTHER CHANGES EFFECTIVE APRIL 1,2024 OR THEREAFTER

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified new standard vide Notification G.5.R. 492 (E) dated
12.08.2024 in respect of Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts and certain amendments to the existing
standard — Ind AS 116 vide Notification G.5.R. 554(E} dated 09.09.2024, which will be applicable
from April 1, 2024, as below:

a.

Ind AS 116: Leases

A new paragraph, 102A, has been added to Ind AS 116, for right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities arising from sale and leaseback transactions involving the treatment of leaseback
transactions.

Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts

A new accounting standard, Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts, has been introduced to
replace Ind AS 104,— Insurance Contracts. Additionally, amendments have been made to ind
AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, Ind AS- 103, Business
Combinations, Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, Ind
AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, ind AS 109, Financial Instruments and Ind AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers to align them with Ind AS 117,

The impact of the above amendments would not be applicable to CPCL, since there are no such
transactions involved in CPCL.

IV. NEW STANDARDS/ AMENDMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
During the year, no new standard or modifications in existing standards have been notified which
will be applicabtle from April 1, 2025, or thereafter.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 1B : SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTICNS

The preparation of the company’s financial statemenis requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. These include recognition and measurement of financial
instruments, estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets,
valuation of inventories, measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units, estimated quantities of noble
metals, measurement of employee benefits, actuarial assumptions, provisions etc.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company continually evaluates these estimates
and assumptions based on the most recently available information. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the mest significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Materiality

Ind AS requires assessment of materiality by the Company for accounting and disclosure of various transactions in the
financial statements. Accordingly, the Company assesses materiality limits for various items for accounting and
disclosures and follows on a consistent basis. Overall materiality is also assessed based on various financial parameters
such as Gross Block of assets, Net Block of Assets, Total Assets, Revenue and Profit Before Tax. The materiality limits
are reviewed and approved by the management.O]

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractual, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one
or more uncertain future events cccur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quanturm, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome
of future events,

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumpticns about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans / Other Long term employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefit plans are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. The management considers the interest rates of
government securities based on expected settlement period of various plans,

Further details about varicus employee benefit obligations are given in Note 32.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow (DCF) model based on level-2 and level-3 inputs. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values,
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as price estimates, volume estimates, rate estimates etc. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also refer Note-35 for
further disclosures of estimates and assumptions,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, The fair value less cost of disposal used to
determine the recoverable amounts of the impaired assets are not based on observable market data, rather,
management’s best estimates.

The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows do not include impact of significant future
investments that may enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The results of impairment test are
sensitive to changes in key judgements, such as changes in commaodity prices, future changes in alternate use of assets
etc, which could result in increase or decrease of the recoverable amounts and result in additional impairment charges
or recovery of impairment charged. (Refer Note 44,2)

Income Taxes

The Company uses estimates and judogements based on the relevant facts, circumstances; present and past experience,
rulings, and new pronouncemenis while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised.




CHENNAI PEVROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

STANDALOME FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note — 2 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Current Year: TinCrora
Dralnage,
Land Bulldings, Plant and Qffice Transport Furniture Rallway Sewage
- - 4 Tot:
Particulars Land ~ Freehold Leasehold Roads etc. quip t | Equip x Equip and Fixtures | Sidings ar;i:lpa;;er ROU assets ‘otal
System
Hote: A Rote: C Note: B
Gross Block as at 1st April 2024 49.25 5,92 206.43 10835.07 84,44 12.37 9.36 2.65 20.30 $31.80 1126135
g ";"““""S during the Year {Note: 178 - 12.51 403.05 17.46 2.78 2.08 - .23 7.94 455.81
b
$ Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to
g Held for Sale/ - - {2.31) {91.00} (5.23) (2.56) (0.63) - (0.19) {9.84) {111.76}
6 ReclassHications/Revaluation
Gross Block as at
31st March 2025 51.63 5.92 215.63 1115132 98,65 12,59 10.B1 2.65 28.34 4970 11625.44
L |Depreciation and Amartisation as &t - 0 71.67 46.20 5.96/ 3.98 0.12 8.88 30,95 3721.68
£ |istaprit 2024 .63 52.89 35715 . . . . X . .
=
&
< |Depreciation and  Amortisation
= - .07 2.4 70.44 13,24 1.1 .88 0,17 0.95 9.60 603.63
£ |during the Year (Note F) 0.0 2 570 3 & 0.8
% DIsposals/ Deductions/ Transfers ta
< |Held for Sale/ - - {0.44) (68.04) {4.03) (2.43) (0.32) - (0.0E) (6.12) (81.44)
g Reclassifications/Revaluation
E Tatal Depreciatian and
u  |Amortisation upto - 0,70 £9,57 403,97 55,91 4,69 4.54 0.29 9.77 35.43 4243.87
£ |31st March 2025
Q
£
< |Total Impalrment Loss as at Ist
- - ¥ . - . . - 27 - 3
g Aorél 2024 10.82 81.06 o2 92,15
= |Impairment Loss during the Year . . . _ _ _ . - _
g |euote: 0} 0.32 0.32
D [imparment loss revarsed during R _ _ . R R _ - - . N
E the Year
0 |Total Impalrment Loss upto - - . - - - _
31st March 2025 10.82 81.38 0.27 o2.47
[ 5 AS AT 31st March 2025 51.03 S.22 146.24 G995.77 40.74 7.90 §.27 2,36 18.30 15.27 7289,10
Q
= = |AS AT 31st March 2024 49,25 5.29 142.72 7186.44 37.74 6,41 538 2,53 11.15 20.65 7467.56 .
Previous Year: ¥inCrore
Brainaga,
Particul Land ~ Ereehold Land - Buildings, Plant and Office Transport Furniture Railway a::v::agt‘:r ROV assets Tatal
articulars Leasehold Rpads etc. Equip! Equ and Fixtures | Sidings Supply
System
Gross Block as at 1st Aprif 2023 49.25 5.92 200.14 10417.84 5B.69 11.34 8.71 - 20,30 44.53 10816.72
B [apuens during the Year  {fote : - - 7.77 445,60 31.24 103 1.68 2.55 - 7.07 497.04
=1
m Disposals/ Deductlons/ Transfers to
8 [Hetd for Saley - - (1.48) (24.37) (5.49) - {1.03} - - - (32.37}
5 Reclassifications/Revaluation
Gross Block as at
215t Mareh 2024 49.25 5.92 206.43 10839.07 84.44 12.37 9.36 2.65 20.30 51.50 11281.39
Depreciation and Amortisation as at - 0.56 47.71 3,003.84 34.64 4.88 389 - 7.58 23.38 312668
1st Aoril 2623
o
£ [Depreciation and  Amartisation - 0.07 6.2 570.75 16.63 1.08 0.80 0.12 0.50 7.57 604.13
< [during the Year:
z
g Disposals/ Deductions! Transfers to
% Held for Salef - - {1.03) (3.12) (4.57) - {0.71) - - - (9.43)
= 5 Reclassifications/Rovaluation
EZ) E Total Pepreciation and
E £ JAmortisation upto w 0.63 52.89 3571.57 46.70 5.96 3.98 0.52 8.88 30495 372168
£ & | 31st March 2024
O = {Total Impairment Loss as at 1st] = B ~ _ _ _ 7 i 3,66
=3 April 2023 10,82 B2.57 0.2 93,
{3 impairment Loss during the Year . _ . - . . . . .
g (Note: D) (1.51) {1.51)
B Jimpalrment loss reversed during _ _ . . _ . _ . . . .
the Year
Total Impairment Loss upto . . N . . . _
a1 areh 2024 10.82 81.06 0.27 92.15
i ﬁ AS AT 31st March 2024 49.25 5.29 142,72 7186.44 37.74 6.41 538 2.53 1115 20,65 7467.56
Z0
@ |AS AT 31st March 2623 44.25 5.36 141,61 7331.33 24,05 6,46 4.82 - 12.05 21,15 7596.08|
Motes :
Al

The cest of Jand inckides provisional payments towards cost, compensation, and cther accounts for which detalled actounts are yet to be recelved from the authorities concerned.
IPending decision of the Governmant/Court, addltional compensation, if any, payable 1o the fand owners and the Government for certaln fands acquired, is not quantifiable, and hence not considered.

1H) Refer Note 44.1

B. The cost of assets includes EPCG benefit {net of GST ITC), net of VAT CREDIT/CENVAT/GST ITC wherever applicable

€. Includes 5/24 share of total cost of the Railway Siding jointly owned by the Company afong with Madras Fertilizers Limited, Madras Petrochern Limited, Steel Authority of Indiz Limited and Rashtriya Ispat Nigam
Limited. Net blogk of Railway Sidings « 2 0.003 Crere (2024 : ¥ 0,003 Crore)

D, Pertzins to Cauvery Basin Refinery (refer Note 44.2)

E. AddItions to Gross Black Includes ;

flant and Equipment
Rallveay Sidings

Total

TinCrore
Asset Particulars Borrowing Cost
31-Mar-25 31-Har-24
- 23.39
- 0.23
- 23.62

F, Depreciation and amortisation during the year includes Construction period expenses of Rs5.0.68 Cr (2024: Rs. 0.35 Cr) and depraciation attributable to the extent of reversal of impairment loss of Rs. NI (2024: 1,47

Cr)

G, For details regarding to hypothecation/charge on PPE may be referred to note.15
H. For further detalls regarding to ROU assets refer Note.33 related to leases.

Detalls of assets given an operating lease included in the Property, Plant

Accumulated

and Equipment ;

¥ in Crore

Accumulated | W.D.V as at | W.D.V as at
Assot Particulars G:.oss Black as at | Depreciation Impalrment March March
st April 2024 & I 31,2025 31,2024
Amartisation o5% * '
iand 5.27 - - 5.27 5.32
Bulldinas 0.29 0.03 0.7 0.08 017
Plant and Equipment 3.35 1.51 - 1.84 6.16
Totak 8.91 1.54 0.17 2.20 11.65




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 2.1 : CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

¥ in Crore
o Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Construction Work in Progress - Property, Plant & Equipment
(Including unallocated capital expenditure, materials at site)
Balance as at beginning of the year 191.79 278.22
Add: Additions during the year 400.09 322.55
Less: Allocated / Adjusted during the year 280.12 257.76
Less: Transfer to disposal group held for transfer A 118.19 151.22
193.57 191.79
2 Capital stores balance as at beginning of the year 10.41 14,19
Add: Additions during the year 82.32 74.21
Less: Allocated / Adjusted during the year 77.99 77.99
Capital stores 14.74 10.41
3 Capital Goods in Transit 1.03 9.21
4 Construction Period Expenses pending allocation:
Balance as at beginning of the vear - 39.01
Net expenditure during the year (Note -"2.2"}) 90.05 82.25
) 90.05 121.26
Less: Allocated / Adjusted during the year - 43.18
90.05 78.08
Less: Transfer to disposal group held for transfer A 90.05 78.08
209.34 211.41
Less : Provision for capital losses (1.30) (1.30)
TOTAL B 208.04 210.11

Notes :
A Refer Note - 44,1, 8,B & 26.A

B The cost of assets includes EPCG benefit (net of GST ITC), net of VAT CREDIT/CENVAT/GST ITC wherever applicable

Note — 2,2 : CONSTRUCTION PERIOD EXPENSES(NET) DURING THE YEAR

. ¥ in Crore
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
i1 Employee Benefit expenses 21.46 24.27
2 pPower & Fuel - 0.03
3 Finance Cost -CBRPL 60.49 47.78
4 Others (including travelling, maintenance 10.17
expenses etc. ) 8.10 ’
Net Expenditure during the year 90.05 82.25

Specific barrowings eligible for capitalisation (Rate in %)

5.44% to 5.78%

5.44% to 5.78%




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current Year : ¥ in Crore
- Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work-In-Progress Less than 1 2.3 More than
vear 1-2years | \oars 3 years Total
Projects in progress 80.77 105,45 20.15 2.97 209.34
Previous Year : E in Crore
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work-In-Progress Less than 1 2-3 More than
year -2 years years 3 years Total
Projects in progress 186.18 18.49 6.17 0.57 211.41

Note: No Project activity is under suspension

Capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue compared to its original plan
Current Year :

To be completed in
cwip Less thanl 2-3 More than

1-2 years

year years 3 years

RESID - Truck Loading System 28.59 - - “
Fire water headers upgradation 36.33 - - -
FCCU & NHT CRU PLC's replacement 11.83
Others 43.24 - - -
Total 119.99 - - -

Previous Year @

To be completed in

CWIP -,

R e A
RESID - TRUCK LOADING SYSTEM 36,31 - - -
Pharma grade Hexane production 47,39 - - -
Others ' 17.26 - - -
Total 100.95 - - -

Note: No cost overdue in above projects




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note - 3 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(1) Intangible assets with definite useful life

Current Year: Zin Crore
. Computer Technical Know-
Particulars Software How and lLicenses Total
5 Gross Block as at 1st April 2024 5.37 52.87 58.24
@]
@ Additions during the Year 1.09 - 1.09
9 Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/ _ . _
e Reclassifications
O Gross Block as at[31st March 2025 6.46 52.87 59.33
Amortisation as at st April 2024 3.22 16.60 i9.82
% — Amortisation during the Year (Note : A) 1.03 2.60 3.63
< = Bisposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/ . ) _
% E Reclassifications
E % Total and Amortisation upto 31st March 2025 4.25 19.20 23.45
n =
lﬂ? E::' Total Impairment Loss as at 1st April 2024 - - -
g z Impairment Loss during the Year - - -
<t Impairment loss reversed during the Year - - -
Total Impairment Loss upto 31st March 2025 - - -
Iy f‘) AS AT 31st March 2025 2,21 33.67 35.88
= Q
@ AS AT 31st March 2024 2.13 36.27 3B.42
Previous Year: Tin Crore
- Computer Technical Know-
Particulars Software How and Licenses Total
(55 Gross Block as at 1st April 2023 4.00 52.87 56.87
9 Additions during the Year 1.41 - 1.41
m
g Disposa.lgf peductions/ Transfers to Heid for Sale/ (0.04) _ (0.04)
8 Reclassifications
U] Gross Block as at Slist March 2024 5.37 52.87 58.24
Amortisation as at 1st April 2023 2.41 13.99 16.40
Amortisation during the Year 0.85 2.61 3.46
[a) . .
Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/
= — . = .
<L Reclassifications (0.04) (0.04)
=
o '2 Total and Amortisation upto 31st March 2024 3.22 16.60 19,82
= i0
‘3 E Total Impairment Loss as at 1st April 2023 - - -
l‘_ L]
DO: § Impairment Loss during the Year - - -
E B Impairment foss reversed during the Year - - -
Total Impairment Loss upto 31st March 2024 - - -
G 5 AS AT 31st March 2024 2,15 36.27 38.42
=9
0 AS AT 31st March 2023 1.59 38.88 40.47
Note:

A. Amortisation during the year includes construction period expenses of Rs. 0.19 Cr (2024: Rs. 0.14 Cr)




{2) Intangible assets with indefinite useful life

Current year: Zin Crore
Right of Way
5 Gross Block as at 1st April 2024 0.27
) Additions during the Year -
o
w Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/
8 Reclassifications -
?_é Gross Block as at31st March 2025 0.27
% = Total Impairment Loss as at 1st April 2024 0.27
—_ = b
= A % Impairment Loss during the Year -
by —
= oL
E < 2~ |Impairment loss reversed during the Year -
[N
2 =
E = Total Impairment Loss upto 31ist March 2025 0.27
oS AS AT 31st March 2025 -
=0
d
o0 AS AT 31st March 2024 -
Previous year: Zin Crore
Particulars Right of Way
5 Gross Block as at 1st April 2023 0.27
g Additions during the Year -
o
" Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/ -
8 Reclassifications
% Gross Block as at Biist March 2024 0.27
5 E Total Impairment Loss as at ist April 2023 0.27
2 A E Impairment Loss during the Year -
Nzrg
E E Z ™ [Impairment loss reversed during the Year -
o,
Q =
§ = Total Impairment Loss upto 31st March 2024 0.27
¥
IZE: S AS AT 31st March 2024 -
wd
m AS AT 31st March 2023 -
Note :

(A) Pertains to

Cauvery Basin Refinery (refer Note 44.2)

Range of remaining period of Amortisation as on March 31, 2025 is as below:

Particulars 0 to 2 years 3 to 5 years Above 5 years Total
Computer 0.74 1.45 - 2.19
Software
Technical
know-how - 3.93 29.76 33.69

and Licenses
Total 0.74 5.38 29.76 35.88

Ranae of remaining period of Amortisation as on March 31, 2024 is as below:

Particulars 0 to 2 years 3 to 5 years Above 5 years Yotal
Computer 0.41 1.74 - 2.15
Software
Technical
know-how - - 36.27 36.27

and Licenses
Total 0.4% 1.74 36.27 38.42




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALCNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note — 3.1 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Zin Crore
Particulars 31i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Work in Progress - Intangible Asset:
Balance as at beginning of the year - _
Add: Net expenditure during the
year - 0,23
Less: Transfer to Asset held for A
transfer - 0.23
TOTAL - -
Note :
A. Refer Note 44,1
Current Year : ¥ in Crore
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Intangible Assets Under
Development Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
NIL
Previcus Year : Z in Crore
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Intangible Assets Under
Less than 1 More than
Development year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
NIL

Note:
No Project activity is under suspension

There has been no cost / Time over run in respect of the above




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 4 : EQUITY INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

¥ in Crore
‘s Face Value Non-current
o Particulars per share
: ) 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24
I |Non-Current Investments in equity shares:
2)|In Joint Venture Companies (At cost):
Unquoted:
i} Indian Additives Ltd. 100 11,83 11.83
1183401 (2024: 1183401) Equity Shares fully
paid
ii) Nationa| Aromatics and Petrochemical 10 0.03 0.03
Corporation Limited
25000 {2024: 25000) Equity Shares fully paid
Less: Impairment in value of investment A 0.03 0.03
b)|In Associates (At cost):
Unguoted:
i} Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Lkd 10 0.0%1 .01
(CBRPL)
B
12500 (2024 12500) Equity Share fully paid
TOTAL 11.84 11.84
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 11.87 11.87
Aggregate amount of impairment ip value of 0.03 0.03
investments
Note — 4,1 : OTHER INVESTMENTS
S| Face Value Non-current
Nc; Particulars per share
) 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24
I |Other Investments:
Investments at fair value through OCI (fully
paid):
a)iBiotech Consortium India Ltd 10 0.10 g.10
100000 {2024 100000) Equity Shares fully paid
b)|MRL Industrial Cooperative Service Society Ltd 10 0.01 0.01
9000 (2024: 9000) Shares fully paid
TOTAL C 0,11 0.11
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 0.11 0.11

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of

investments

Note :
A National Aromatics and Petrochemical Corporation Limited is not operationat.

B
Cc

Refer Note 44.1
fair Value approximates carrying value
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATEON LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 9 : INVENTORIES

Z in Crore
iln Particulars 31-Mar-25 3i-Mar-24
1 InHand:
a. Stores, Spares etc. 505.44 354,41
Less : Provision for Losses 44,20 43.48
461.24 310.93
b. Raw Materials 2912.85 2845.81
C. Finished Products 1603.95 2309.53
d. Stock in Process 856.04 1066.08
5834.08 6476.35
2 In Transit:
a. Stores & Spares etc, 11.52 4.98
b. Raw Materials 647.50 1349.58
659.02 1354.56
TOTAL 6493.10 7830.91
Amount of write down of inventorie_s te NRV and recegnised as 26.96 8.31

expense

Valuation of Inventories are done as per sl. no.7 of Material accounting policies (Note-1A).




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 10 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

Zin Crore
Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
a) From Related Parties
] Considered Good - Unsecured A 113,91 136.05
b} From Others
i) Considered Good -Unsecured B0.84 325.50
194.75 461.55
TOTAL a8 194.75 461,55

Motes :

Includes receivables from Indian Oif Corporation Lid,, the holding company ¥ 113.9 Crore (2024: ¥ 135.8 Crore) and receivables from Indian Additives Limited,

Jeint Venture Company 2 0.01 Crore (2024: 0.26 ).

B  Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilties:

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

Particulars

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet

Gross Amount

Gross Amounts set off in
the balance sheet

Net Amounts
presented in the
balance sheet

31-03-2025

Financial Assets

Trade receivables 6074.87 5880.12 194.75
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 9044.43 5880.12 3164.31
31-03-2024
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 3696.05 3234.50 461,55
Financial Liabilities
Trade Pavables 7517.,01 3234.50 4282,51
Offsetting Arrangements
The Trade receivables and payables to the extent being settled on net basis with Indian Oil Corporation Limited have been offset.
Trade receivables - Ageing
Current Year :
. Less than 6 | 6 months -1 More than 3
Particulars months vear 1-2years |2 -3 years years Total
(3] .Undisputed Trade receivables -~ 194.57 0.03 0.02 0.13 _ 194.75
censiderad good
Previous Year : :
Particulars Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1+«2years |2 -3 years More than 3 Total
months year Years
()] .Undisputecl Trade receivables - 461.39 . 0.16 _ _ 461.55
censidered good




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 11 ; CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

% in Crore
S Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Bank Balances with Scheduled Banks :
Current Account 183.97 0.17
TOTAL 183.97 0.17
Note — 12 : OTHER BANK BALANCES
Z in Crore
Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Fixed Deposits A 37.43 37.44
2 Earmarked Balances B 153.89 56.64
TOTAL 191.32 94.08
Note :
A) Earmarked in favor of Statutory Authorities 37.20 37.20

B) Pertains to Unpaid dividend {Refer note 16 - S5l.No.5)




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 13 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

¥ in Crore
Particulars Note 31i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Authorized:
Equity:
40,00,00,000 {2024: 40,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 400.00 400.00
Preference:
100,00,00,000  (2024:100,00,00,000) Non-Convertible  Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Sharas of Z 10 each 1000.00 1000.00
1400.00 1400.00
Issued :
Equity:
14,89,11,400 (2024: 14,89,11,400) Equity Shares of € 10 each 0} 148.91 148,91
Preference:
50,00,00,000 (2024: 50,00,00,000;) Non-Convertible Cumulative .
Redeemable Preference Shares of % 10 each (i) 500.00 500.00
648.91 648.91
Subscribed, Called-up and fully Paid-up :
. (i) 148.91 148.91
14,89,11,400 (2024: 14,89,11,400) Equity shares of 10 each
Total Paid up Equity share Capital 148.91 148.91
TOTAL 148.91 _ 148.91

Notes :

(i} (A) As per the Formation Agreement entered into between the promoters, an offer is to be made to the Naftiran
Intertrade Company Limited (NICO), an affiliate of National Iranian Oil Company (NIOC) in any issue of the Capital in
proportion to the shares held by them at the time of such issue to enable them to maintain their shareholding at the
existing percentage.

(B) The Shareholders of the Company at the General meeting held on 24th August 2018 has accorded approval for

a) Cancellation of unsubscribed equity share capital of ¥ 20.87 Crore consisting of 2,08,68,900 equity shares of ¥ 10/
each, comprising of partial subscription to Rights Issue made by the company in 1984, by the Government of India
and non-subscription by Amoco India Inc., to the Rights Issue made by the company in 1984;

b) Cancellation of 2,19,700 forfeited equity shares of ¥ 10/- each totaling ¥ 0.22 Crore (1,87,900 equity shares
forfeited on 26.09.2003 and 31,800 equity shares forfeited on 26.10.2008)

(i) Based on special resolution passed by the shareholders through postal ballot on 16.07.2015, the company has
allotted 100 Crore Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each for cash at par
ameounting to ¥ 1000 Crore to Indian Qil Corporation Ltd, the holding company on private placement preferential
allotment basis on 24.09.2015 after receipt of fuli subscription amount.

Preference shares to the extent of ¥ 500 crore, out of the total cutstanding amount of ¥ 1000 crore were redeemed
on 06.06.2018. Accordingly the outstanding amount as at 31.03.2025 is ¥ 500 crore.

Preference Shares classified as financial liability (long term borrowing) as per Ind AS 32 - Refer note - 15{C)
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 14 : OTHER EQUITY

¥ in Crore
o Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Retained Earnings
a) General Reserve !
As per last Account 6345.91 4464.86
Add: Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (8.98) 2.81
Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 88.07 1878.24
6425.00 6345.91
b) Surplus (Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss):
Balance Brought Forward from Last Year's Account 819.01 402.06
Add: Profit / (Loss} for the Year 173.53 2711.25
tess: APPROPRIATIONS:
Dividend (Paid) 819.01 402,06
Insurance Reserve Account 11.00 14.00
General Reserve 88,07 1878.24
Balance carried forward to next year's account 74.46 815.01
6499.46 7164.92
2 Other Reserves
a) Capital Redemption Reserve : A
As per last Account 1000.00 1300.00
1000.00 1000.00
b) Insurance Reserve : B
As per last Account 29.00 15.00
Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 11.00 14.00
40.00 29.00
c) Securities Premium: C
As per last Account 250.04 250.04
d) Capital Reserve D
As per last Account 0.09 0.09
TOTAL 7789,59 8444.05

Note :
Retained Earnings

The retained earnings comprises of general reserve and surplus which is used from time to time to transfer profits by
appropriations. Retained earnings is free reserve of the Company and is used for the purposes like issuing bonus
shares, buy back of shares and other purposes (like declaring Dividend etc.) as per the approval of Board of Directors.
It includes the remeasurement of defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuations which will not be re-classified to

statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods,

Other Reserves

Reserves created in compliance with the Provision of the Companigs Act, the utilisation of which is restricted to the

purposes mandated therein:

A

Capital Redemption Reserve Account : As per Companies Act 2013, capital redemption reserve Is created to
redeem preference shares. Utilisation of this reserve is governed by the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

Insurance Reserve : Insurance Reserve is created by the company to offset the risk of loss of assets, to the extent
B not insured with external insurance agencies. The reserve is utilised to offset the losses on such uninsured

proportion,

C Securities Premium : Premium on shares issued by the company appropriated under this reserve,
Capital Reserve: Capital Reserve was created through forfeiture of shares and shall be utilised as per the

provisions of the Companies Act 2013.
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CHENNATI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Secured Rupee Term Loans
Sl Particulars Availed Date Rate of Interest p.2a |Date of Repayment Security Details
No.
1 |[Term Loan from Qit 31-03-2020 6.16% The loan will be for a period of 5
Industry Development years with 1 year moratorium and
Board - Rs 100 Crore repayable in 4 equal installments, First Mortgage and charge on Immovable
Interest payable on Quarterly properties, both present and future and First
basis. Fully paid as per the Charge by way of Hypothecaticn on Movabies
repayment schedule. including movable machinery, machinery spares,
2 |Term Loan from Qif 30-06-2020 5.68% The loan will be for a period of 5 tools and accessories, present and future,
Industry Development years with 1 year moratorium and pertaining to BS-VI project to the extent of
Board - Rs 100 Crore repayable in 4 equal instaliments. outstanding,
Interest payable on Quarterly
basis
3 |Term Loan from State 10-05-2024 0.10%
Industries Promotion . -
Corporation of Tamilnadu FIrSlt Mtoggageha_ns cha;geE:E_All eBu;Idl_r;as Ialm:l
rited . . . ant & machinery a ipment with a
l;}';‘nll;e; .ﬁ";r(a::che ! ;ﬁtifatrl?.g:mc:fne-g n ;h;[z accesseries. Hypothecated by way of First
. paid in fu y
T X charge as security for payment by the
4 |Term Lean from State 31-03-2025 0.10% along with interest in the month Beneficiary to the SIPCOT of the said principal
Industries Promotion of April in the 13th fnanclal 4 R oot e with interest if any thereon and it
Corparation of Tamilnadu year,Interest paya_b!e on Quarterly costs, charges and expenses which may be
Limited: Tranche-Ii basls incurred by the SIPCOT in relation to this
Rs.196.98 Cr security.

B. Unsecured Loans:

SL Particulars Availed Date Rate of Interest Date of Redemption
No
1 |Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible 17-07-2020 5.78% Principal repayable at the end of 5 years from
Debentures of ¥ 10 Lakhs each redeemable date of availment. Interest payable Annually
at par - Series -[-2021
2 |Unsecured Redeemnable Non-Convertibie 23-06-2021 5.44% Principal repayable at the end of 3 years from

Debentures of ¥ 10 Lakhs each redeemabie
at par - Series -11-2022

date of availment, Interest payable Annually.
Fully redeemned on its due date 24-06-2024
along with the interest due.

C. Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Preference Share is treated as financial liability as per Ind AS 32, as these are redeemable cn maturity for a fixed determinable amount and carry fixed rate
of dividend.

The Campany has one class of preference shares i.e. Nen-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (NCCRP Shares) of ¥ 10 per share,
{a) Such shares shall confer on the holders thereof, the right te preferential dividend from the date of allotment i.e., 24.09.2015

{b) Such shares shall rank for capital and dividend (including all dividend undeclared upto the commencement of winding up) and for repayment of capital in
a winding up, pari passu inter se and in priority to the Ordinary Shares of the Company, but shall not confer any further or cther right to participate either in

{c) The holders of such shares shall have the right to receive all notices of general meetings of the Company and have a right to vete only on resolution
placed before the share holders which directly affect their rights attached to preference shares like winding up of company or repayment of preference

(d) The tenure of the NCCRP Shares would be 10 years , with put and call option, Either the preference sharehelder shalt have right te exercise Put option or
the Issuer shall have right to exercise Call option to redeem the preference shares, in whele or in part after the 5 years of the preference issue date.
However, it is also agreed that Put & Call option befora the 5 year pericd can be exercised by mutual consent of both the parties by giving 30 days notice,

(e) Dividend rate shall be equivalent to the Post tax yield of AAA rated corporate bond i.e. prevailing (at the time of issue) 10 year G-Sec yield plus spread on

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Preference shares:
profits or assets.
shares ete.
AAA rated corporate bond i.e., 6.65% p.a.

(i

(iii)

Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares to the extent of ¥ 500 Crore, out of ¥ 1000 crore was redeemed on 06.06.2018.

Preference Shares held by Holding Company 2 in Crore
Particlulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

50,00,00,000 (2024 : 506,00,00,000) Non-Cenvertibie Cumulative

Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥10/- each (100%) fully paid-up, 500.00 500.00

held by Indian Qil Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

(iv} Details of Preference shareholders holdinas more than 5% shares
Name of Preference 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Shareholder Number of Percentage of Holding | Number of Preference shares held Percentage of Holding
Preference
shares held
Indian Qil Corporation 500000000 100 500000000 100
Limited
{v) Preference dividend has been provisionally accrued as finance cost, However, as per the Companies Act 2013, the preference shares is treated as part of
share capital and the provisions of the Act relating to declaration of Preference Dividend would be applicable.The Board of Directors have recommended
preference dividend of 6.55% on the outstanding preference shares amounting to Rs. 33.25 Cr for the year {2023-24 : Rs, 33.25 cr).
{vi} Refer Note -13 & 13A - Authorised and Issued Preference Share capital and the reconciliation of no. of shares of preference shares
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CHENNAI PETRCLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 19 : BORROWINGS - CURRENT

(At Amortised Cost) T in Crore
f"o Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
I. SECURED BORROWINGS
1 Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks:
a) In Rupees
i) Working Capital Demand Loan A - -
Sub-Total - -
2 Current maturities of Long term debt 24,97 50.00
Total Secured Borrowings 24.97 50.00
II. UNSECURED BORROWINGS
1 Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks/Financial Institutions:
In Rupees
Working Capital Demand Loan 1541.01 503.07
Sub-Total 1541.01 503.07
2 Current maturities of Long term debt 1376.34 873.98
Total Unsecured Borrowings 2917.35 1377.05
TOTAL BORROWINGS - CURRENT 2942.32 1427.05

Notes:

A Secured against hypothecation by way of first charge on Trade Receivables & Inventories to State Bank of India.
The quarterly statements of current assets filed by the company with State Bank of India is in agreement with

the books of accounts.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 20 : TRADE PAYABLES

¥ in Crore
Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises A 10.33 13.18
Dues to Related Parties B 2428.54 2866.29
Dues to Others 725.44 1403.04
TOTAL C&pP 3164.31 4282.51
Notes :

A Detalls relating to Micre and Small Enterprises is as follows:
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
(@) the principal amount 10.33 13,18

(b) the interest due thereon remaining unpaid

(c)the amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of secticn 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enierprises Development Act, 2006 {27 of
2006), along with the amount of the payment made %o the supplier

heyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

(d)the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
rmaking payment (which_ .has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(e)the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year

(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006

B Represents dues to Indian Qil Corporation Ltd., the holding company

€ Refer Note - 10(B)

p Trade Payables ageing schedule

Current Year: Z in Crore
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilleg | @SS thanl 1-2 years 2-3years [MOrCthAN 3| o
year vears
(i) MSME - 10.33 - - - 10.33
(i) Others 120.00 3002.53 22.43 3.50 5.37 3153.83
{iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
{iv} Disputed dues - Others - - - 0.15 - 0.15
Total 120,00 3012.86 22.43 3.65 5.37 3164.31
Previous Year: 2 in Crore
Qutstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment
Particulars .
Unbilled Lesi;la}?n 1 1-2 years 2 -3 years Mor:eet::in 3 Totai
(i) MSME - 13.18 - - - 13.18
{ii) Others 114.05 4131.67 15.02 3.09 5.35 4269.,18
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Qthers - - - 0.15 - 0.15
Total 114.05 4144.85 15.02 3.24 5.35] 4282.51




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALCNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 21 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

¥ in Crore
o Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Sale of Produ;&s and Crude (including Excise Duty) 41072.89 79351.48
Less: Discounts 109.99 144.54
Sales (Net of Discounts) A 70962.90 79206.94
2 Other Operating Revenues (Note "21.17) 87.01 65.31
71049.¢1 79272.25
TOTAL B 71049,91
Notes :
A Breakup of Gross revenue and Excise Duty on sales
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Revenue (gross) 70962.90 79206.94
Less: Excise Duty 11759.68 12636.93
Net Revenue 59203.22 66570.01

B Refer Note-42 Revenue from contracts with customers




CHENNAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 21.1 : OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

Zin Crore

ﬁl‘; Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Sale of Power 0.69 0.86
2 Unclaimed / Unspent liabilities written back 0.56 1.24
3 Recoveries from Employees 0.09 0.33
4 Sale of Scrap 34.65 27.64

Amortisation of Government Grants related to
® OIDB & SIPCOT loan 8.39 0.62
6 Terminalling Charges 2.34 2.10
7 Other Miscellanecus Income A 40.29 32.52
TOTAL 87.01 65.31
A Includes %4.49 Crore (2024 : ¥ 2.50 Crore) in respect of Insurance claims




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 22 : OTHER INCOME

T in Crore
:IC', Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Intereston :
Financial Item:
a) Loans and Advances 14.21 9.67
b} Deposits 3.21 0.68
C) Others - 0.08
17.42 10.43
Non Financial Item: . 7.82 -
2 Dividend from Related Parties A 18.28 2.78
3 Other Non Cperating Income - 0.04
TOTAL 43.52 13.25
Note :

A Represents Dividend received from Indian Additives Limited {(Non-Current Equity Investments in Joint
Ventures)

Total interest income (calculated using the effective interest method) for financial assets that are not at fair
value through profit or loss: :
T in Crore

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

In relation to financial assets measured at amortised cost ’ 17.42 10.43




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 23 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Zin Crore
Pariiculars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Raw Material Consumed :
Opening Balance 4199.39 3184.52
Add :

Purchases 54708.65 61417.25
Sub Total 58908.04 64601.77
Less: Closing Stock 3560.35 4199.39

TOTAL {Met) 55347.69 60402.39




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 24 : CHANGES IN INVENTORY

Zin Crore
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Closing Stock
a) Finished Products 1603.95 2309.53
b) Stock in Process 856,04 1006.08
2459.99 3315.61
Less:
Opening Stock
a) Finished Products 2309.53 1681.69
b) Stock in Process 1006.08 802.24
3315.61 2483.93
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) (855.62) 831.68




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 25 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Zin Crore
Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Employee Benefit Expense:
(a) Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc 347.28 437.10
(b) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 49.08 57.55
{c) Staff Welfare Expenses 68.32 52.06
TOTAL ARB 464.68 546.71

Noies :

A Disclosure in compliance with Ind AS - 19 on “Employee Benefiis” is given in Note - 32

B Above excludes Nil (2024: ¥ 4 Crore) transferred to capital work in progress (Note - 2.2) and ¥
21.46 Crore (2024: ¥ 20,27 Crore) transferred to disposal group held for transfer (Note - 2.2}




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 26 : FINANCE COSTS

Zin Crore
z; Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Interest Payments on Financial items: )
I Working Capital Loans
Short term Borrowings 183.49 137.22
ITI Other Loans
Debentures/Long Term Loan A 16.15 48.06
1992.64 185.28
ITI Unwinding of Finance cost on Lease obligations 2.29 2.17
I_ntere_st u_exp_c?n_se for Preference Shares treated as B 33.25 33.25
financial liabilities
2 Interest Payments on Non Financial items C 0,34 2,52
3 Other Borrowing Cost D - 0.06
TOTAL ____244.52 223.28
Notes :
A Net of amount transferred to Assets included in disposal 60.49 47.78

B Refer Note-15 C {v)
C Mainly includes interest expense on Income Tax / GST/other contractual obligations.

{1} Total interest expense {calculated using the effective interest method) for financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:

T in Crore
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
In relation to financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 235.18 220.70

D Mainly pertains to Stamp duty & other indirect expenses on borrowings.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 27 : OTHER EXPENSES

Zin Crore
g‘(‘) Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Consumption:
a) Stores, Spares and Consumables 169.87 144.15
b} Packages & Prum Sheets 1.46 1.11
171.33 145.26
2 Power & Fuel 1780.47 2413.41
Less ; Fuel from own production 1703.95 2334.63
76.52 78.78
3 Irrecoverable taxes - Central Sales Tax 372.64 361.48
4 Repairs and Maintenance
i}  Plant & Machinery 372.42 257.39
it} Buildings 0.50 0.40
i) Others 63.61 58.99
436.53 316.78
5 Freight, Transportation Charges and Demurrage 91.36 115.71
& Office Administration, Selling and Other Expenses
{Refer Note "27.1") 316,84 292.74
TOTAL 1465,22 1310.75
Less: Company's use of own Products - 0.03
TOTAL (Net) 1465.22 1310,72




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 27.1 : OFFICE ADMINISTRATION, SELLING AND OTHER EXPENSES

¥ in Crore
:I(; Particulars Note 31i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Rent 9.86 5.95
2 Insurance 27.64 32.95
3 Rates & Taxes 3.04 4.38
4  Payment to auditors :
a) For Statutery Audit 0.29 0.29
b} For Limited Review 0.07 0.12
c) Other Services(for issuing other certificates etc.) 0.02 0.02
0.38 0.43
5 Travelling & Conveyance 19.59 19.60
6 Communication Expenses 2,49 1.82
7 Printing & Stationery 2,06 1.49
B  Electricity & Water 0.73 0.80
9 Bank Charges G.09 0.83
10 Provision / Loss on Assets sold or written off (Net) 21.96 5.08
11 Technical Assistance Fees 11.72 10.26
12 Exchange Fluctuation {Net) 63.12 72.14
13 Poson o Dot Dt Advnces
14 Security Force Expenses 33.13 36.62
15 Terminalling Charges 10.25 4,68
16 Provision for Probable Contingencies 12.08 9.30
17 Expenses on CSR Activities A 54.86 28.50
18 Advertisement and Publicity 1.61 1.61
19 Pollution Control Expenses 17,58 8.88
20 Training Expenses 2.13 1.78
21 Legal Expenses / Payment To Consultants 5.03 4.06
22 Miscellaneous Expenses 16.76 40.04
TOTAL 316.84 252.74
Note :

In addition, Rs. 1.97 Cr of CSR expenditure incurred during FY 2020-21 has been carried forward and
A utilised in the previous year F.Y 2023-24 in line with Sec 135 of Companies Act, 2013 {Also refer Note
39)
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 29 : DISTRIBUTIONS MADE AND PROPOSED

Zin Crore

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Cash dividends on Equity shares
Final dividend for FY 2023-24 declared and

paid during the year ended 31 March 2025 %
55 per share; (for FY 2022-2023 declared and 819.01 402.06
paid during the year ended 31 March 2024 : ¥

27 Per Share)
819.01 402.06

Proposed dividends on Equity shares:

Final dividend for year ended 31 March 2025:

7 5 per share (31 March 2024: ¥ 55 per share) 74.46 819.01

74.46 819.01

Proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval at the Annual
General Meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2025

Note : Refer Note-15 C (V) for Preference dividend
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 31 : PISCLOSURE OF INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

(2 in Crora)

Name of entity Place of % of Relationship Accounting -
business ownership method Carrying Amount
interest As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Indian Additives Limited India 50% Joint Venture  Equity Accounting 11.83 11.83
National Aromatics and Petrochemical Cerporation Limited India 50% Joint Venture  Equity Accounting il il

Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited India 25% Associate Equity Accounting 0.01 0,01




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 32 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits” is as under:

A.

C,

Defined Contribution Plans- General Descrintion

ensjon Sc :
During the vear, the company has recognised ¥ 23,44 Crore (2024: T 21,96 Crore) towards contribution to Defined Employees Pension Scheme in the
Statement of Profit and Loss / CWIP {included in Contribution {o Pravident & Gther Funds in Note - 25 / Censtruction pariod expenses in Note-2.1)

During the year, the company has recagnised T 1.48 Crore (2024: ¥ 1,59 Crore) as canfribution to EPS-95 in the Statment of Profit and Loss / CWIP
{included in Contribution {o Provident and Other Funds in MNote - 25 / Construction period expenses in Note-2,1)

Defined Benefit Plans- General Description

Provident Fund:

The Company's contribution to the Provident Fund is remitted to separate provident fund trust established for this purpose based on a
fixed percentage of the eligible employee's salary and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. Shortfall, if any, in the fund assets,
based on the Government specified minimum rate of return, will be made good by the Company. The Provident Fund maintained by
the PF Trust in respect of which actuarial valuation is carried out. Accordingly, the present value of obligation due to interest shortfalt
s ¥ 4.6 Crore (2024 : ¥ 2.27 Crore) has been provided by the company towards the current and future interest shortfall/losses
beyond available surplus. The company has determined its probable liability at Rs. 9.81 Crore (2024: 9.81 Crore) in respect of
investments by the Provident Fund trust turning into stressed assets, which were made to be gocd by the company, As there has
been no change in the probable liability in this regard, no additional expenditure has been charged under Employee Benefit
Expenses in the current year .

2 Gratuitv:

Each employee rendering continuous service of 5 years or more is entitled to receive gratuity amount equal to 15/26 of the eligible
salary for every completed year of service subject to a maximum of ¥ 9.20 Crore at the time of separation from the company.
Besides, the ceiling of gratuity increases by 25% whenever IDA rises by 50%. The company has funded the lability through insurance
campany.

P Retire ical :

PRMS provides medical benefit to retired employees and eligible dependant family members.The company has funded the liability
through insurer managed funds.

Workman Compensation:

The company pays an equivalent amount of 100 months salary to the family member of employee, if employee dies due to accidental
death while he is on duty. This scheme is not funded by the company. The Hability originates out of the workman compensation Act
and Factory Act,

Ex gratia Scheme:

Ex-gratia is payable to those employees who have retired before January 01, 2007 and are drawing a pension lower than the ex
gratia fixed for a Grade {in such case differential amount between pension and ex gratia is paid).

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits - General Description

1 Legve Encashment:

Each employee is entitled to get 8 earned leaves for each completed quarter of service. Encashment of earned leaves is allowed
during service leaving a minimum balance of 15 days subject to maximum accumnulation of 300 days. In addition, each employee is
entitled to get 5 sick leaves (in lieu of 10 Half Pay Leave) at the end of every six months. The entire accumulation of sick leave is
permitted for encashment only at the time of retirement, DPE had darified eartier that sick leave cannot be encashed, though Earned
Leave (EL) and Half Pay Leave (HPL) could be considered for encashment on retirement subject to the overall limit of 300 days,
Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas {MoPNG) has advised the company to comply with the said DPE Guidelines. However, the
company, in compliance to the DPE guidelines of 1987 which had allowed framing of own leave rules within broad parameters laid
down by the Government and keeping in view operational complications and service agreements the company had requested
concerned authorities to reconsider the matter, Subsequently, based on the recornmendation of the 3rd Pay Revision Committee, DPE
in its guidelines on pay revision, effective from January 01, 2017 has inter-alia allowed CPSEs to frame their own leave rules
considering operational necessities and subject to conditions set therein, The requisite conditions are fully met by the company. The
net expenditure accounted towards encashment of sick leave for the year is ¥ 5.26 Crore (2024: ¥ 5.09 crore). The accumulated
provision for towards encashment of sick leave is ¥ 34,14 Crore (2024: ¥ 33.97 Crore}.

2 Lona Service Award:

On completion of specified period of service with the company and also at the time of retirement, employees are rewarded with
amounts based on the length of service completed. It is a mode of recognizing long years of loyalty and faithful service in line with
Bureau of Public Enterprises (currently DPE) advice vide its DO No. 7(3)/79-BPE (GM.I) dated February 14, 1983. MoPNG has advised
that the issue of Long Service Award has been reported as an audit para in the Annual Report of CAG. The Cerporation has been
clarifying its position to MoPNG individually as well as on industry basis on the rationale that Long Service Awards are not in the
nature of Bonus or Ex-gratia or honorarium and is emanating from a settlement with the unions under the Industrial Dispute Act as
well as with the approval of the Board in line with the DPE’s advice of 1983. The matter is being pursued with MoPNG for resolution,
Pending this the provision is in line with Board approved policy. The net expenditure accounted on this account is ¥ 0,99 Crore (2024:
? 1.38 Crore}. The accumulated provision in this regard is ¥ 8.75 Crore (2024: ¥ 10.11 Crore}.
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(iv}

The summarised position of various defined benefits / Long Term Employee Benefits recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Balance Sheet are as under:

{Figures presented in Ttalic Font in the table are for previous year)

Reconciliation of balance of Defined Benefit / Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations
Zin Crore
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Defined Obligation at the beginning 648.46 153.85 305.65 3.79
629.97 153.64 283,24 -
Current Service Cost 25.14 3.61 4.53 -
24.45 3.40 4.07 -
Interest Cost 48.78 11.11 22.13 0.27
48.46 11.55 21.33 -
Past Service Cost - - - -
- - - 3.79
Benefits paid (109.36) (16.47) (9.76) {0.41)
(91.79) (14.16) (9.81) -
Emplovee Contribution 42.46 - - -
42.53 - - -
Amounts Transferred in fout - - - -
0.06 - - -
Actuarial (qain)/ loss an obligations 1.62 4.30 10.58 1.71
(5.22) (0.58) 6.82 -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 657.10 156.40 333.13 5.36
648,46 153.85 305.65 3.79
Reconciliation of balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets
11X Inwrore)
Provident Gratuity PRMS
Fund
Funded Funded Funded
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the
year 666.96 200.63 327.20
623.07 182.68 295.82
Expected return on plan assets (Interest
Income) 48.62 14.48 23.69
47.93 13.74 22.28
Contribution by emplover 24.59 - 9.77
24.45 - 10.90
Contribution by employees 42.46 - 0.17
42,53 - -
Benefit paid {109.36) {0.06) (9.76)
(91.79) - 2.40
Amounts Transferred in fout - - d
4.00 - -
Actuarial gain / (losses)(Return on Plan Assets 3.95 2.84 2.14
excl interest income) 20.77 4.21 0.60
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 677.22 217.89 353.21
666.96 200.63 327.20
Reconcitiation of Fair value of Plan Assets and Defined Benefit Obligation
(¥ in Crore)
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 677.22 217.89 353.21 -
666.96 200.63 327.20 -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 657.10 156.40 333.13 5.36
648.46 153.85 305.65 3.79
Net Interest shortfall / Liability /
(Asset)recognised in the Balance Sheet 4.60 (61.49) {20.08) 5.36
2.27 {46.78) (21.55) 3.79
Amount not recognised in the Balance Sheet 24.72 - - -
( as per Para 64 of Ind AS 19} 20.77 - - -

As per the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, the Company has
no right to the benefits either in the form of refund from the plan or lower future contribution to the plan towards
the net surplus of Rs. 24.72 Crore {2024: Rs.20.77 Crore) determined through actuarial valuation, Accordingly,
Company has not recognised the surplus as an asset in line with Ind AS 19, and the remeasurement foss /gains in
‘Other Comprehensive Income’, as these pertain to the Provident Fund Trust and not to the Campany.

Amoaunt recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss / CWIP
(T in Crore)
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Current Service Cost 25.14 3.61 4.53 -
24,45 2.40 4.07 -
Interest Caost 48.78 11.11 22,13 0.27
48.46 11.55 21,33 -
Expected {return) / loss on plan asset (48.62) (14.48) (23.69) -
(47.93) {13.74) (22.28) -
Contribution by Employees - - -
Past Service Cost - - - -
- - - 3.79
Expenses for the year 25.30 0.24 2.97 0.27
24.98 1.21 3.12 3.79




(v} Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

{Z In Crore)
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Actuarial {gain})/ lcss on Obligaticns 1.62 4.30 10.58 1.71
(5.22) (0.58) 6.82 .
Remeasurament (Return on Plan Assets excl .
interast income) (2.84) (2.14}) -
- (4.21) {0.60} -
Net Loss / (Gain) recognized in OCI 1.62 1.46 8.44 1.71
(5.22) (4.78) 6.22 -
{vi} Major Actuarial Assumptions
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Discount rate 6.81% 6.81% 7.05% 6.73%
7.22% 7.22% 7.24% 7.21%
Guaranteed return on plan assets 8.25% - - -
8.25% - - -
Salary escalation - 8.00% - -
- 8.00% - -
Inflation - - 7.00% 4,00%
- - 7.00% 4.00%

The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account of inflatien, senicrity, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. The expected return on plan assets is determined
considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of the plan assets held, assessed risks of asset management and

historical results of the return on plan assets.

{vii} Sensitivity on Actuarial Assumptions:

{¥ in Crore}
Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Loss / (Gain) for:
Funded Funded Non-Funded
Change in Discounting Rate
tncrease by 0.5% (5.42) {25.49) (0,20}
- (4.96) {22.86) (0.11)
Decrease by 0.5% 5.86 29,14 0.21
5.34 26.05 0.13
Change in Employee Turnover
Increase by 0.5% 0,22 0.53 -
0.42 0.60 -
Cecrease by 0.5% (0.21) {0.57) -
{0.44) (0.64} -
Change in_Salary Escalation/ Inflation rate
Increase by 0.5% 2.51 29.21 -
2.40 26.17 -
Decrease by 0.5% {2.86) {25.783) -
(2.42} (23.18) -
{viii) Investment details:
Provident Gratuity PRMS
Fund
Funded Funded Funded
Investment with Insurer - 100.00% 100.00%
- 100.00% 100.00%
Self manaaed investinents 3100,00% - -
100.00% - -
Details of the investment pattern for the above mentioned funded obligations is as under:
Provident Gratuity PRMS
Fund
Funded Funded Funded
Government securities (Central & State) 54.48% 71.39% 80.12%
52.04% 65.58% 80.37%
Investment in £quitv / Mutual Funds 18.66% 13.66% 10.65%
15.83% 12.21% 10.87%
Investment in Debentures / Securities 22,15% 13.49% B.85%
28.27% 20.44% 8.36%
Other approved investrments (incl. Cash) 4,72% 1,46% 0.38%
3.86% 1.77% 0.40%

(ix} The following payments are expected projections to the defined benefit plan in future years:

(T in Crore)

Cash Flow Projection from the Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund/Employer Funded Funded Non-Funded
Within next 12 Months 19.71 9,81 0.41
20.65 9.10 .37
Between 2 to 5 Years 67.38 49,65 1.76
* 66.74 46.51 1.27
Between & to 10 Years 52.64 84.80 2.36
59.76 80,29 1.12




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 33 : COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A

Leases

(a) As lesses

(b
M

The Company has entered into various material lease arrangements (including in substance lease arrangements) such as lands and
buildings for purpose of its plants, facifities, offices, etc..,

The Employees Township at Cauvery Basin Refinery has been constructed on land area of thirty four acres and forty nine cents of tand
feased from a trust on five-year renewable basis.

Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and L.oss Account or Carrying Amount of Another Asset .
{% in Crore)

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Depreciation recognized 9.60 7.57
Interest on lease liabilities 1.91 1.77
Expenses relating to short-term leases (leases more than 30 days but 1.98 4.03
less than 12 months)

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 3.08 1.66
Total cash outflow for leases 16.18 13.99
Net Additions to ROU during the year 4.22 7.07
Net Carrying Amount of ROU at the end the year 15.27 20.65

The details of ROU Asset other than leasehold land included in PPE (Note 2) held as lessee by class of underlying asset is presented below

Current Year : {Z in Crore)

Items Net Additions* |Depreciation Net Carrying
Added to[to Roll Asset|Recognized value as on
Asset Class RoU  Asset|during the Year |During the Year |31.03.2025
as on
01.04.2024
Leasehold Land 13.85 {3.44) 4.16 6.25
Buildings Roads etc, 0.28 {0.28) o - 0.00
Plant & Equipment - - - -
Transport Equipments 6.52 7.94 5.44 9.02
Total 20.65 4.22 9.60 15.27
* Additions are net of modifications/cancellations of lease arrangements
Previous Year : (T in Crore)
Items Net Additions|Depreciation Net Carrying
Added toito RoU Asset|Recognized value as on
Asset Class RoU Assetiduring the Year |During the Year (31.03.2024
as on
01.04.2023
Leasehold Land 18.37 0.27 4.78 13.85
Buildings Roads etc. 0.29 - 0.02 0.28
Plant & Equipment - - - -
Transport Equipments 2.49 6.81 2.77 6.52
Total 21.15 7.07 7.57 20.65

As per requirement of the standard, maturity analysis of Lease Liabilities have been shown as part of borrowings under Liquidity Risk of
Note 36: Financial Instruments & Risk Factors.

Details of items of future cash outflows which the Company is exposed as lessee but are not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities are as under;

Variable Lease Payments

As per general industry practice, the Company incurs various variabie lease payments which are based on rate, kms covered ete. and are
recognized in profit or loss and not included in the measurement of [ease liability.

As lessor

Onerating Lease

The jease rentals recognized as income in these statements as per the rentals stated in the respective {Z in Crore)
agreements:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
A. Lease rentals recoanized durina the period 30.69 30.12
B. Value of assets eiven on lease included in tanaible assets

- Gross Carrving Amount 8.91 15.08
- Accumulated Depreciaticn . 1.54 3.26
- Depreciation recegnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.15 0.39

These relate to storage tankage facilities for petroleum products, buildings, plant and equipments given on lease. Asset class wise details
have been presented under Note 2: Property, Plant & Equipments.

Maturity Analysis of Undiscounted Lease Payments to be received after the reportina date {¥ in Crore)
31-Mar-235 31-Mar-24
Less than one year 16.74 17.65
One to two vears . 17.52 16.67
Two to three vear 18.42 17.52
Three fc four vears 19.36 18.42
Four to five years 20.36 19.36

More than five vears £54.08 674,44

Total 746.48 764.07




B Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities amounting to ¥720.28 Crore (2024: 2630.51 Crore) are as under:
(i) ¥ 58%.48 Crore (2024: ¥ 564.67 Crore} being the demands raised by the Central Excise / Customs / Service Tax Authorities including
interest of ¥ 225.88 Crore (2024: ¥ 199.31 Crere).

(i) ¥ 10.27 Crore (2024: ¥ 10,27 Crore) being the demands raised by the VAT/ Sales Tax Authorities and includes no interest (2024 Nif}.

{iii) T 45.78 Crore (2024; ¥ 54.52 Crore) on account of Projects for which suits have been filed in the Courts or cases are lying with Arbitrator.
This includes interest of ¥ 1.64 Crore (2024: ¥ 9.28 Crore).

(iv) ¥ 74.75 Crore {2024: ¥ 1,05 Crore) in respect of other claims including interest of ¥ 0.25 Crore {2024 ¥ 0.23 Crore).
The Company has not considered those disputed demands / claims as contingent liabilities, for which, the outflow of resources has been
considerad as remote.
C Commitments
(i) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account not provided for ¥ 234.14 Crore (2024: ¥ §8.42 Crore).

(ii) Other Commitments
The Company has an export obligation to the extent of ¥ 219.05 Crore (2024; ¥ 219,05 Crore) on account of concessional rate of

customs duty availed under EPCG license scheme con procurement of capitzl goods and the same is expected to be fulfilled by way of
exports.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMETED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 34 "Related Party Disclosures"” in compliance with Ind-AS 24, are given below:

1.Relationship with Entities
A. Details of Holding Company
1) Indian Gil Corporation Limited (10CL)

The following transactions were carried out with Holding Company in the ordinary course of business:

{Z in Crore)
Particulars 31i-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
= Sale of Products/ Crude and Services 67303.44 73804.94
» Dividend on Freference Shares 33.25 33.28
+ EDP Maintenance 3.99 4,16
» Qther Operating Income 3161 32.67
+ Purchase of Raw Materlal 628.47 -
¢ Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 206.96 58,59
+ Purchase of Stores & Spares 7.23 7.23
+ Canalising commission B.05 675
* Vessel hiring charges 35.23 15.9%
s Terminaiiing and Facilitation Charges 3.13 3.85
* Rental Expenditure 1.50 2.80
« Subscription Expenses 0,70 ¢.96
« Training Expenses - 0.36
o Purchase of RLNG 2974.91 2536.95
« Finance Cost - Unwinding of finance cost 0.39 0.39
« Revenue Advances 0.06 0.17
« Qutstanding Receivables 113.90 135.80
« Other Liabilitias - Land given on lease 13,09 13.51
« Other Non - current Assets - Land given on lease 82.40 70.48
« Qutstanding payables
Trade Payables 2428.54 2866.29
Preference Shares (at face vaiue) 500.00 5C0.00
B.Datails of Joint Ventures / Associates
i) Indian Additives Limited {¥ in Crora)
Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
» Investrnent 11.83 11,83
+ Sale of Product - 0.90
« Sale of Water 0.05 0.00
« Rental income - 0.65
+ Dividend received 18.28 2.78
« Cuistanding Receivables 0.01 0.26
ii} Natipnal Aromatics & Petrochemicals Corp, Limited (% in Crore)
Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
» Investments in Joint Venture Entities/ Associates 0.03 0.03
» Claims recoverable 22.66 22.66
The Investment & claims recaverable has been fully impaired (Note - 4}
{il) Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited {Tin Crore)
Particulars | 3i-Mar-2025| 31-Mar-2024]
{s Investrments in oint Venture Entities/ Asscciates { 0.01] 0.01 §
C.Entities Over which KMP has significant influence
i} CPCL Educational Trust (% in Crora)
Particuiars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
+ USH Expenses 9.09 3.63
+ {laims recoverable 0.72 0.72

D. Government related entities where significant transactions are carried out:

Apart from transactions reported above, the company has transactlons with other Government related entitles,
which Includes but not limited to the following:

Name of Government: Government of India {Central 2nd State Government)

Nature of Transactions:

« Sale of Product and Services

+ Purchase of Product

+ Purchase of Raw Materials

+ Handling and Freight Charges, etc.

+ Borrowings

These transactions are conducted in the ordirary course of the Company's business on terms comparable to those
with other entities that are not Government-related
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CHENNAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 35 : FAIR VALUES

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts as per financial statements and fair value of
the Company’s financial instruments, along with the fair value measurement hierarchy:

(% in Crore)
Carrying value Fair value Fai |
air value
Particulars As at As at As at As at measurement

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 piararchy level

Financial Assets
Amortised Cost:
Loans to employees 166.18 140.01 158.29 125.08 Level 2
Total 166.18 140.01 158.29 125.08

Financial liabilities

A. Borrowings:

Amortised Cost:

Non-Convertible Redeemable 843.09 1650.73 838.68 1625.96 Level 2
Debentures

Lease obligation 16.99 24,15 16.97 24.32 lLevel 2
Preference Shares 533.25 533.25 545.65 522.80 Level 2
Term Loans from Oil Industry 24.97 74,70 25.13 75.38 Level 2
Development Board (OIDB)

Term Loan from State Industries 158.12 - 162.66 - Level 2

Promotion Corporation of Tamilnadu
Limited (SIPCOT)

Total 1576.42 2282.83 1589.09 2248.46

Notes:

1. Levels under Fair Value measurement hierarchy are as follows:

{a) Level 1 items fair valuation is based upon market price quotation at each reporting date

{b)} Level 2 items fair valuation is based upon Significant ocbservable inputs like PV of future cash flows, MTM
valuation, etc.

{c) Level 3 items fair valuation is based upon Significant unobservable inputs wherein valuation done by
independent valuer.

2. The management assessed that Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances, Deposit for Leave
Encashment Fund, Recoverable from Employee Benefits Trusts, Other Non-derivative Current Financial Assets, Short-
termn Borrowings, Trade Payables, Floating Rate Loans and Other Non-derivative Current Financial Liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

3. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Metheds and assumptions
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values at the reporting date:

Level 2 Hierarchy:
(i) Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss viz.Fareign exchange forward contracts:

Replacement cost quoted by institutions for similar instruments by employing use of market cbhservable inputs are
considered.

(i) Loans to employees, Loan to related parties, Security deposits paid and Security deposits received,Lease
obligations: Discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for items on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities

(iii) Non Convertible Redeemable Preference shares : The fair value of Preference shares is estimated by
discounting future cash flows.

(iv)Term Loans from Oil Industry Development Board (OIDB): Discounting future cash flows using rates currently
available for similar type of borrowings (OIDB Borrowing rate) using exit model as per Ind AS 113,

(v}Term Loans from State Industries Promotion Corporation of Tamil Nadu (SIPCOT):Discounting future cash
flows using rates currently available for items on similar terms and remaining maturities.
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 37 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management
is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors capital using debt equity ratio, which is borrowings divided by Equity. The
Company's strategy is to keep the debt equity ratio in the range of 2:1 and 1:1 under normal
crcumstances. The Company also includes accrued interest in the borrowings for the purpose of
capital management.

{¥ in Crore)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Borrowings 3100.44 2761.75
Total Borrowings 3100.44 2761.75
Equity Share Capital 148.91 148.91
Reserves and Surplus 7789.59 8444.05
Equity 7928.50 8592.96
Debt Equity Ratic 0.39: 1 032:1

No changes were made in the cbjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 40 : DISCLOSURE ON GOVERNMENT GRANTS

A Revenue Grants

1 Stipend to apprentices under National Apprenticeship Training Scheme (NATS) scheme

Currently, the scheme is operated under the Direct Benefit Transfer (DBT) mode by the Government of India, resulting in no
grant being received during the year; in the previous year, ¥0.51 crore was received and the related expenditure was
presented on a net basis against training expenses..

2 EPCG Grant

Grant recognised in respect of duty waiver on procurement of capital goods under EPCG scheme of Central Government
which allows procurement of capital goods including spares for pre production and post production at zero duty subject to an
axport obligations of 6 times of the duty saved on capital goods procured. The unamortized capital grant amount as on March
31, 2025 is ¥ 12.54 Crore (2024: ¥ 12.54 Crore). The company recognised Nil Crore (2024: ¥ Nil Crore) in the statement of
profit & loss account as amortisation of revenue grant. The company expects to meet the export obligations in line with the
scheme.

3 Structured package incentive from State Industries Promotion Corporation of Tamil Nadu (SIPCOT)

The Company signed an MoU in 2015 with the Government of Tamil Nadu in respect of RESID Upgradation Project under the
TamilNadu Industrial Policy,2014 and the obligations w.r.t capital investment as stipulated therein have been fulfilled.

CPCL is eligible to avail the structured Package of assistance in the form of a soft loan of upto Rs. 2407.82 crore (i.e 80% of
the eligible fixed assets of RESID projects) over a period of 12 years from the commisisoning of the RESID project, subject
to achievement of incremental production / sales. The loan carries an interest rate of 0.1% per annum, repayable after a
period of 12 years from the date of disbursement.During the Current year, Loan amounts of ¥173.42 crore {10th May 2024)
and ¥196.98 crore (31st March 2025) have been received under the scheme.

The unamortized grant amount as on March 31, 2025 is ¥ 209.39 crore (2024:Nil). During the year, the company has
recognised ¥ 7.77 crore (2024:Nil) in the statement of profit and loss as amortisation of grants.

B Capital Grants
i) Oil Industry Development Board {OIDB)
The Company has received capital grant in the form of interest subsidy on loans taken from OIDB. The unamortized capital

grant amount as on March 31, 2025 is ¥ 0.07 crore (2024:¥ 0.69 crore) . During the year, the company has recognised ¥
0.62 crore (2024: ¥ 0.62 crore) in the statement of profit and loss as amortisation of capital grants.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note ~ 41 : EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Financial and Derivative Instruments:

1

All derivative contracts entered into by the Company are for hedging its foreign currency relating fo
underlying transactions and firm commitments and not for any speculative or trading purposes.

The company has no outstanding forward contract as at 31st March 2025(2024 : NIL)

Foreign currency exposure that are not hedged by a derivative instrument as on 31st March 2025 is given
below:

Zin Crore

S. No Particulars As on As on
31-Mar-2025 | 31-Mar-2024
Aggregate Aggregate

amount amount
1 Unhedged- Payables 6517.75 6175.98
Unhedged- Receivables 722.26 844.73

Refer Note - 10B - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 42 : REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Company is in the business of refining crude oil and it earns revenue primarily from sale of
petroleum products and others. Revenue is recognized when control of the goods and services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services, Revenue is measured based on the
consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. In determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the company considers
the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Generally, Company enters into contract with customers for sale on EX-MI basis. Majority of
Company’s sales are to Qil Marketing Companies and Downstream industries for which credit period
is less than 1 year. Direct sales to other customers are generally on cash and carry basis. Revenue
is recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer by adjusting the amounts deposited by
customers, if any,

Bifurcation of Total Revenue into Revenue from contract with customers and other sources of
revenue as per requirement of Ind AS 115 is given below;

£ in Crore

2024-25 2023-24
Total Revenue 71036.38 79267.47
Revenue from contract with customers 70962.90 79206.94
Revenue from other contracts / from others 73.48 60.53

No impalirment of losses on receivables has been recognised during the current and previous year,




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 43 : RATIOS

Ratios

31-Mar-25

3i-Mar-24

Variation

Reasons for
variation (>
25%)

(a) Current Ratio,

1.00

1.24

-19%

[Current Assets/ Current Liabilities]

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio,

0.39

0.32

22%

[{Non-Current Borrowings+ Current Borrowings)/ Total Equity]

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio

0.90

10.79

~92%

Refer Note (i)

[Profit  after Tax+ Finance Cost (P&L) +
Depreciation}]/ [Finance Costs (P&L + capitalised) -+
Lease payment & Principal Repayrent (Long Term)]

(d) Return on Equity Ratio (%)

2.10%

36.46%

-94%

Refer Note (ii)

Profit after Tax/Average Total Equity

(e) Inventory Turnover {Times)

8.27

9.64

~14%

[Sales (Net of Discount)] (Net of Excise Duty) /
Average Inventory)

{f) Trade Receivables Turnover (Times}

180.42

175,13

3%

{Sales (Net of Discount)] (Net of Excise
Duty)/Average Trade Receivable

{g} Trade payables Turnover- {Times}

15.14

17.34

-13%

[Purchase of Raw Material + Purchase of Stock-in-
Trade + Other Expenses / Average Trade Payable]

(h) Net capital Turnover- (Times)

69.55

64,50

B%

[Sales (Net of Discount) (Net of Excise Duty)
/Average (Current Assels- Current Liabifities]

(i) Net profit Ratio (%)

0.29%

4.07%

-33%

Refer Mote {ii)

[Profit after Tax/ (Revenue from Operations- Excise
Duty))

{j) Return on Capital Employed (%)

3.76%

33.12%

-89%

Refer Note (if)

[EBIT/Average (Equity+Total borrowings + Deferred
Tax Liabilities)]

(k) Return on investment (%) ~ Equity
investment in Joint venture

26.69%

18.94%

41%

Refer Note (i)

[Closing Value of Investment + Dividend during the
year - (Opening Value of Investment + Additicnal
Investment during the year) / Opening Value of
Investment + (Additional Investment during the
vear - Dividend during the year)/2 ]

Note:

(i} The reduction in the debt service coverage ratio is mainly due to major long term borrowings principal
repayments due during the year as compared to higher principal repayments in last year

(i) The reduction in ROE, Net profit ratio & ROCE is mainly on account of fower profitability due to lower refining

margins prevelant in the international markets.

(iii} Mainly due to higher profits reported by Joint Venture, Indian Addtives Limited.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION EXMITED
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 44 : OTHER DISCLOSURES

1 Chennai Petrolesrm Corporation Limited {(CPCL) had Cauvery Basin Refinery (CBR) in Nagapattinam with 1 MMTPA capacity which
was not in operation since 01,04.2019 due to implementation of BS- 1V specifications and in the absence of secondary treatment
facilities at CBR.

Further to the investment and in-principle approval by the Beard of Directors of CPCL and EOCL, approval for implementation of
the 9 MMTPA Cauvery Basin Refinery cum Petrochemical complex at the CBR location in Nagapattinam through formation of IV
Company amangst 10CL, CPCL and with seed investors with initial seed share capital invested by Finandial Institutions pending
finalization of financial/strategic /Public Investors was accerded by IOCL Board on 29,09,2022, The existing CPCL |and on 618
acres {carrying value Rs 10,67 Cr} at CBR is proposed to be leased to CBRPL after obtaining necessary statutory approvals.

The Joint Venture Company, Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrachemicals Lid {CBRPL} was incorporated on 06th Jan 2023 with
Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (CPCL) and its parent compeny viz. Indian Oil Corporation Limited {IOCL} each holding
25% equity shares, and balance 50% by other seed investors.

The capital structure and project cost of the 9MMTPA Refinery project were revised and approved by the Board of CPCL and IOCL
in their meeting held on 20th Feb, 2024 and 28th Mar, 2024 respectively. In the same meetings , appraval was accorded to
retain the existing capital structure of CBRPL with CPCL holding 25%, 10CL helding 25%, and other seed equity investors holding
50% shali continue till approval is obtained from CCEA, to ensure the continuation of Pre-Project activities, like Site enabling
activities etc,. Subsequently, On 25th Sept 2024, DIPAM approved the revised capital structure of IV formation (CPCL25% and
I0CL75%} based on which fresh PIB/CCEA application was submitted by IOCL on 25th Sept 2024 (¢ MoPNG,

As per CPCL & 1OCL Soard of Directors approval ang Joint Venture agreement entered between CPCL, 1GCL and other seed
investors on 22nd Nov 2022, the expenditure incurred by CPCL on behalf of the Joint Venture shall be considered as CPCL's
contribution towards share capital or Quasi-Equity Instruments or as may be decided later as permissible by Applicable faw. Till
the receipt of CCEA approval for investment, the actual expenditure and the associated liabilitles incurred on the preject as at
the year end, an amount of Rs 1320.10 Cr, Rs 14.98 Cr (2024: Rs 1102.76 Cr and Rs 18.77 Cr) respectively, has been
considered as Asset/ Liabikity inctuded in dispasal group held for Transfer. This group consists of Land ameunting Rs 205.66 Cr
{662.85 acres of freehcld land), Licenscr f EPCM fees, construction period expenses, etc., and liability for capital expenditure.
Finance cost allocation for the year towards the praject Rs 60.49 Cris included under "Assets included in disposal group held for
transfer” (2024 Rs 47.78 Cr as part of 51.No.3 of Nete -8B shown as claim recoverable is reclassified as part of aliocated cost and
regrouped undar “Assets included in disposal group held for transfer” ).

The capital commitment as at 31st March 2025 in respect of CBRPL i5 Rs, 2270.94 Cr {2024: Rs5.2350,324 Cr) not forming part of
Capital Commitment disclosure in Note 32,

The Board of CBRPL in the meeting held on 23.04.2025 has approved infusion of funds through share warrants by sharehelders
and the same is in process.

2 The Company has refineries at two [ocations viz., Manali and Magapattinam {Cauvery Sasin Refinery - CBR). The operations of
the CBR unit have been stopped from 01.04.201%. Accerdingly, the value in use of the CBR unit was negative and the
recoverable value of the assets was reviewed and it was estimated that there would not be any recoverable value for the same
and impairment loss was recogrised.Majority of the Assets have been dismantled and scrapped. Impairment provisior Rs, 92.47
crore is centinued in respect of the batance Assets which have not been dismantied, Some of the facilities continue to be used for
storage of crude and transportation to Manali refinery ti§i previous year,

During the year, the crude inventoery stored in CBR has been completely evacuated and processed in Manali refinery.

3 Consequent to the Michaung cyclone in December 2023
(#) During the year, company has received an insurance claim of Rs 4.49 crore under Public liability Act policy towards
contribution made to Tamilnadu State Disaster Management Autherity for immediate relief of Jocal community.
(ii} Further, the company has aiso lodged a cfaim of Rs 19.73 crore under Caomprehensive General Liability insurance towards
various rehabiditation activities, which would be reckoned based on settlement of claim.
(iii} The Company is in the process of assessing and lodging insurance claims in respect of restoration costs of the Company's
Property, Plant & Equipments and stores & spares

4 (i} The Tamilnadu Pellution Controt Board (TMPCB) has passed &n order in February 2025 levying environmental compensation of

Rs 73.68 crore for the environmental and socio-economic damages alleged to be caused due to the il spill eccurred during
Michaung cyclone in December 2023.
CPCL has contested the levy by TNPCB and interim stay has been granted by The National Green Tribunal {NGT) in March 2025
with condition to deposit/ Furnish Bank Guarantee In respect of 50 % of the portion of demand specified as environmental
damage in the aforesaid order amounting to Rs.18.12 crore till further proceedings.Subsequently , the company has complied
with the same by submitting a Bank guarantee of R¢ 19.12 Crore on 15.04.2025.

(i) Based on the orders passed by the National Green Tribunal (NGT} pursuant to suo metu proceedings

(a) An amount of 5 crore has been levied as “no-fault liability”, and the same has been paid and duly acceunted under head
Note 27.1 -SL.No 19 - Polluticn centrol expenses, pertaining to Nagapattinam locatien,.

(b} TNPCB had raised demand amounting to 6,24 crore towards environmental compensation , which was accounted in the
previous year under head Note 27.1 -SL.No 19 - Poflution contrel expense. The same is being contested before the National
Green Tribunal and NGT has granted an interim stay on the condition that CPCL shall depesit 50% of the environmental
compensation representing Rs 3.12 Crore .The company has continued with the liahility of Rs 6,24 Crin the books of accounts,

5 CPCL sponsors palytechnic college, for wnich twenty acres of land of the company has been leased to the CPCL Educational Trust
for a period of 50 years.




6 The company operates only in a single segment viz. downstream petroleum sector. As such reporting is done on a single
segment basis.

Segment Reporting

The Company has “Petroleum Products” as single reportable segment

Information about major customers

Company’s significant revenues are derived from sales to oil marketing companies which is 96.47% and §6.78% of the
Company's sales related to petroleum products for the year erding March 31, 2025 & March 31, 2024 respectively.

No customer {exciuding oil marketing companies mentioned above} for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
centributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue

Information about geographical areas:

The company operates solely within India, with all operations and sales confined to the domestic market and we denot own any
assets other than in india . However, CPClL, engages in exporting specific petrofeum products such as H5D, Naphtha, and LOBS
when [ocal demand is exceeded by supply. These exports are facilitated through Indian Qil Corporation, with IOCL acting as the
exporter and CPCL playing a supporting role as a manufacturer. CPCL's contribution to exports as a supporting manufacturer
stands at 11.68%, for F,Y 2024-25 and 12% for F.Y 2023-24 of Revenue from customers

Revenue from major products .
The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue from continuing operations from its major products:

Threshold Limit of 10% of total turaover of each preduct is considered for reporting revenue from major products

Particulars F.Y 2024-25 |F.Y 2023-24
High speed Diesel (HSD} 37685.49 43407.27
Motor Spirit (M5} 10046,05 11413.55
Aviation Turbine Fuel (ATF} 5482.84 7829.25

7 There are no other significant subsequent events that require adjustments or disclesures in the financial statements as at
balance sheet date, other than those disclosed above.




8 Other disclosures as required under Schedule IE1 to the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished to the extent applicable:

(i) Title deeds of Immovable properties not held In the name of company
Gross carrying value (Rs. in €rores) Whether title
deed holderisa
promoeter;
. Under
tht:::alzt Title deeds e:rg::; :fr Property |Disput{ Reason for not being
Balance 31st Mar 31st Mar Acres held in the promoter/ held since e held in the name of the
sheet 2025 2024 name of # director or which date (;25)/ company
employee of
promotar/
director
The Tamlnadu
Government has allotted
PPE - the Jand Ffor  which
" " 40.65 " permission to enter upen
Fr‘r-a::gld Nil*¥ Nil aeres CPCL Not applicable | 26.04.19%0 No the land dated 26.04.1950
is  available. However
assignment deed is not yet
executed.
GO No, §05 dt 31.05.1984
PPE - directs to handover the
50,93 . possession of property to
Frf::doid 0.18 0.18 seres CPCL Not applicable 31.065.1984 No Company. However,
assignment deed is not yet
executed.
The Tamiinadu
Government has allotted
the land for which
PPE « 95.31 03.12.2001 permission to enter upon
Freehold Nil* it aéres CPCL Not applicable & No  [the land dated 03.12,2001
Land 20.02.2009 & 20.02.2009 in respect of
95,31 acres, However,
assignment deed is not yet
axecuted,

* Value is yet to be determined by Government of Tamilnadu.
# Subject to reasons mentioned,

{ii) The company has following transactions/balances with companies, struek off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 /Section 560 of

Companies Act, 1956.

Name of the struck off

Nature of transactions
with struck off

Balance outstanding as at
current period

Relationship with
the struck off

Balance outstanding
as at previous perlod

Relationship with the

company company Rs in Crore campany Rs In Crore struck off company
Citi Computer Llinik {P) Ltd Trade payables 0.01 -
Skpei Engineering Works
private Limited Trade payabiles 0,02 .02
SHA Hydratslics Private
Lim'iteél' Trade payables 0.003 -
Not a related party Not a related party
Aspen Technology inc Trade payables 0.14 0.08
Argus media Trade payables - -
RBC BEARINGS PVT. LTD. Trade payables - -
Alltance aviation private -
lirnited Trade payables
The national sugar milis ltd| Customer Advances 0.004 0.004
Total 0.18 0.5




Details of Struck-off investors holding equity shares in the company
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Name of the struck |No of Shares held Paid up share No of Shares| Paid up share
off company capital (in ¥) held capital (in ¥)
Esthetic Finvest Private - -
Limited 2,700 27,000
Ingram Investments
Pvt. Ltd. 2,000 20,000 2,000 20,000
Salasar Securities Pvt = =
Ltd 200 2,000
Unickon Fincap Private
- - 1
Limited 1,278 2,780
Systems Sialjutmns Pvt. R _ 100 1,000

Note: The company does not have any relationship with the above mentioned struck-off companies
9 Previous year's comparative figures have been regrouped, reclassified and recast wherever necessary and the related disclosures

are included in the respective notes.

As per our Report of even date
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

W,
(H. Shankar) (RohitfKumar Agrawalja) (P.Shankar)
Partner Managing Director Direttor (Finance) v Company Secretary
DIN - 08845247 DINY;: 10048961 ACS -7624

Membership No. 208591
Place : Chennai
Date : 25-Apr-2025
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25t April 2025
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
M/s.Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (hereinatter referred as “the Company”, “the
Parent™), its Joint Ventures and an Associate which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 315t March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter collectively referred as “consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the considerations of the reports of other auditors with respect to the
Joint Ventures and the Associate, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements, give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as
amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs (financial position) of the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate as at
31t March 2025 and, its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of this report. We are independent of the Parent, its Joint Ventures and the
Associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

Head Office : Simpson's Building, 861, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600002
Branches : Mumbai | Bengaluru | Kochi | Kollam | Kozhikode



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 44.1 of the consolidated financial statements, which discusses
the implementation of Cauvery Basin Refinery cum Petrochemical Complex and the related
arrangements in funding the project. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters fbr the Parent

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the financial year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. :

Key Audit Matter as in Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements
of the Parent Company for the year ending 31%* March 2025.

Key Audit Matter
Measurement of Inventories (excluding stores and spares)

a. As at 31 March 2025; the value of | a. Wehave evaluated the appropriateness of
the methodology used to record the
physical quantity of stock.

| How it was addressed during audit

inventory (excluding stores and spares) is
Rs. 5,372.84 Crores. This constitutes
significant percentage of the total
inventory of the Company.

b. The inventories are initially measured by | b. We participated in the management’s
exercise to physically verify the
inventory at year end on a test check

volume by using various scientific /
technical parameters by the Company’s
in-house experts. basis.

c. Considering that the quantity is measured | ¢. In case of finished products and

using various technical / scientific intermediate products which involve

parameters and the valuation is based on
these quantities computed and allocation
of cost based on specific parameters
which includes significant amount of
management judgements and estimates,
hence it is considered as a key audit

significant amount of measurement
including the use of scientific and
technical parameters and conversion
metrics, we tested the same on sample
basis and compared the book quantities
with derived values to ensure its accuracy

matter. and independently validated the input
data from external sources of
(Please refer Note No 9 and Material information.
Accounting Policies in Note No 1A, Sub
Note 7)
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Key Audit Matter

How it was addressed during audit

d. In case of primary raw material i.e., crude

oil, we have test checked the correctness
of the computation of the cost.

In case of intermediate products (stock-
in-process) and finished products,
we have verified the methodology of
valuation including consistency in the
manner of allocation of costs within the
joint products and assumptions used.

We have compared the cost vis-a-vis net
realisable value of the inventory and
tested the requirements, if any, for the
write down of the inventories to net
realisable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

a. The major items in Company’s Property

Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’) constitutes
substantial component of the overall
Assets of the Company.

. Considering the complexities of the PPE,
its  ownership, technical
estimates required for determining the life
and challenges in physical verification,
we have considered PPE as a key audit

ensuring

matter.

Review of the process of maintenance of
PPE Register, additions and disposals of
PPE and process of physical verification.

Review of the title deeds of immovable
properties.

On a sample basis, vouched for the
additions and disposals of PPE during the
year and evaluated the control
environment thereto.

Reviewed the exercise of physical
verification of PPE by the management.

Provisions (excluding employee benefit related) and Contingent Liabilities

a. The Company has disclosed contingent

liabilities in Note No. 33 B, relating to
dues disputed with statutory authorities
including Central Excise, Customs,
Service Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and
Services Tax, Income Tax and other
statutes.

. The above contingent liabilities related to
disputes under various statutes which
require significant amount of judgement

a.

Assessment of the process and relevant
controls implemented to identify legal
and tax litigations and pending
administrative proceedings.

Assessment of assumptions used in
estimating the possible outcome of such
disputed claims / cases against the
Company based on records and judicial
precedents made available.
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Key Audit Matter How it was addressed during audit
to determine possible outcome which
may or may not have a financial impact;
and hence disclosed unless there is
possibility of outflow of economic
resources is considered remote.

c. The assessment of the risks associated | ¢ Inspection of the key relevant

with the litigations is based on complex documentation and inquiry with the legal
assumptions which require the use of and tax departments regarding the status
significant ~ judgement, and  such of the most significant disputes.

judgement relates primarily to the
assessment of the uncertainties connected | d. Analysis of opinion received from the
to the prediction of the outcome of the experts wherever available.

proceedings and to the adequacy of the
disclosures in the standalone financial | e. Review of the adequacy of the
statements. Because of the judgement disclosures in the notes to the standalone
required, the materiality of such financial statements.

litigations and the complexity of the
assessment process, the areas is a key | I. Assessed the disclosures made in the

matter of our audit. financial statements.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements include corresponding financial information that is for
the year ending 31 March 2024 which has been audited by another auditor. The predecessor
auditor’s report dated 24" April 2024 contains an unmodified opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

The consolidated financial statements include the share of net profit of Rs.58.83 Crores and
total comprehensive income of Rs. 36.95 Crores for the year ended 31% March 2025, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of two Joint Ventures and the
Associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these Joint Ventures and the Associate, and
our report in terms of Section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid two Joint
Ventures and the Associate, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The Parent Company did not have the minimum number of Independent Directors required in
terms of the provisions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, for the financial year, on the
Board. Further, the Parent Company also does not have any Woman Director on the Board, as
required by the above regulations, from 1% May 2024. We are informed that the appointment
of Independent Director and Woman Director is in consideration of the Government of India
as on the date of this report.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Other Information

The Parent’s management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises of financial performance highlights, Board’s Report including
annexures to the Board’s Report and other information included in the Annual Report but does
not include the standalone and consolidated financial statements and our report thereon. The
matters to be included in the Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance for appropriate action and if left uncorrected, bring the material misstatement to
attention of the user.

Responsibilities of Parent’s Management and those charged with Governance for the
consolidated financial statements

The Parent’s Management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the
Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its Joint Ventures and the Associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Parent, its Joint Ventures and the Associate and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the management and Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid. |
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
Parent, its Joint Ventures and the Associate are responsible for assessing the Parent, its Joint
Ventures and the Associate ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Parent, its Joint Ventures and the Associate
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors of the
Parent, its Joint Ventures and the Associate are also responsible for overseeing the Parent’s, its
Joint Ventures’ and the Associate’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overtide of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act
2013, we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Parent has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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d. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Parent, its Joint Ventures
and the Associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and contents of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

f. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Parent, its Joint Ventures and the Associate to
express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements and such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

b)

d)

g)

. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and the

consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other
financial information of the Joint Ventures and the Associate as certified by the management
of the Associate as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, the reports of the other auditors
of the Joint Ventures and the Associate and representation made by the management of the
Associate.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
information.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Parent Company, being a Government Company, in terms of Notification No.
G.S.R463(E.) dated 5™ June 2015; issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, the provisions of section 164(2) of the Act does not apply. On the
basis of the report of the statutory auditors of the Joint Ventures and the Associate, none
of the directors of the Joint Ventures and the Associate are disqualified as on 31% March
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate
incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate
report in Annexure 1.

The Parent Company, being a Government Company, the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company as per the notification of MCA in G.S.R. 463(E)
dated 5™ June 2015 and therefore the reporting requirement under Section 197(16) of the
Act does not arise.

Page 8 of 14




h)

ii.

iil.

1v.

On the basis of the report of the statutory auditors of one of the Joint Venture Companies,
the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of the Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to the year which is
subject to the approval of members at the respective ensuing annual general meetings.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its consolidated financial statements in Note No. 33B.

The Parent Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards for material foreseeable losses, if any, on the long-term contracts
including derivative contracts to the standalone financial statements. With respect to
the Joint Ventures and the Associate, the entity does not have any long term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(i) The Management of the Parent Company, based on the report of other auditors of
Joint Ventures and the Associate incorporated in India, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent or its
Joint Ventures or the Associate to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Parent or its Joint Ventures and the Associate (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i))The management of the Parent Company, based on the report of other auditors of
Joint Ventures and the Associate incorporated in India, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Parent or its Joint Ventures or the Associate from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention or other auditors’ attention or
that of the management of the Joint Ventures and the Associate that has caused us to
believe that above representations under sub- clause iv (a) and iv(b) contain any
material misstatement.
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vi.

In case of the Parent Company, the final dividend for the previous year ending
31t March 2024 has been paid within the timeline prescribed under Section 123 of the
Act. Refer Note 12 (B) and Note 16 (C) of the consolidated financial statements for
the details of unclaimed dividend. The Parent Company has proposed dividend as given
in Note 29, which is subject to approval by Members in the Annual General Meeting.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, and that performed by the
respective auditors of the Joint Ventures and the Associate, which are companies
incorporated in India and whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
the Parent Company, the Joint Ventures and the Associate have used accounting
software for maintaining their books of account which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and
respective auditors of the above referred Joint Ventures and the Associates did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Further, in case of the
Parent Company and based on the audit report of the Joint Ventures and the Associate,
we report that the audit trail has been preserved as required.

. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order” / “CARO”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s
report, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
CARO report issued by the auditor of its Joint Ventures and the Associate included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, to which reporting under
CARO is applicable, provided to us by the Management of the Company and based on
the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO reports
by the respective component auditors and provided to us, we report that the auditors of
such companies have reported qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO reports
as referred in ‘Annexure A’.

For R.G.N. Price & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

F

K Venkatakrishnan
Partner

- 0027858

Membership No.208591
UDIN: 25208591BMOGSM7063

Place: Chennai
Date : 25™ April 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report:

Referred to paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditor’s report of even date, to the members of
Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (“the Parent”) on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 315 March 2025.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Parent the books
of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, and based on the consideration of reports of auditors in respect of
Joint Ventures and the Associate, we state that the adverse remarks made by the auditor of the
Joint Venture in their report on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 of the companies

included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are:

Sl. Name CIN Joint Clause

No. Ventures / number of

Associate CARO
report
which is

adverse

1 National ~ Aromatics | U11101TN1989PLC017403 | Joint Venture | Clause i(c),
and  Petrochemicals Clause xvii
Corporation Limited and Clause

Xix

2 Indian Additives | U24294TN1989PLC017705 | Joint Venture | Clause vii(b)

Limited and Clause
xi(c)

3 Cauvery U23200TN2023PLC158051 | Associate Clause xvii
Refinery and Clause
Petrochemicals Xix
Limited

For R.G.N. Price & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
FRN:.002785S

K Venkatakrishnan
Partner

Membership No.208591

Place: Chennai
Date : 25™ April 2025

Page 11 of 14




Annexure 1 referred to in Clause (f) of Paragraph 2 of Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31% March 2025:

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (the Company’) as of 31* March 2025,
in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company together
with its two Joint Ventures and an Associate, which are incorporated in India, for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal controls with reference to Financial Statements criteria
established by the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate which
are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of Internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk.
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The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatements of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Parent’s internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements. Meaning of Internal
Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A Company’s Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s Internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company, Joint Ventures and the Associate; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s, its Joint Ventures’ and the Associate’s assets that could have
a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate which are incorporated in
India, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control systems with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at
315 March 2025, based on the internal controls with reference to Financial Statements criteria
established by the Parent and its Joint Ventures and the Associate as aforesaid, considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements in so far as it relates to standalone financial statements of two Joint Ventures and
one Associate which are incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such Companies incorporated in India.

For R.G.N. Price & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0027858

K Venkatakrishnan
Partner
Membership No.: 208591

UDIN : 25208591BMOGSM7063

Place: Chennai
Date : 25™ April 2025
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025 Zin Crore
” Note As at As at
Particulars No, 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
I ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 7289.10 7467.56
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2.1 208.04 210.11
(c) Intangible assets 3 35.88 38.42
(d) Intangible assets under development 3.1 - -
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
-Equity Investment in Joint Ventures and Associates 4 279.99 239.80
-Other Investments 4.1 0.11 0.11
(ii) Loans 5 140.68 117.75
(iii) Other Financial Assets 6 0.63 0.58
(f) Income tax assets (Net) 7 57.45 28.88
(g) Other non-current assets 8 161.43 139.90
8173.31 8243.11
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 6493.10 7830.91
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 194.75 461.55
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 183.97 0.17
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 191.32 94.08
(iv) Loans b 25.50 22.26
(v) Other Financial Assets 6 132.74 123.39
(c) Other current assets 8 350.20 453.04
7571.58 8985.40
(3) Assets included in disposal group held for transfer 44,1 1320.10 1102.76
TOTAL ASSETS 17064.99 18331.27
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 13 148.91 148.91
(b) Other Equity 14 8057.74 8672.01
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 158.12 1334.70
(ii) Lease Liabilities 8.95 16.81
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 6.22 6.35
(b) Provisions 17 12.46 11.08
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 7 881.45 814.31
(d) Other non-current liabilities i8 210.42 19.49
1277.62 2202.74
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 2942.32 1427.05
(i) Lease liabilities 8.04 7.34
(iii) Trade payables 20
-Total qutstandtng dues of micro and small 10.33 13.18
enterprises
-Total outstandlng_ dues of creditors other than micro 3153.98 4269.33
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 473.94 522.75
(b) Other current liabilities 18 463.93 513.96
(c) Provisions 17 513.20 535.23
7565.74 7288.84
(3) Liability included in disposal group held for transfer 44.1 14.98 18.77
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17064.99 18331.27
Material Accounting Policies, Estimates & Judgements 1A & 1B
Accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial statements 2-45

As per our attached Report of even date
For R.G.N. Price & Co
Cha ed Accountants
(FRI 02785S)

H. Shankar)
naging Director
DIN - 08845247

K. Vi takrishnan
Partner
Membership No. 208591

Place : Chennai
Date : 25-Apr-2025
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

¥ in Crore

Particulars

Note No.

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
I. Revenue from operations 21 71049.95 79272.54
II. Other income 22 25.24 10.47
III. Total Income (I + II) 71075.19 79283.01
IV. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 23 55347.72 60402.61
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 206.96 481.77
Changes in Inventories (Finished Goods and Work-In Progress) 24 855.62 (831.68)
Excise Duty 11693.93 12886.81
Employee benefits expense 25 464.68 546.71
Finance costs 26 244,52 223.28
Depreciation and Amortisation expense on:
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 602.95 602.31
b) Intangible Assets 3 3.44 3.32
606.39 605.63
Impairment losses / (gain) on Property, Plant & Equipment 0.32 -
Other expenses 27 1465.22 1310.72
Total Expenses (IV) 70885.36 75625.85
Profit before Exceptional items and tax
V Gt~ 1) P 189.83 3657.16
VI Share of Profit of Joint Ventures 58.83 36.53
VII Exceptional Items = =
VIII Profit before tax (V + VI + VII) 248.66 3693.69
IX Tax expense: 7
(1) Current tax (32.57) 898.89
[Includes ¥ (32.57) Crore (2024: Nil) relating to prior years]
(2) Deferred tax 67.14 49.73
X Profit for the year from continuing operations (VIII - IX) 214.09 2745.07
XI Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -
XII Tax expense of discontinued operations = =
XIIT Profit from Discontinued operations(after tax) _ _
(XI - XII)
XIV Profit for the year (X + XIII) 214.09 2745.07
XV Other Comprehensive Income 28
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (13.73) 3.81
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 4.38 (0.98)
profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XIV + XV)
XVI (Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for 204.74 2747.90
the year)
XVII Earning per equity share:
(1) Basic (%) 30 14.38 184.34
(2) Diluted (%) 14.38 184.34
Face Value per Equity Share (%) 10.00 10,00
Material Accounting Policies, Estimates & Judgements 1A & 1B
Accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial statements 2-45

As per our attached Report of even date
For R.G.N. Price & Co

Chartered Accountants
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

(a) Equity Share Capital

& in Crore

No of Equity | Subscribed, | Changes in [Restated Total paid-up equity
shares of called-up and | Equity Share |balance at| Changes in | share capital balance at
¥ 10 each |paid-up share|Capital due to|the equity the end of the reporting

Issued, capital prior period |beginning capital period
subscribed errors of during the
and fully paid reparting year
period
At 31 March 2024 148911400 148.91 - 148,91 - 148.91
At 31 March 2025 148911400 148.91 - 148.91 - 148.91
(b) Other equity
&in Crore
Reserve and Surplus
Securities Insurance Capital Capital Retained General Total
Premium Reserve Redemption reserve earnings reserve o
reserve
At 01 April 2023 250.04 15.00 1,000.00 0.09 596.30 4464.74 6326.17
Profit for the Year - - - - 2745.07 £ 2745.07
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of gain or loss on defined benefit - - - - - 2,83 2.83
plan
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2745.07 2.83 2747.90
Appropriation towards insurance reserve - 14,00 = = (14,00) - N
Appropriation towards Final Dividend - - - N (402.06) = (402.086)
Transfer to General Reserve - - - - (1878.24) 1,878.24 -
At 31 March 2024 250.04 29.00 1000.00 0.09 1047.07 6345.81 8672.01
% in Crore
Reserve and Surplus
Securities Insurance Capital Capital Retained General Total
Premium Reserve Redemption reserve earnings reserve
reserve
At 01 April 2024 250,04 29.00 1000.00 0.09 1047.07 6345.81 8672.01
Profit for the Year - - E = 214,09 = 214,09
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of gain or loss on defined benefit - - - - - (9.35) (9.35)
plan
Total comprehensive income - - - - 214.09 (9.35) 204.74
Appropriation towards insurance reserve 11.00 - (11.00) = -
Appropriation towards Final Dividend 2 - - = (819.01) = (819.01)
Transfer to General Reserve - - - - (88.07) 88.07 -
At 31 March 2025 250.04 40.00 1000.00 0.09 343.08 6424.53 8057.74

As per our attached Report of even date

For R.G.N. Price & Co
Chartered Accountants

K. Venkatakrishnan
Partner
Membership No. 208591

Place : Chennai
Date : 25-Apr-2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(H. Shankar)
Managing Director

DIN -

08845247
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irector (Finange)
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DI

S b

(P.Shankar)
Company Secretary
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

Zin Crore
Particulars For the Year ended Fer the Year ended
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1 Profit Before Tax 248.66 3693.69
2 Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 602,55 602.31
Impairment losses / {gain) on Property, Plant & Equipment 0.32 -
Unclaimed / Unspent Fabilities written back {0.56) {1.24)
Loss/{gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipments (net) 21.96 5.08
Ameriisation on intangible assets 3.44 3.32
Amortisation of Government Grants (8.39) (0.62)
Provision for Probable Contingencies (net) 12.08 9,30
E;c:lfsmn for Capital work-in-progress / Doubtful Debts written . 1.30
Pravision for Doubtful Debts, Advances and Claims - 1.54
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans through OCI {13.24) 3.79
Provision for Stores (net) 0.72 0.38
Interest income (17.42) (10.43)
Finance costs 244,52 223.28
Share of Joint Ventures {58.83) (36.53)
3 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (1+2} 1036.21 4495,17
4 Change in Working Capital:
{Excluding Cash & Cash equivalents}
Trade Receivables & Other receivables 215.30 (452.75)
Inventories 1337.08 (1852.77)
Trade and Other Payables (1223.83) 1415.42
Pravisions (20.65) 12,67
Change in Working Capital 307.50 (882.43)
5 Cash Generated From Operations (3+4) 1344,11 3612.74
6 Less: Taxes paid {8.26) 918.49
7 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (5-6) 1352.37 2694,25
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment / Transfer of 0.30 0.27
Assets ' '
(I;uwT;/a:sesg: ;;?E?S-Yérsrsr;‘;fnd equipment & Intangible Assets / (685.49) (602.68)
Interest income received 17.42 10.43
Dividend Income on investments 18.28 2.78
Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Investing Activities: (649.49) (589.20)
C Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings 370.40 "
Repayments of Long-Term Borrowings {Including lease liability) (838.29) (57.06)
Proceeds from/{Repayments of) Short-Term Borrowings 1002.94 (1424.29)
Interest paid (235.12) (222.70)
Dividends paid (819.01) (402.06}
Net Cash Generated/(Used) from Financing Activities: (519.08) (2106.11)
D Net Change in Cash & cash equivalents {A+B+C) 183.80 (1.06)
E-1 Cash & cash eguivalents as at end of the year 183,97 0.i7
E-2 Cash & cash eguivalents as at beginning of the year 0.17 1.23
NET CHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (E 1- E 2) 183.80 (1.06}
Notes:

1. Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using Indirect method as per Indian Accounting Standard -7 Statement of Cash Flows .




Reconciliation between opening and closing balances of financial liabilites with the net cash generated /(Used) from financing activities:

2 in Crore
Financial Liabilities Non-cash Ch
As at Interest Foreign As at
31.03.2023 | Cash Flow L:::::y Accrued but exchange 31.03.2024
not due movement
Berrowings (Including lease liabilities) 4259.60 (1580.33) 7.05 99.58 - 2785.90
Non-cash Changes
" T As at Interest Foreign As at
Flnancial Lisbiliies 31.03.2024 | CAshFlow | Lease | 4 ccried but exchange 31.03.2025
¥ not due movement
Borrowings (Including lease liabilities) 2785.90 248.83 16.36 66.34 - 3117.43
As per our attached Report of even date
For R.G.N. Price & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 7858
g,,/ N P b
? L
K. VenKat@krishnan (H. Shankar) (Rohif Kumar Agrawala) . (P.Shankar)

anaging Director rector (Fina Company Secretary
DIN - 08845247 IN)- 1004896 ACS -7624

Partner
Membership No. 208591

Place : Chennai
Date : 25-Apr-2025
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1.2,

1.3

1.4.

1.4.1.

CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE-1A: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
I. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consoclidated financial statements of "Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited” {“the Group”
or “CPCL") are for the year ended March 31, 2025,

The Group is a public limited Group incorporated and domiciled in India. Its shares are listed on
Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange in India. The registered office of the Group is
located at 536, Anna Salai, Teynampet, Chennai- 600018. {CIN — L40101TN1965G0OI005389)

CPCL together with its joint ventures and associates is hereinafter referred to as Group.

CPCL is in the business of refining crude oil to produce & supply various petroleum products,
manufacture and sale of lubricating oil additives

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors passed in its meeting held on April 25, 2025.

Il. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation and statement of compliance / Consolidated financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and in accordance with the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules and other
relevant provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, as amended from time to time, and to the
extent applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
o Derivative financial instruments,
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer serial no. 15 of material
accounting pelicies regarding financial instruments) and
o Plan assets related to employee benefits (refer serial no. 12 of material accounting policies
regarding employee benefits)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is Parent and its Joint Ventures
and Associate’s presentation and functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest
Crores {(up to two decimals) except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Investment in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.




A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement wherehy the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous cansent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are
similar to those necessary to determine control over the entities.

The Group's investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in
the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the
associate or joint venture. Any change in OCl of those investees is presented as part of the
Group’s OCl. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity then
discontinues recognising its share of further losses, Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports
profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the
profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown
on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The financial statements of the associate and
joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to
recognize an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each
reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment
in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as ‘Share of profit of an
associate and a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the assaciate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.




2.1,

2.1.1.

2.1.2.

2.1.3.

2.1.4.

2.1.5.

2.2,

2.2.1.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

2.3.

2.3.1.

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE} and Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE} are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), except freehold land which are carried
at historical cost.

Technical know-how / license fee relating to plants/facilities and specific software that are integral
part of the related hardware are capitalized as part of cost of the underlying asset,

Spare Parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Group intends to
use these for a period exceeding 12 months.

Environment responsibility related obligations directly attributable to projects is recognized as
project cost on the basis of progress of project or on actual incurrence, whichever is higher,

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its PPE
recognized as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of the PPE.

Capital Work in Progress {CWIP)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction {including a project) is carried at cost under
CWIP,

Construction Period Expenses

Revenue expenses exclusively atiributable to projects incurred during construction period are
capitalized. However, such expenses in respect of capital facilities being executed along with the
production/operations simultaneously and where the expenses are not attributable exclusively are
charged to revenue.

Borrowing cost incurred during construction period on loans specifically borrowed and utilized for
projects is capitalized on quarterly basis up to the date of capitalization.

Borrowing cost, if any, incurred on General Borrowings used for projects is capitalized at the other
than those mentioned above weighted average cost. The amount of such borrowings is determined
on guarterly basis after setting off the amount of internal accruals.

Capital Stores

Capital Stores are valued at weighted average cost. Impairment is recognized for likely diminution
in value, wherever required.

Intangible Assets & Amortisation
Technical know-how / license fee relating to production process and process design are recognized

as Intangible Assets and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the underlying plant/
facility.




2.3.2.

2.3.3.

2.3.4.

2.3.5.

2.3.6.

2.3.7.

2.4,

2.4.1.

2.4.2.

Cost incurred on computer software/licenses purchased/developed resulting in future economic
benefits, other than specific software that are integral part of the related hardware, are capitalized
as Intangible Asset and amortised over a period of three years beginning from the month in which
such software/ licenses are capitalized. However, where such computer software/ license is under
development or is not yet ready for use, accumulated cost incurred on such items are accounted
as “Intangible Assets Under Development”.

Right of ways with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment annually at
the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible Assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
Intangible Assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible Assets are amortised over the useful life on straight line basis and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the Intangible Asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible Asset are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

On transition to [nd AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
Intangible Assets recognized as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets,

Amortisation is charged pro-rata on monthly basis on. assets, from/upto the month of
capitalization/ sale, disposal/ or earmarked for disposal.

Depreciation

Cost of PPE {net of residual value) excluding freehold land is depreciated on straight-line method
as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act except in case of the following assets:

A. Useful life based on technical assessment

o 25 years for solar power plant
e In other cases, like Spare Parts etc. (2-30 years)

B. In case of immovable assets constructed on leasehold land, useful life as per Schedule-1l to the
Act or lease period of land {including renewable/ likely renewable period), whichever is lower,
and

The Group depreciates components of the main asset that are significant in value and have
different useful lives as compared to the main asset separately. The Group depreciates spares over
the life of the spare from the date it is available for use.

Depreciation is charged pro-rata on monthly basis on assets, from/up to the month of
capitalization/ sale, disposal/ or classified to Asset held for disposal.




2.4.3.

2.4.4,

2.4.5.

3.1,

3.1.1.

3.1.2.

3.1.3.

3.2,

Residual value is determined considering past experience and generally the same is between 0 to
5% of cost of assets except:
e in case of catalyst with noble metal content, residual value is considered based on the cost
of metal content

PPE costing upto 5,000/~ per item are depreciated fully in the year of capitalization. Further,
spares, components like catalyst excluding noble metal content and major overhaul/ inspection are
alsc depreciated fully over their respective useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Leases as Lessee (Assets taken on lease)

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value
of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease fiabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made.

Right-of-use Assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use (ROU) assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e,, the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Short-term leases and [eases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
Property, Plant and Equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term or another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the
lessee’s benefit. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered of low value and is not intended for sublease.

Leases as Lessor (assets given on lease)




3.2.1.

6.1

6.2

6.3.

When the Group acts as lessar, it determines at the commencement of the lease whether it is a
finance lease or an operating lease. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the benefit derived from the asset given on lease,

All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment in
the lease. Principal component of the lease receipts is adjusted against outstanding receivables and
interest income is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease to the net
investment.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use.
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of 15 years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifteenth year.
To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts,
the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of the qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of such asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended when
active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted other than on temporary basis
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during such extended periods. All other borrowing
costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the same are
incurred.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at spot exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies {such as cash, receivables, payables etc.)
outstanding at the end of reporting period, are translated at exchange rates prevailing on that date.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency, {such as PPE, intangible assets, equity
investments, capital/ revenue advances other than expected to be settled in cash etc)) are
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
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Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or
settlement are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss either under the head foreign
exchange fluctuation or interest cost to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs
as the case may be.

Inventories

Raw Materials & Stock-in-Process

Raw materials including crude oil are valued at cost determined on weighted average basis and net
realisable value, whichever is lower, Stock in Process is valued at raw materials cost-plus processing
cost as applicable and net realisable value, whichever is lower. Crude oil in Transit is valued at cost

and net realisable value, whichever is lower.

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges,
recognized in OC, in respect of the purchases of raw materials.

Finished Products and Stock-in-Trade

Finished Products and Stock in Trade are valued at cost determined on ‘First in First Out” basis and
net realisable value, whichever is Jower. Cost of Finished Products internally produced is
determined based on raw materials cost and processing cost.

imported products in transit are valued at cost and net realisable value whichever is lower.

Stores and Spares

Stores and Spares (including Chemicals) are valued at weighted average cost. In case of declared
surplus/obsolete stores and spares, provision is made for likely loss on sale/disposal and charged
to revenue. Further, provision is made to the extent of 97 per cent of the value of non-moving
inventory of stores and spares {excluding maintenance, repair & operation items, pumps and
compressors) which have not moved for six years and above.

Stores and Spares in transit are valued at cost.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Show-cause notices issued by various Government Authorities are generally not considered as
obligations. When the demand notices are raised against such show cause notices and are disputed

by the Group, these are classified as disputed obligations.

The treatment in respect of disputed obligations is as under:




8.2.3.

8.2.4.

9.1,

9.2

9.3.

9.4.

a) a provision is recognized in respect of present obligations where the outflow of resources is
probable as per 8.1 above. :

b} all other cases are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the possibility of outflow of
resources is remote.

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities/assets are disclosed on the  basis of judgment of the
management/independent experts and reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reflect the current
management estimate.

REVENUE
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it
typicaily controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In
determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the Group considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration
and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Revenue from the sale of petroleum products, petrochemical products, Crude and gas are
recognized at a point in time, generally upon delivery of the products

The Group has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the Group on its own account. This is
for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production,
irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the
Group an its own account, revenue includes excise duty,

However, Sales Tax/ Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Value Added Tax (VAT) is not received by
the Group on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the product by the seller
on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Variable consideration

The Group provides volume rebates to certain customers once the gquantity of products purchased
during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts
payable by the customer. The volume rebates/ cash discount give rise to variable consideration.

Claims {including interest on outstanding claims) are recognized at cost when there is reasonable
certainty regarding its uitimate collection. Insurance claims are recognised based on acceptance.

Claims on Petroleum Planning and Analysis Cell {Formerly known as Oil Coordination Committee) /
Government arising on account of erstwhile Administered Pricing Mechanism / notified schemes
are booked on acceptance in principle thereof. Such claims and provisions are booked on the basis
of available instructions /clarifications subject to final adjustment as per separate audit.
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Excise Duty

Excise duty is accounted on the basis of both, payments made in respect of goods cleared and
provision made for goods lying in stock. Value of stock includes excise duty payable / paid on
finished goods, wherever applicable.

Taxes On Income
Current Income Tax

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to applicable tax regufations which are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Employee Benefits
Short Term Benefits:

Short Term Employee Benefits are accounted for in the statement of Profit and Loss for the period
during which the services have been rendered.

Post-Employment Benefits and Other Long Term Employee Benefits:

The Group’s contribution to the Provident Fund is remitted to separate trusts established for this
purpose based on a fixed percentage of the eligible employee’s salary and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss/CWIP. Shortfall, if any, in the fund assets, based on the Government
specified minimum rate of return, is made good by the Group and charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss/CWIP.

The Group operates defined benefit plans for Gratuity, Post-Retirement Medical Benefits. The cost
of providing such defined benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method of actuarial
valuation made at the end of the year. Out of these plans, Gratuity and Post-Retirement Medical
Benefits are administered through respective Trusts.

Obligations on other long term employee henefits viz leave encashment and Long Service Awards
are provided using the projected unit credit method of actuarial valuation made at the end of the
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year. Out of these obligations, leave encashment obligations are funded through qualifying
insurance policies made with insurance companies.

The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme for Pension benefits for its employees and
the contribution is remitted to a separate Trust/Corporate NPS.

Remeasurements:

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately
in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other
Comprehensive Income {OCl} in the period in which it occurs. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Remeasurements in respect of other long-term benefits are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Government Grants
Grant relating to Assets (Capital Grants)

In case of grants relating to depreciable assets, the cost of the asset is shown at gross value and
grant thereon is treated as Deferred income which are recognized as "Other Operating Revenues”
usually in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period and in the proportion in which
depreciation is charged.

Grant related to Income {Revenue Grants)

Revenue grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the entity recognizes as expenses the related cost for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

The Group has treated waiver of duty under EPCG {Export Promotion Capital Goods) Scheme as
revenue grant as the condition of meeting the export obligations is a primary condition of availing
the grant as per the EPCG Scheme. The above grant is set up by recording the assets at gross value
and corresponding grant amount as deferred income. Such grant is recognized recognized in “Other
Operating Revenues” in proportion of export obligations actually fulfilled during the accounting
pericd.

Revenue grants are generally recorded under “Other Operating Revenues”, except some grants
which are netted off with the related expense,

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate or NIt interest rate, the effect of this
favourable interest is regarded as a government grant, The loan or assistance is initially recognized
and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the
initial carrying value of the [oan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as
per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities. Classification of the grant is made
considering the terms and condition of the grant i.e. whether grants relates to assets or otherwise,

Current Versus Non-Current Classification
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The Group uses twelve months period for determining current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Financial Instruments

15.1. Financial Assets

15.1.1.

15.1.2.

initial recognition and measurement

All Financial Assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition
of the Financial Asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, Financial Assets are classified in four categories:
e Financial Assets at amortised cost
e Debt Instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
o  Equity Instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVTOCI)
e Financial Assets and derivatives at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for coliecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest {SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR}
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit
or loss. Apart from the same, any income or expense arising from remeasurement of financial
assets measured at amortised cost, in accordance with Ind AS 109, is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt Instrument at FYTOCI

A ‘Debt Instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

The objective of the business madel is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

Debt Instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair Value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive
fncome {OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and
foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from the Equity to the Statement
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of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC!I Debt Instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Equity Instrument
Equity Investments at FYTOCI (Other than Joint Ventures and Associates)

All such equity investments are measured at fair value and the Group has made an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in Other Comprehensive Income.

There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of
investments.

Equity Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates at cost

Investments in Jeint Ventures and Associates are accounted for at cost in the financial statements
and the same are tested for impairment in case of any indication of impairment.

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the Group’s right to receive
dividend is established.

Debt Instruments and Derivatives at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for Debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criterfa for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.Debt
Instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income on such instruments has been
presented under interest income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the financial Assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Simplified Approach

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
Receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix te determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-fooking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Group estimates provision on
trade receivables at the reporting date.

General Approach
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-months
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-maonths ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Afl Financial Liahilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of liabilities subsequently
measured at amortised cost, they are measured net of directly attributable transaction cost. In case
of Financial Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities are recognized immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

The Group’s Financial Liabilities inciude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described helow:
A. Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
B. Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial Liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




16. Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank overdraft (negative balance in Account) is shown under short term
borrowings under Financial Liabilities & Positive balance in that account is shown in Cash & Cash
Equivalents.

lIl. NEW STANDARDS/ AMENDMENTS AND OTHER CHANGES EFFECTIVE APRIL 1,2024 OR THEREAFTER

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified new standard vide Notification G.5.R. 492 {E) dated
12.08.2024 in respect of Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts and certain amendments to the existing
standard - Ind AS 116 vide Notification G.S.R. 554(E} dated 09.09.2024, which will be applicable
from April 1, 2024, as below:

a. Ind AS 116: Leases

A new paragraph, 102A, has been added to Ind AS 116, for right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities arising from sale and leaseback transactions involving the treatment of leaseback
transactions.

b. Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts

A new accounting standard, Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts, has been introduced to
replace Ind AS 104,- Insurance Contracts. Additionally, amendments have been made to Ind
AS 101, First-time Adoption of indian Accounting Standards, Ind AS 103, Business
Combinations, Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, Ind
AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments and Ind AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers to align them with Ind AS 117.

The impact of the above amendments would not be applicable to CPCL, since there are no such
transactions involved in CPCL.
IV. NEW STANDARDS/ AMENDVIENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
Ministry of Corporate Affairs notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.

During the year, no new standard or modifications in existing standards have been notified which
will be applicable from April 1, 2025, or thereafter.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;
Note — 1B ;: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. These include recognition and measurement of financial
instruments, estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets,
valuation of inventories, measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units, estimated quantities of noble
metals, measurement of employee benefits, actuarial assumptions, provisions etc.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or Habilities affected in future periods. The Company continually evaluates these estimates
and assumptions based on the most recently available information. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Materiality

Ind AS requires assessment of materiality by the Company for accounting and disclosure of various transactions in the
financial statements. Accordingly, the Company assesses materiality limits for various items for accounting and
disclosures and follows on a consistent basis, Overall materizality is also assessed based ¢n various financdial parameters
such as Gross Block of assets, Net Block of Assets, Total Assets, Revenue and Profit Before Tax, The materiality limits
are reviewed and approved by the management.O

Contingencies
Contingent ligbilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
inctuding legal, contractual, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resofved only when one
or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur, The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the cutcome
of future events.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Defined benefit plans / Other Long term. employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefit plans are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These inciude the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortalify rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumgptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter maost subject to change is the discount rate. The management considers the interest rates of
government securities based on expected settlement period of various plans.

Further details about varicus employee benefit obligations are given in Note 32.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial labilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow (DCF) rmodel based on level-2 and level-3 inputs, The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as price estimates, volume estimates, rate estimates etc, Changes in
assumpticns about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also refer Note-35 for
further disclosures of estimates and assumptions.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less cost of disposal used to
determine the recoverable amounts of the impaired assets are not based on observable market data, rather,
management’s best estimates.

The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows do not include impact of significant future
investments that may enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The results of impairment test are
sensitive to changes in key judgements, such as changes in commeodity prices, future changes in alternate use of assets
etc, which could result in increase or decrease of the recoverable amounts and result in additional impairment charges
or recovery of impairment charged. (Refer Note 44.2)

Income Taxes

The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant facts, circumstances, present and past experience,
rulings, and new pronouncemenis while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised.




CHENMAI PETROLEUM CORPORATEON LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nate = 2 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Current Yeos: - ¥ In Crora
Dralnage,
Land - Buildings, Plant and Gifice Transport Furniture Railway Sewage
Particulars Land = Freehold * " " P . . and Water | ROU assets Total
Leasehald Roads etc. quip guip quiy and F g Supply
System
Note: A Note: C| Hote; B|
Gross Block as at 1st April 2024 49.25 5.02 206.43 10839.07 84.44 12.37 9.36 2,85 20,30 51.60 11281,39
g 2;’““"’"5 during the Year  {Note: 178 - 125 403.08 17.44 2.78 2.08 - 8.23 7.94 455,81
b ]
ﬂ Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to
g Held for Sale/ - - (2.31) (91.00) {5.23) (2.56) {0.63) - (019} {9.84) (111.76)
% Recfassifications/Revaluation
Gross Block as at
T1st March 2025 51.02 592 216.63 111512 86,65 12,59 10.81 2.65 28.34 49.70 11625.44
Depreciation and Amortisztion as at - 0.63 52.89 357157 46,70 5.96 3.98 0.1z g.88 30.85 3721.68
1st April 2024 3
Depreciation  and ~ Amartisation - 0.07 7.12 579,94 13,24 116 0.88 017 0.95 9.60 603.63

during the Year (Note F) @

Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to
Helt for Sale/ - - {0.44) (68.04) (4.03} {2.43) (0.32) - (0.06) (6.12) {81.44)
Reclassifications/Revaluation
Total Dapreclation and

Amaortisation upto - .70 59.57 4073.97 55,91 4,69 4.54 0.29 9,77 34.43 4243,87
31st March 2025

Total Impalmment Loss as at 1st

DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT

- - % . - - - - .27 - 3
Anr] 2024 10.8% 81.06 0. 92.15
Impalrment Loss during the Year _ B _ . . B _ . .
{Note: D) .32 .32
Impalrment loss reversed during _ _ B . . . _ _ . _ .
the Year
Tatal Impairment Loss upte . . " - _ - -
315t March 2025 10.82 8128 0.27 52.47
b E AS AT 31st March 2025 51.03 5.22 146.24 6995.77 40.74 7.90 8.27 2.36 18.30 15.27 7289.10
©
= @ {AS AT 315t March 2024 49.2% 5.29 14272 7186.44 37.74 6,41 5.38 2,53 1115 20.65 7467.56
Previcus Year: Ein Crore
Drainage,
Particulars Land - Fraehold Land « Bulldings, Plant and Gffice Transport Furniture Rallway a::“;:”:l:r ROU assets Total
Leasahold Roads atc. quip i and Fixtures | Sidings Supply
System
Gross Block as at 1st Aprif 2023 44,25 5.92 200,15 10417.84 5B.69 11.34 8.71 - 20.30 44.53 10816.72
g [Esiitions during the Year (iote : . . 7.77 445.50 3L.24 1.03 1.68 285 - 7.07 497.04
b=
z Disposals/ Deductionsf Transfers to
& |Held for Sale/ - - {1.48) (24.37) {5.49) - (1.03) - - - (32.37)
€ |Reclassifications/Revaluation
Gross Block as at
31st March 2024 49.25 592 206,43 10839,07 84.44 12.37 9.36 2.65 20.30 51.60 11281.39
Depreciation and Amonisation 8s &t - 0.56 47271 | 300334 34.64 4.68 389 - 7,98 23.38 3126.58
1st April 2023
Depreciation  and  Amortisation - 0.07 6.21 57075 15,63 1.08 2.80 0.12 0.50 7.57 604,13

<uring the Year:

Dlsposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to
Held for Sale/ - - (1.03) (3.12) “.57 - (0.71) - - - (9.43)
Reclassifications/Revaluation

Tetal Depreciation and
Amgrtisation upte - 0.63 52,89 3571.57 46.70 5.96 3.98 042 8.88 30.95 3721.68
3F1st March 2024

Total Impalrment Loss as at ist

DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATICN AND
IMPAIRMENT

Aoril 2023 - - 10.82 82.57 - - - - 0.27 - 93.66
{rggta;:rn;nt Loss during the Year - . N (1.51) _ . . _ - . (1.51)
Impairment Toss reversed during . . . R _ _ . . . . _
the Year
;ntal Impairment Lass upto B = 10.82 8106 R . . _ 0.27 _ 52.15
" [ 3 AS AT 31st March 2024 49,25 35.29 152,72 718644 3274 6.41 5.38 2.53 11.15 20.65 7467.56
=20
& |AS AT 315t March 2023 49.25 5.36 141.61 7331.33 24.08 6,46 4.82 - 12.03 21.15 7596.08
Notes ;
A,

i)¥The cost of land Includes provisional psyments towards cost, compensation, and other accounts for which detatled accounts are yet to be recelved from the auvtherities concernad.
il)Pending decslon of the Govemmant/Court, additicnal compensation, if any, payable to the land owners and the Gavernment for certaln lands acquired, Is not quantifiable, and hence not considered.
iti) Refer Note 44,1

B. The cost of assets includes EPCG benefit {net of GST ITC), net of VAT CREDIT/CENVAT/GST ITC wherever applicable

C. Includes 5/24 share of total cost of the Rallway Siding jeintly owned by the Company along with Madras Fartilizers Limited, Madras Petrochem Limited, Stee! Authority of India Umited and Rashtriya Ispat Nigam
Limited. Het block of Railway Sidings -~ 2 0.003 Crore (2024 : 2 0.003 Crore)

D, Pertains to Cauvery Basin Refinery {refer Note 44.2})

£, Additions to Gross Block Includes @ ZinCrota
Asset Particulars Borrowing Cost
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Flant ang Equipment - 23,39
Ratiway Sidings - 0,23
Total = 23,62

F. Depreclation and amortisetion during the year includes Construction period expenses of Rs,0,68 Cr (2024: Rs, 0,35 Cr) and depreciation attributable to the extent of reversal of Impalrment loss of R4l {2024: 1.47
Cr}

G. For details regarding (o hypethecation/charge on PPE may be referred to note.15
H. For further details regarding to ROU assets refer Note,33 related Lo feases,

Datails of assets given on operating lease included It the Proparty, Plant and Equipment 2

Accumulnted
Accumulated | WD,V s at ‘
Asset Particulars Gross Block as st | Depreciation Impalrment March March
1st April 2024 & loss 31,2025 31,2024

Amertisation 4 r
Land 5.27 - . 5.27 5.32
Buildinas 0.29 0.03 617 0.09 0.17
Plant and Equlpment 3.35 1.51 - 1.84 6.16
Total 8.91 1.54 6.17 7.20 11.65




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 2.1 : CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Z in Crore
- Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Construction Work in Progress - Property, Plant & Equipment
(Including unallocated capital expenditure, materials at site)
Balance as at beginning of the year 191.79 278.22
Add: Additions during the year 400.09 322.55
Less: Allecated / Adjusted during the year 280.12 257.76
Less: Transfer to disposal group held for transfer A 118.19 151.22
193.57 191.79
2 Capital stores balance as at beginning of the year 10.41 14.19
Add: Additions during the year 82.32 74.21
Less: Allocated / Adjusted during the year 77.99 77.99
Capital stores 14.74 10.41
3 Capital Goods in Transit 1.03 9.21
4 Construction Period Expenses pending allocation:
Balance as at beginning of the year - 39.01
Net expenditure during the year (Note -"2.2") 90.05 82,25
90.05 121.26
Less: Allocated / Adjusted during the year - 43.18
90.05 78.08
Less: Transfer to disposal group held for transfer A 90.05 78.08
209.34 211.41
Less : Provision for capital losses (1.30) (1.30)
= TOTAL B 208.04 210,11

Notes
A Refer Note - 44.1, 8.B & 26.A

B The cost of assets includes EPCG benefit (net of GST ITC), net of VAT CREDIT/CENVAT/GST ITC wherever applicable

Note — 2.2 : CONSTRUCTION PERICD EXPENSES(NET) DURING THE YEAR

Zin Crore
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Employee Benefit expenses 21.46 24.27
2 Power & Fuel - 0.03
3 Finance Cost -CBRPL 60.49 47.78
4 Others (including travelling, maintenance 10.17
expenses etc. ) 8.10 '
Net Expenditure during the year 90.05 82.25

Specific borrowings eligible for capitalisation {Rate in %)

5.44% to 5.78%

5.44% to 5.78%




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current Year : Z in Crore
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work-In-Progress -
P g lessthan 1T, years 2-3 More than Total
year vears 3 years
Projects in progress 80.77 105.45 20,15 2,97 209.34
Previous Year @ ¥in Crore
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work-In-Progress _
P g Lessthani |, o years 2-3 More than Total
year years 3 years
Projects in progress 186,18 18.49 6.17 0.57 211.41
Note: No Project activity is under suspension
Capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue compared to its original plan
Current Year :
To be completed in
CwIP Less thanl 23 Mare than
year 1-2 years years 3 years
RESID - Truck Loading System 28.59 - - -
Fire water headers upgradation 36.33 - - -
FCCU & NHT CRU PLC's replacement 11.83
Cthers 43,24 - - -
Total 119,99 - - -
Previous Year :
To be completed in
cwip Less thani 2-3 | More than
year 1-2 years years 3 years
RESID - TRUCK LOADING SYSTEM 36.31 - - -
Pharma grade Hexane production 47.39 - - -
COthers 17.26 - - -
Total 100.95 . - -

Note: No cost overdue in above projects




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDAT

ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note — 3 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(1) Intangible assets with definite useful life

Current Year: Zin Crore
Particulars Computer Technical Know- Total
Software How and Licenses
&5 Gross Block as at 1st April 2024 5.37 52.87 58.24
Q
) Additions during the Year 1.09 - 1.09
n Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/ _ _ _
© Reclassifications
@ Gross Block as at[31st March 2025 6.46 52.87 59.33
Amortisation as at 1st April 2024 3.22 16.60 19.82
% . Amortisation during the Year {Note : A) 1.03 2.60 3.63
< Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/
5 E Reclassifications - - )
E E Total and Amortisation upto 21st March 2025 4.25 19.20 23.45
n o
= Total Impairment Loss as at 1st April 2024 - - -
2
g = Impairment Loss during the Year - - -
< Impairment loss reversed during the Year - - -
Total Impairment Loss upto 31st March 2025 - - -
el AS AT 31st March 2025 2,21 33.67 35,88
Z0
A AS AT 31sk March 2024 2.15 36.27 38.42
Previous Year: Zin Crore
particulars Computer Technical Know- Total
Software How and Licenses
5 Gross Block as at 1st April 2023 4,00 52.87 56.87
% Additions during the Year 1.41 - 1.41
g Disposa‘l§/ ]?eductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/ (0.04) . (0.04)
S Reclassifications
1G] Gross Block as at Bllst March 2024 5.37 52.87 58.24
Amortisation as at 1st April 2023 2.41 13.99 16.40
Amortisation during the Year 0.85 261 3.46
[ . .
Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/
Z -
g < Reclassifications (0.04) (0.04)
g “Z: Total and Amortisation upto 31st March 2024 3.22 16.60 19.82
1]
é E Total Impairment Loss as at 1st Aprit 2023 - - -
i
g g Impairment Loss during the Year - - -
gc - Impairment loss reversed during the Year - - -
Total Impairment Loss upto 31st March 2024 - - -
E 5 AS AT 31st March 2024 2.15 26.27 38.42
=9
o AS AT 31sk March 2023 1.59 38.88 40.47
Note:

A, Amortisation during the year includes construction period expenses of Rs. 0.19 Cr (2024: Rs. 0.14 Cr)




(2) Intangible assets with indefinite usefut life

Current year: ZinCrore
Right of Way
5 Gross Block as at 1st April 2024 0.27
9 Additions during the Year -
@
0 Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/
3 Reclassifications -
% Gross Block as at[31st March 2025 0.27
% = Total Impairment Loss as at 1st April 2024 0.27
= b '
'5; o g Impairment Loss during the Year -
m i
o e
E < £~ |Impairment loss reversed during the Year -
g =
§ - Total Impairment Loss upto 31st March 2025 0.27
55 AS AT 31st March 2025 -
=9
el AS AT 31st March 2024 -
Previous year: T in Crore
Particulars Right of Way
5 Gross Block as at 1st April 2023 0.27
Q Additions during the Year -
0
= Disposals/ Deductions/ Transfers to Held for Sale/ -
8 Reclassifications
?5 Gross Block as at Eist March 2024 0.27
% - Total Impairment Loss as at 1st April 2023 0.27
= =
= Impairment Loss during the Year -
Nezx<d
E E = — |Impairment loss reversed during the Year -
o
e =
§ = Total Impairment Loss upto 31st March 2024 0,27
W
r -
E 9 AS AT 31st March 2024
—
sl AS AT 31st March 2023 -
Note :

(A) Pertains to

Cauvery Basin Refinery (refer Note 44.2)

Range of remaining period of Amortisation as on March 31, 2025 is as below:

Particulars 0 to 2 years 3 to 5 years Above 5 years Total
Computer 0.74 1.45 - 2.19
Software
Technical
know-how - 3.93 29.76 33.59

and Licenses
Total 0.74 5.38 29.76 35.88

Range of remaining period of Amortisation as on March 31, 2024 is as below:

Particulars 0 to 2 years 3 to 5 years Above 5 years Total
Computer 0.41 1.74 . 2.15
Software
Technical
know-how - - 36.27 36.27

and Licenses

Total 0.41 1.74 36.27 38.42




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 3.1 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

¥in Crore
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Work in Progress - Intangible Asset:
Balance as at beginning of the year - _
Add: Net expenditure during the
year - 0.23
Less: Transfer to Asset held for A
transfer - 0.23
TOTAL - -
Note :
A. Refer Note 44.1
Current Year : Z in Crore
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Intangible Assets Under
Development Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
year 3 years
NIL
Previous Year ¢ Z in Crore
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Intangible Assets Under
Development Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than Total
year 3 years

NIL

Note:
No Project activity is under suspension
There has been no cost / Time over run in respect of the above




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 4 : EQUITY INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

€in Crore
Face Value Non-current
o Particulars per share
(%) 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24
I |[Non-Current Investments in equity shares;
a)|In Joint Venture Companies (At cost):
Ungquoted:
i) Indian Additives Ltd. 100 11.83 11.83
1183401 {2024: 1183401) Equity Shares fully
paid
Add: Share of Other Equity (inclusive of OCI) 268.15 227.96
it) National Aromatics and Petrochemical 10 0.03 0.03
Corporation Limited
25000 (2024: 25000) Equity Shares fully paid
Add: Share of Other Equity (inclusive of GCI) A (0.03) (0.03)
b)|In Associates (At cost):
Unguoted:
i} Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd 10 0.01 .01
(CBRPL)
B
12500 (2024: 12500) Equity Share fully paid
TOTAL - 279,99 239.80
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 280.02 239.83
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of 0.03 0.03
investments
Note — 4.1 : OTHER INVESTMENTS ’
Face Value Non-current
Sk .
No Particulars per share
%) 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24
I [Other Investments:
Investments at fair value through OCI (fully
paid):
a)|Biotech Consortium India Ltd 10 0.10 0.10
100000 (2024: 100000} Equity Shares fully paid
b)|MRL Industrial Cooperative Service Society Lid 10 0.01 0.0%
9000 {2024: 9000} Shares fully paid
TOTAL C 0.11 0.11
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 0.11 0.11
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of - -
investments
Note : .

A National Aromatics and Petrachemical Corporation Limited is not operational.
B Refer Note 44.1

C Fair Value approximates carrying value
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note = 9 : INVENTORIES

¥in Crore
- particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 In Hand:
a. Stores, Spares etc. 505.44 354,41
Less : Provision for Losses 44.20 43.48
461.24 310.83
B, Raw Materials 2912.,85 2849.81
c. Finished Products 1603.95 2309.53
d, Stock in Process $56.04 1006.08
5834.08 6476.35
2 InTransit:
a, Stores & Spares etc. 11.52 4.98
b. Raw Materials 647,50 1349.58
659.02 1354.56
TOTAL 65493.10 7830.91
Amount of write down of inventories to NRV and recognised as 26.96 8.31

expense

Valuation of Inventories are done as per sl. no.7 of Material accounting policies {Note-1A}.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note — 10 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

£in Crore
Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
a) From Related Parties
i) Considered Geood - Unsecured A 113.91 136.05
b} From Others
iy  Considered Good -Unsecured 80.84 325.50
194.75 461,55
TOTAL 8 194.75 461.55
Notes : —_—
A

Includes receivables from Indian Qil Corporation Lid., the holding company ¥ 113.9 Crore {2024: ¥ 135.8 Crore) and receivables from [ndian Additives Limited,
Joint Venture Company % 0.01 Crore (2024: 20.26 ).

B Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilties:

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet

Particulars Gross Amount Gross Amounts set off in Net " :n:lou;:s
the balance sheet presented in e
balance sheet
31-03-2025
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 6074.87 5880.12 194.75
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 9044.,43 5880.12 3164.31
31-03-2024
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 3696.05 3234.50 461.55
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 7517.01 3234.50 4282.51
Offsetting Arrangements
The Trade receivables and pavables to the extent being settled on net basis with Indian Oil Corporation Limited have been offset,
Trade receivables - Ageing
Current Year !
- Less than 6 : 6 months -1 More than 3
Particulars months year 1-2years |2-3 years years Total
{i) .Unélsputed Trade receivables 194 57 0.03 0.02 0.13 _ 194.75
considered good
Previous Year :
. Less than 6 | 6 months -1 More than 3
Particulars months year 1=-2years |2-3 years years Total

{i} .Undisputed Trade receivables - 461.39 . 0.16 . _ 461.55
considered good




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATICN LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 11 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Z in Crore
:L; Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Bank Balances with Scheduled Banks :
Current Account 183,97 0.17
TOTAL 183.97 0.17
Note - 12 : OTHER BANK BALANCES
Z in Crore
Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Fixed Deposits A 37.43 37.44
2 Earmarked Balances B 153.80 56.64
TOTAL 191.32 94.08
Note :
A) Earmarked in favor of Statutory Authorities 37.20 37.20

B) Pertains to Unpaid dividend (Refer note 16 - 51.No.5)




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 13 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Tin Crore
Particulars Note 3i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Authorized:
Equity:
40,00,00,006 (2024: 40,00,00,000} Equity Shares of T 10 each 400.00 400,00
Preference:
100,00,00,000  (2024:100,00,00,000) Non-Convertible  Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of € 10 each 1000.00 1000.00
1400.00 1400.00
Issued !
Equity:
14,89,11,400 (2024: 14,89,11,400) Equity Shares of T 10 each (i) 48,91 148.91
Preference:
50,00,00,008 (2024: 50,00,00,000;} Non-Converiible Cumulative .
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each (i) 500.00 500.00
. 648.91 648.91
Subscribed, Called-up and fully Paid-up :
. (i) 148.91 148.91
14,89,11,400 (2024: 14,89,11,400) Eqguity shares of ¥10 each
Total Paid up Equity share Capital 148.91 148.91
TOTAL 148,91 148,91

Notes :

(i) (A) As per the Formation Agreement entered into between the promoters, an offer is to be made to the Naftiran
Intertrade Company Limited (NICO), an affillate of National Iranian Qit Company {NIQC) in any issue of the Capital in
proportion to the shares held by them at the time of such issue to enable them to maintain their shareholding at the
existing percentage.

(B) The Shareholders of the Company at the General meeting held on 24th August 2018 has accorded approval for

a) Cancellation of unsubscribed equity share capital of ¥ 20.87 Crore consisting of 2,08,68,900 equity shares of ¥ 10/
each, comprising of partial subscription to Rights Issue made by the company in 1984, by the Government of India
and non-subscription by Amoco India Inc., to the Righis Issue made by the company in 1984;

b) Cancellation of 2,19,700 forfeited equity shares of ¥ 10/- each totaling ¥ 0.22 Crore (1,87,900 equity shares
forfeited on 26.09.2003 and 31,800 equity shares forfeited on 26.10.2006)

(ii) Based on special resolution passed by the shareholders through postal ballot on 16,07,2015, the company has
allotted 100 Crore Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each for cash at par
amounting to ¥ 1000 Crore to Indian Oil Corporation Ltd, the holding company on private placement preferential
allotment basis on 24.09.2015 after receipt of full subscription amount.

Preference shares to the extent of ¥ 500 crore, out of the total outstanding amount of ¥ 1000 crore were redeemed
on 06.06.2018. Accordingly the outstanding amount as at 31.03.2025 is ¥ 500 crore.

Preference Shares classified as financial liability {long term borrowing) as per Ind AS 32 - Refer note - 15(C)
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 14 : OTHER EQUITY

¥ in Crore
ﬁk Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Retained Earnings
a) General Reserve !
As per last Account 6345.81 4464,74
Add: Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (9.35) 2.83
Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 88.07 1878.24
6424.53 6345.81
b) Surplus (Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss):
Balance Brought Forward from Last Year's Account 1047.07 596.30
Add: profit / (Loss) for the Year 214,09 2745.07
tess: APPROPRIATIONS:
Dividend (Paid) 819.01 402,06
Insurance Reserve Account 11.00 14.00
General Reserve 88.07 1878.24
Balance carried farward to next year's account 343.08 1047.07
6767.61 7392.88
2 Other Reserves
a) Capital Redemption Reserve : A
As per last Account 1000.00 1000.00
1000.00 1000,00
b} Insurance Reserve: B
As per fast Account 25.00 15.00
Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 11.00 14.00
40.00 29.00
¢) Securities Premium: C
As per last Account 250.04 250.04
d) <Capital Reserve D
As per last Account : 0.09 0.09
TOTAL 8057.74 8672.01

Note :
Retained Earnings

The retained earnings comprises of general reserve and surplus which is used from time to time to transfer profits by
appropriations. Retained earnings is free reserve of the Company and is used for the purposes like issuing bonus
shares, buy back of shares and other purposes (like declaring Dividend etc.) as per the approval of Board of Directors.
It includes the remeasurement of defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuations which will not be re-classified to

statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Other Reserves

Reserves created in compliance with the Provision of the Companies Act, the utilisation of which is restricted to the

purposes mandated therein:

A

Capital Redemption Reserve Account : As per Companies Act 2013, capital redemption reserve is created to
redeem preference shares. Utilisation of this reserve is governed by the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

Insurance Reserve : Insurance Reserve is created by the company to offset the risk of loss of assets, to the extent
B not insured with axternal insurance agencies. The reserve is utilised to offset the losses on such uninsured

proportion.

C Securities Premium : Premium on shares issued by the company appropriated under this reserve.
Capital Reserve: Capital Reserve was created through forfeiture of shares and shall be utilised as per the

. provisions of the Companies Act 2013.
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CHENNAZL PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Secured Rupee Term Leans

Sk Particulars Availed Date Rate of Interest p.a |Date of Repayment Security Detalls
No.
1 {Term Loan from Gil 31-03-2020 6.16% The loan wilt be for a perlod of 5
Industry Development years with 1 year moratorium and
Board - R 100 Crore repayable in 4 equal installments. First Mortgage and charge on Immovable
Interest payabie on Quarterly progerties, both present and future and First
basis, Fully paid as per the Charge by way of Hypothecation en Movables
répayment schedule. including movable machinery, machinery spares,
2 {Term Loan from Qil 30-06-2020 5.68% The loan will be for a period of 5 tools and accessories, present and future,
Indusiry Development years with 1 year moratorium and pertaining to BS-VI project to the extent of
Board - Rs 100 Crore repayable in 4 equal instaliments. cutstanding.
Interest payable on Quarterly
basis
3 |Term Lean from State 10-05-2024 0.10%
Industries Promaotion X o
Corporation of Tamiinadu First Mortgage and charge onlAII Bulldn_ngs and
Limited: Tranche-I The Soft loan sanctioned in the Plant & r‘nacl-:neryhand Ecgjungment mftt;all
Rs.173.42 Cr first year shall be repaid in full accessories. Hypothecated by way of First
. N charge as security for payment by the
4 [Term Loan from State 31-03-2025 0.10% along with interest in the month Beneficiary to the SIPCOT of the said principal
Industries Promotion of April in the 13th financtal | o oo with interest if any thereon and all
Corporation of Tamiinadu year.Interest payable on Quarterly costs, charges and expenses which may be
Limited: Tranche-1I basis incutred by the SIPCOT in relation to this
Rs,196.98 Cr security.
B. Unsecured Loans:
Sl, Particulars Availed Date Rate of Interest Date of Redemption
No
1 |Unsecured Redeamable Non-Convertible 17-07-2020 5.78% Principal repayable at the end of 5 years from
Debentures of ¥ 10 Lakhs each redeemable date of availment, Interest payable Annually
at par - Series -I-2021
2 |Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convettible 23-06-2021 5.44% Principat repayable at the end of 3 years from
Debentures of ¥ 10 Lakhs each redeemable date of availment, Interest payable Annuatly,
at par - Series -11-2022 Fully redeemed on its due date 24-06-2024

along with  the interest due,

€, Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemabie Preference Shares

0}

(i
(iiny

{iv)

)

(vi)

Preference Share is treated as financial liabitity as per Ind AS 32, as these are redeemable on maturity for a fixed determinable amount and carry fixed rate
of dividend.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Preference shares:

The Company has cne class of preference shares i,e, Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (NCCRP Shares) of ¥ 10 per share,
{a) Such shares shall confer on the holders thereof, the right to preferential dividend from the date of allotment i.e., 24.09.2015

(b) Such shares shall rank for capital and dividend {including all dividend undeclared upto the commencement of winding up) and for repayment of capital in
a winding up, pari passu inter se and in priority to the Ordinary Shares of the Company, but shall not confer any further or other right to participate either in
profits or assets,

{c} The holders of such shares shall have the right to recelve all netices of general meetings of the Company and have a right to vote only on rasolution
placed before the share holders which directly affect their rights attached to preference shares like winding up of company or repayment of preference
shares etc.

(d) The tenure of the NCCRP Shares would be 10 years , with put and call option, Either the preference shareholder shall have right to exercise Put option or
the Issuer shall have right to exercise Call option to redeem the preference shares, in wheole or in part after the 5 years of the preference issue date.
However, it is also agreed that Put & Call option before the 5 year period can be exercised by mutual consent of both the parties by giving 30 days notice.

(e) Dividend rate shall be equivalent to the Post tax yleld of AAA rated corporate bond l.e. prevailing {(at the time of issue) 10 year G-Sec yleld plus spraad on
AAA rated corporate bend i.e., 6.65% p.a.

Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares to the extent of ¥ 500 Crore, out of ¥ 1000 crore was redeemed on 06.06.2018.

Preference Shares held by Holding Company Zin Crore
Particlulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
5¢,00,00,000 (2024 : 50,00,00,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥10/- each (100%) fuliy paid-up, 500.00 500.00
held by Indian Ol Corporation Limited, the Helding Company. ) '
Detajls of Preference shareholders holdings more than 5% shares
Name of Preference 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Shareholder Number of Percentage of Holding | Number of Preference shares held Percentage of Holding
Preference
shares held
Indian Qil Cargoration 500000000 100 500000000 100
Limited

Preference dividend has been provisionally accrued as finance cost. However, as per the Companies Act 2013, the preference shares is treated as part of
share capital and the provisions of the Act relating to declaration of Preference Dividend would be applicable.The Board of Directors have recommended
preference dividend of 6,65% on the outstanding preference shares amounting to Rs. 33.25 Cr for the year {2023-24 : Rs, 33,25 cr).

Refer Note -13 & 13A - Authorised and issued Preference Share capital and the reconciliation of no, of shares of preference shares
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 19 : BORROWINGS - CURRENT

{At Amortised Cost) Z in Crore
:‘; Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
¥. SECURED BORROWINGS
1 Loans Repayable on bemand
From Banks:
a) In Rupees
i) Working Capital Demand Loan A - -
Sub-Total - -
2 Current maturities of Long term debt 24.97 50.00
Total Secured Borrowings 24.97 50.00
II. UNSECURED BORROWINGS
1 Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks/Financial Institutions:
In Rupees
Working Capital Demand Loan 1541.01 503.07
Sub-Total 1541.01 503.07
2 Current maturities of Long term debt 1376.34 873.98
Total Unsecured Borrowings 2917.35 1377.05
TOTAL BORROWINGS - CURRENT 2942.32 1427.05

Notes:

A Secured against hypothecation by way of first charge on Trade Receivables & Inventories to State Bank of India.
The quarterly statements of current assets filed by the company with State Bank of India is in agreement with

the books of accounts.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 20 : TRADE PAYABLES

Z in Crore
Particufars Note 31-Mar-25 331-Mar-24
Dues to Micro and Srnall Enterprises A 10,33 13.18
Dues to Related Parties B 2428,54 2866.29
Dues to Others 725.44 1403.04
TOTAL c&b 3154.31 4282.51
Notes :

A Details relating to Micro and Small Enterprises is as follows:
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
{a) the principal amount 10.33 13,18

{b) the interest due thereon remaining unpaid

{c)the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of
2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

{d)the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

{e)the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year

(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues ahove are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006

B Represents dues to Indian Gil Corporation Ltd., the holding company

C Refer Note - 10({B}

p Trade Payables ageing schedule

Current Year: ¥ in Crore
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars . Less than 1 Mare than 3
Unbilled vear 1-2 years 2 - 3 years years Total
(i) MSME - 10.33 - - - 10.33
(i} Others 120.00 3002.53 22.43 3.50 5.37 3153.83
(i} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - 0.15 - 0.15
Total 120.00 3012.86 22.43 3.65 5.37] 31654.31
Previous Year: % in Crore
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars . Less than 1 More than 3
Unbilled vear 1-2 years 2 - 3 years vears Total
(iy MSME - 13,18 - - - 13.18
(ii) Others 114.05 4131.67 15.02 3.09 5.35 4269.18
(iit) Disputed dues -~ MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - 0.15 - 0.15
Total 114.05 4144.85 15.02 3.24 5.35| 4282.51




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 21 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

% in Crore
:‘o Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Sale of Products and Crude {including Excise Duty) 71072.93 79351.77
lLess: Discounts 109.99 144.54
Sales (Net of Discounts) A 70962.94 79207.23
2 Other Operating Revenues (Note "21.1") 87.01 65.31
71042.95 79272.54
TOTAL B 71049.95 78272.54
Notes :
A Breakup of Gross revenue and Excise Duty on sales
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Revenue (gross) 70962.94 79207.23
Less: Excise Duty 11759.68 12636,93
Net Revenue 59203.26 66570.30

B Refer Note-42 Revenue from contracts with customers




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MNote - 21.1 : OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

Fin Crore

32 Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

1 Sale of Power 0.69 0.86
2 Unclaimed / Unspent liabilities written back 0.56 1.24
3 Recoveries from Employees 0.09 0.33.
4 Sale of Scrap 34,65 27.64

Amortisation of Government Grants related to
5 OIDB & SIPCOT loan 8.39 0.62
6 Terminalling Charges 2.34 2.10
7 Other Miscellaneous Income A 40.29 32.52
TOTAL 87.01 65.31

A

Includes 4.49 Crore (2024 : ¥ 2.59 Crore) in respect of Insurance claims




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 22 : OTHER INCOME

T in Crore
ﬁt Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Intereston :
Financial Item:
a) Loans and Advances 14.21 9.67
b) Deposits 3.21 : 0.68
¢} Others - 0.08
17.42 10.43
Non Financial Item: . 7.82 -
2 QOther Non Operating Income - 0.04
TOTAL : 25.24 10.47

Total interest income (calculated using the effective interest method) for financial assets that are not at
fair value through profit or loss:

in Crore
21-Mar-25 31i-Mar-24

In relation to financial assets measured at amortised cost 17.42 10.43




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 23 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Zin Crore
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Raw Material Consumed :

Opening Balance 4199.39 3184.52
Add

Purchases 54708.68 61417.47
Sub Total 58908.07 64601.9%
Less: Closing Stock 3560.35 4199.39
TOTAL (Net) 55347.72 60402.61




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 24 : CHANGES IN INVENTORY

gin Crore
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Closing Stock
a} Finished Products 1603.95 2309.53
by Stock in Process 856.04 1006.08
2459,99 3315.61
Less:
Opening Stock
a) Finished Products 2309.53 1681.69
b)Y Stock in Process 1006.08 802,24
3315.61 2483 93
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) (855.62) 831.68




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 25 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

¥ in Crore
Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Employee Benefit Expense:
(a) Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc 347.28 437.10
(b) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 49.08 57.55
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses 68.32 52.06
TOTAL A&B : 464.68 546.71

Notes :
A Disclosure in compliance with Ind AS - 19 on “"Employee Benefits” is given in Note - 32

B Above excludes Nil (2024: ¥ 4 Crore) transferred to capital work in progress (Note - 2.2) and ¥
21.46 Crore (2024: ¥ 20.27 Crore) transferred to disposal group held for transfer (Note - 2.2)




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note —~ 26 : FINANCE COSTS

Zin Crore
:i; Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Interest Payments on Financial items: ¢
I Working Capital Loans
Short term Borrowings 183.49 137.22
I1 Other Loans
Debentures/Long Term Loan A 16.15 48.06
199.64 185,28
IIX Unwinding of Finance cost on Lease obligations 2.29 2.17
I_ntere;.t gxggn_se for Preference Shares treated as B 33.25 33.25
financial liabilities
2 Interest Payments on Non Financial items C 9.34 2.52
Other Borrowing Cost D - 0.06
TOTAL 244.52 223.28
Notes :
A Net of amount transferred to Assets included in disposal 60.42 47.78

B Refer Note-15 C (v}
C Mainly includes interest expense on Income Tax / GST/other contractual obligations,

(i) Total interest expense (calculated using the effective interest method) for financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Fin Crore
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
In relation to financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 235.18 220.70

D Mainly pertains to Stamp duty & other indirect expenses on borrowings.




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 27 : OTHER EXPENSES

¥in Crore
ﬁ’; particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Consumption:
a} Stores, Spares and Consumables 169.87 144,15
b) Packages & Drum Sheets 1.46 1.11
171.33 145.26
2 Power & Fuel 1780.47 2413.41
Less : Fuel from own production 1703.95 2334,63
76,52 78.78
3 Irrecoverable taxes - Central Sales Tax 372.64 361.48
4 Repairs and Maintenance
iy Plant & Machinery 372.42 257.39
ii) Buildings 0.50 0.40
iii) Others 63.561 58.99
436,53 316.78
5 Freight, Transportation Charges and Demurrage 91.36 115.71
6 Office Administration, Selling and Other Expenses
(Refer Note "27.17) 316.84 292.74
TOTAL 1465.22 1310.75
Less: Company's use of own Products - 0.03
TOTAL (Net) 1465.3_& 1310.72




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATICN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 27.1 : OFFICE ADMINISTRATION, SELLING AND OTHER EXPENSES

Zin Crore
:I(; Particulars Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 Rent 9.86 5.95
2 Insurance 27.64 32.95
3 Rates & Taxes 3.04 4.38
4  Payment to auditors :
a) For Statutory Audit 0.29 0.29
b) For Limited Raview 0.07 0.12
c) Other Services(for issuing other certificates etc.) 0.02 0.02
0.38 0.43
5 Travelling & Conveyance 19.59 19.60
6 Communication Expenses 2.49 1.82
7 Printing & Stationery 2,06 1,49
8 Electricity & Water 0.73 0.80
9 Bank Charges 0.09 0.83
10 Provision / Loss on Assets sold or written off (Net) 21.86 5.08
11 Technical Assistance Fees 11.72 10.26
12 Exchange Fluctuation (Net) 63.12 72.14
13, Frovslon fo Dount Devts Advances
14 Security Force Expenses 33.13 36.62
15 Terminalling Charges 10.25 4.68
16 Provision for Probable Contingencies 12.08 9.30
17 Expenses on CSR Activities A 54.86 28.50
18 Advertisement and Publicity 1.61 1.61
19 Pollution Contral Expenses 17.58 8.88
20 Training Expenses 2.13 1.78
21 Legal Expenses / Payment To Consultants 5.03 4.06
22 Miscellaneous Expenses 16.76 40.04
TOTAL 316.84 292.74
Note :

In addition, Rs. 1.97 Cr of CSR expenditure incurred during FY 2020-21 has been carried forward and
A utilised in the previous year F.Y 2023-24 in line with Sec 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (Also refer Note

39)
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 29 : DISTRIBUTIONS MADE AND PROPOSED

¥in Crore

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Cash dividends on Equity shares
Final dividend for FY 2023-24 declared and

paid during the year ended 31 March 2025:
55 per share; (for FY 2022-2023 declared and 819.01 402.06
paid during the year ended 31 March 2024 : ¥

27 Per Share)
819.01 402.06

Proposed dividends on Equity shares:

Final dividend for year ended 31 March 2025:

Z 5 per share (31 March 2024: ¥ 55 per share) 74.46 815.01

74.46 819.01

Proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval at the Annual
General Meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2025

Note : Refer Note-15 C (v) for Preference dividend
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION
LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Note - 31 : DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST
IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

{Z in Crore)
Name of entity Place of % of Relationship  Accounting
business ownership method Carrying Amount
interest :
As at As at
31.03.2025 31,03.2024
Equity
Indian Additives Limited India 50% Joint Venture Accounting 279.98 239.79
Naticnal Aromatics and Petrochemical Equity
Corporation Limited India 50% Joint Venture Accounting (10.15) (10.13)
Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petraochemicals Equity
Limited India 25% Associate Accounting 0.01 0.01
Summarised balance sheet of the Indian
Additives Limited: (Z in Crore)
31-Mar-25( 31-Mar-24
Audited Audited
Current assets 571.29 481.561
Current liabilities 186,33 192.53
Non-current assets 183.00 199,18
MNen-current liabilities 7.87 8.55
Net assets 560.09 479.71
31-Mar-25| 31-Mar-24
Audited Audited
Praportion of the company’s ownership on the 50% 50%
above
Carsying amount of the investment 276.58 239,79
The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the followings
Cash and cash equivalents 126.57 126,57
Current financiz| ltabilities 147.27 147.27
Non-current financial Habilities - -
Summarised statement of profit and [oss
of the Indian Additives Limited:
{Z in Crore)
Paritctutlars 31-Mar-25; 31-Mar-24
Audited Audited
Revenue From Operations 1307.87 1215.13
Cther Income 21.14 10.22
Cost of Material Consumed 858.39 788.81
Purchases of Stock in trade 99,83 111.20
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
stock-in-trade and work in pregress (23.96) 8,14
Excise duty on sale of goods - -
Employee Benefits Expense 47.25 41,60
Finance Costs 0.54 0.43
Depreciation and amortization expense
a) Tangible Assets 22.14 21.05
b) Intangible Assets 0.02 0.02
Other Expenses 171.02 155,92
Profit before exceptional items and tax 153.78 98.18
Exceptional Iitems
Profit/{loss) before tax 153.78 98,18
Tax expense:
Current Tax 40.30 25.40
Tax Expense relating to previous year (3.39) -
Deferred Tax (0.79) (0,30)
Profit {Loss) for the period 117.66 73.08
Other Comprehensive Income (0.74) 0.03
Total comprehensive income 116,92 73,11
Dividend received - -
Commitments and contingent liabilities
in respect of Joint Venture
Particulars 31i-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Audited Audited
Commitments ~ Joint Venture
Property, Plant and Equipments 0.78 0.48
Civit Work relating to Project - -
Contingent liabilities — Joint Venture
Income Tax Matters 0.98 1.05
Excise Duty Matters 0.0t 0.01
Service Tax Matters 0.45 0.57
Sales Tax Matters 0.17 0.34
Goods and Services tax matters 20.72 21.38
Customs duty matters 4,23 4,23




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note — 31 : DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Contd..)

Summarised balance sheet of the Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited*:

(¥ in Crore)
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Audited Audited
Current assets 0,04 0.05
Current liabilities 0.01 0.01
Non-current assets - -
Non-current Habilities - -
MNet assets 0.03 0.04
31-Mar-25 31i-Mar-24
Audited Audited
Proportion of the company’s ownership on the above 25% 25%
Carrying amount of the investment 0.01 0.01
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings
Cash and cash equivalents | 0.04 0.05

Summarised statement of profit and loss of the Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited*:

(Z in Crore)

Paritculars

31-Mar-25

31-Mar-24

Revenue From QOperations
Qther Income

Cost of Material Consumed
Purchases of Stock in trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods,
stock-in-trade and work in progress
Excise duty on sale of goods

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and amoitization expense
a) Tangible Assets

b) Intangible Assets

Other Expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax expense:

Current Tax

Tax Expense relating to previous year
Deferred Tax

Profit (Loss) for the period

Other Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income
Dividend received

Audited

Audited

(0.01)

(0.01)

(0.01}

(0.01}

*The Financial Statements of Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (CBRPL) are for the period from

the date of incorperation viz., January 06,2023 to March 31, 2024.

Individually immaterial Joint Venture:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial Joint Venture

i) National Aromatics and Petrochemical A

Corporation Limited - -
Aggregate amounts of the group’s share of;

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations NA NA
Other comprehensive income NA NA
Total comprehensive income MNA NA
Share of profits from Joint Venture 0.00 0.00

A. The Investment in 3V have been fully provided for dimunition in value of investments. The 1V is not Operational.

The company has decided to exit from the 1V and the process in this regard is already initiated.

NA - Not Applicable




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 32 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits” is as under:

A,

Defined Contribution Plans~ General Description

Pension Scheme:
During the year, the company has recognised T 23.44 Crore {2024: T 21.86 Crore} towards contribution 1o Defined Employees Pension Scheme in the
Staternent of Profi{ and Loss / CWIP (included in Contribution to Provident & Other Funds in Note - 25 / Construction period expenses in Note-2,1)

During the year, the company has recognised ¥ 1.48 Crore (2024:  1.59 Crore) as contribution to EPS-85 in the Statment of Profit and Loss / CWIP
{inciuded in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds in Note - 25 / Construction period expenses in Note-2.1)

Defined Benefit Plans- General Description

Provident Fund:

The Company's contribution to the Provident Fund is remitted to separate provident fund trust estahlished for this purpose based on a
fixed percentage of the eligible employee's salary and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. Shortfall, if any, in the fund assets,
based on the Government specified minimum rate of return, will be made good by the Company. The Provident Fund maintained by
the PF Trust in respect of which actuarial valuation is carried out. Accordingly, the present value of obligation due to interest shortfall
is ¥ 4.6 Crore (2024 : ¥ 2,27 Crore) has been provided by the company towards the current and future interest shortfzli/losses
beyond available surplus. The company has determined its probable liability at Rs. $.81 Crore (2024: 9.81 Crore) in respact of
investments by the Provident Fund trust turning into stressed assets, which were made to be good by the company. As there has
been no change in the probable [liability in this regard, no additional expenditure has been charged under Employee Benefit
Expenses in the current year ,

Gratuity:

Each employee rendering continuous service of 5 years or more Is entitled to receive gratuity amount equal to 15/26 of the eligible
salary for every completed vear of service subject to a maximum of ¥ (.20 Crore at the time of separation from the company.
Besldes, the ceiling of gratuity increases by 25% whenever IDA rises by 50%. The company has funded the liability through insurance
company.

Bost Retirement Medical Scheme (P :
PRMS provides medical benefit to retired employees and eligible dependant family members.The company has funded the liabllity
through insurer managed funds,

Workman Compensation:

The company pays an equivalent amount of 100 months salary to the family member of employee, if employee dies due to accidental
death while he is on duty. This scheme is not funded by the company. The liability originates cut of the werkman compensation Act
and Factory Act,

Ex gratia Scheme:
Ex-gratia is payable o those employees who have retired before January 01, 2007 and are drawing a pension lower than the ex
gratia fixed for a Grade (in such case differential amount between pension and ex gratia is paid).

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits - General Description

Leave Encashment:

Each employee is entitled to get 8 earned leaves for each completed quarter of service. Encashment of earned leaves is altowed
during service leaving a minimum balance of 15 days subject to maximum accumulation of 300 days. In additien, each employee is
entitled to get 5 sick leaves (in lieu of 10 Half Pay Leave) at the end of every six months, The entire accumutation of sick leave is
permitted for encashment only at the time of retirement, DPE had clarified earlier that sick leave cannot be encashed, though Earned
Leave (EL) and Half Pay Leave (HPL) could be considered for encashment on retirement subject to the overall Jimit of 300 days.
Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas (MoPNG) has advised the company to comply with the said DPE Guidelines. However, the
company, in compliance to the DPE guidelines of 1887 which had allowed framing of own leave rules within broad parameters laid
down by the Government and keeping in view operational complications and service agreements the company had requested
concerned autherities to reconsider the matter. Subsequently, based on the recommendation of the 3rd Pay Revision Committee, DPE
in its guidelines on pay revision, effective from lanuary 01, 2017 has inter-alia alfowed CPSEs to frame their own leave rules
considering operational necessities and subject to congitions sef therein. The requisite conditions are fully met by the company. The
net expenditure accounted towards encashment of sick leave for the year is ¥ 5.26 Crore (2024: ¥ 5.09 crore). The accumulated
provision for towards encashment of sick leave is  34.14 Crore {2024: ¥ 33.97 Crore). .

Long Service Award:

On completion of specified period of service with the company and also at the time of retirement, employees are rewarded with
amounts based on the length of servica completed, 1t is a mode of recognizing long years of loyalty and faithful service in line with
Bureau of Public Enterprises (currentty DPE) advice vide its DO No. 7(3)/79-BPE (GM.]) dated February 14, 1983, MoPNG has advised
that the issue of Long Service Award has been reported as an audit para in the Annual Report of CAG. The Carporation has been
clarifying its position to MoPNG individually as well as on industry basis on the rationale that Long Service Awards are not in the
nature of Bonus or Ex-gratia or honorarium and is emanating from a settlement with the unions under the Industrial Dispute Act as
well as with the approval of the Board in Hine with the DPE’s advice of 1983. The matter is being pursued with MoPNG for resolution.
Pending this the provision i in line with Board approved policy. The net expenditure accounted on this account is ¥ 0,99 Crore (2024:
% 1,38 Crore}. The accumutated provision in this regard is ¥ B.75 Crore {2024: ¥ 10.11 Crore).




(N

(i)

(i)

(iv}

The summarised position of various defined benefits / Long Term Employee Benefits recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Balance Sheet are as under:

{Figures presented in Italic Font in the table are for previous year)

Reconciliation of balance of Defined Benefit / Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations
% in Crore
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Defined Obligation at the beginning 648.46 153.85 305.65 3.79
628.97 153.64 283.24 -
Current Service Cost 25.14 3.61 4.53 -
24.45 3.40 4.07 -
Interest Cost 48.78 11.11 22.13 0.27
48.46 11.55 21.33 -
Past Service Cost - - - -
- - - 3.79
Benefits paid (109.36) {16.47) (8.76) (0.41)
(91.79) (14.16} (9.81) -
Emplovee Contribution 42.46 - - -
42.53 ~ - -
Amounts Transferred in fout - - - -
0.06 - - -
Actuarial {aain)/ loss an obliaations 1.62 4.30 10.58 1.71
(5.22) {0.58) 6.82 -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 657.10 156,40 333.13 5.36
648.46 153.85 305.65 3.79
Reconciliation of balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets
(£ in Crore)
Provident Gratuity PRMS
Fund
Funded Funded Funded
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the
year 666.96 200.63 327.20
623.07 182.68 295.82
Expected return on plan assets {Interest
Income} 48.62 14.48 23.69
47.93 13.74 22.28
Contribution by employer 24.59 = 9.77
24.45 - 10.90
Contribution by employees 42.46 - 0.17
42,53 - -
Benefit paid {109.36) (0.06) {9.76)
(91.79) - 2.40
Amounts Transferred in /out d - -
0.00 - -
Actuarial gain / (lossaes){Return on Plan Assets 3.95 2.84 2.14
excl interest income) 20.77 4,21 0.60
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 677.22 217.89 353.21
666.96 200.63 327.20
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets and Defined Benefit Obligation
(% in Crore)
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 677.22 217.89 353.21 -
666.96 200.63 327.20 -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 657.10 156.40 333.13 5.36
648.46 153.85 305.65 3.79
Net Interest shortfall / Liability /
(Asset}recognised in the Balance Shaet 4.60 (61,49) (20.08) 5.36
2.27 (46.78) (21.55) 3.79
Amount not recognised in the Balance Sheet 24.72 - - -
(_as per Para 64 of Ind AS 19) 20.77 - - -

As per the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscelianeous Provisions Act, 1952, the Company has
no right to the benefits either in the form of refund from the plan or lower future contribution to the plan towards
the net surplus of Rs. 24.72 Crore (2024: Rs.20.77 Crore) determined through actuarial valuation, Accordingly,
Company has not recognised the surplus as an asset in line with Ind AS 19, and the remeasurement loss fgains in
*Other Comprehensive Income’, as these pertain to the Provident Fund Trust and not to the Company.

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss / CWIP
(% in Crore)
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Current Service Cost 25.14 3.61 4.53 -
24.45 3.40 4.07 -
Interest Cost 48,78 11.11 22,13 0.27
48.46 11.55 21.33 -
Expected (return) / loss on plan asset {48.62) {14.48) (23.69} -
{47.93) (13.74) (22.28) -
Contributicn by Employees - - -
Past Service Cost - - - -
- - - 3.79
Expenses for the year 25.30 0.24 2.97 0.27
24.98 1.21 3.12 3.79




{v) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

(% in Crore)

Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on Cbligations 1.62 4.30 10.58 1.71
(5.22) (0.58) 6.82 -
Remeasurement (Return on Plan Assets excl
interest incorne) - (2.84) (2.14) -
- (4.21) (0.60) -
Net Loss / (Gain) recognized in OCI 1,62 1.46 8,44 1.71
(5.22) (4.79) 6.22 -
{vi) Major Actuarial Assumptions
Provident Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund
Funded Funded Funded Non-Funded
Discount rate 6.81% 6.81% 7.05% 6.73%
7.22% 7.229% 7.24% 7.21%
Guaranteed return on plan assets B8.25% - - -
8.25% - - -
Salary escalation - B.00% ~ -
- 3.00% - -
Inflation - - 7.00% 4.00%
- - 7. 00% 4.00%

The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market, The expected return on plan assets is determined
considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of the plan assets held, assessed risks of asset management and

historical results of the return on plan assets,

{vii)} Sensitivity on Actuarial Assumptions:
(% in Crore)
Gratuity PRMS Ex-Gratia
bLoss [ (Gain) for:
Funded Funded Non=-Funded
Change in Discounting Rate
Increase by 0.5% (5.42) {25.49) {0.20}
(4.56) (22.86) (0.11)
Decrease by 0.5% 5.86 29.14 0.21
5.34 26.08 0.13
Change in Employee Turnover
increase by 0.5% 0.22 0.53 -
0.42 .60 -
Dacrease by 0.5% (D0.21) {0.57) -
(Q.44) (0.64} -
Change in Salary Escalation/ Inflation rate
Increase by 0.5% 2.91 29.21 -
2,40 26.17 -
Decrease by 0.5% (2.86) {25.,78) -
(2.42} (23.16) -
fviii) Investment details:
Provident Gratuity PRMS
Eund
Funded Funded Funded
Investment with Insurer - 100.00% 100.00%
- 100.00% 100.00%
Self managed investments 100.00% - =
160.00% - -
Detaits of the investment pattern for the above mentiocned funded obligations is as undes;
Provident Gratuity PRMS
Fund
Funded Funded Funded
Government securities {Central & State} 54.48% 71.39% 80.12%
52.04% 65.58% B0.37%
Investrnent in Equity / Mutuai Funds 18.66% 13.66% 10.65%
15.83% 12.21% 10.87%
Investment in Debentures / Securities 22,15% 13.49% 8.85%
28.27% 20.44% 8.36%
Cther aporoved investments {ingl. Cash) 4.72% 1.46% 0.38%
3.86% 1.77% 0.40%

(ix} The following payments are expected projections to the defined benefit plan in future years:
{¥ in Crore)
Cash Flow Projection from the Gratuity ‘PRMS Ex-Gratia
Fund/Employer Funded Funded Non-Funded
within next 12 Months 19.71 09.8% 0,41
20,65 9.10 0,37
Between 2 10 5 Years 67.38 49.65 1.76
66.74 46.51 1.27
Between 6 to 10 Years 52.64 84.80 2.36
59,76 80,99 1.12




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note ~ 33 : COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A

l.eases

(a) As lessee

(0

{h
m

The Company has entered into various material lsase arrangements (including in substance lease arrangements) such as lands and
buitdings for purpose of its plants, facilities, offices, etc..,

The Employees Township at Cauvery Basin Refinery has been constructed on land area of thirty four acres and forty nine cents of fand
leased from a trust on five-year renawable basis.

Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss Account or Carrying Amount of Another Asset
(¥ in Crore}

Particulars . 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Depreciation recognized 9.60 7.57
Interest on lease liabilities 1.91 1.77
Expenses relating to short-term leases (leases more than 30 days but 1.98 4.03
fess than 12 months)

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 3.08 1.66
Tetal cash outflow for leases 16.18 13.99
Net Additions to ROU during the year ’ 4,22 7.07
Net Carrying Amount of ROU at the end the year 15.27 20.65

The details of ROU Asset other than leasehold land included in PPE {(Note 2} held as lessee by class of underlying asset is presented below

.Current Year: (¥ in Crorel

Items Net Additions*|Depreciation Net Carrying
Added to|to RolU Asset|Recognized value as on
Asset Class RoU  Asset|during the Year During the Year |31.03.2025
as on
01.04.2024
Leasehold Land 13.85 (3.44) 4.16 6.25
Buildings Roads etc. 0.28 (0.28) -l - 0.00
Plant & Eauipment - - - -
Transport Equinpments 6.52 7.84 5.44 9.02
Tota] 20.65 4,22 9.60 15.27
* Additions are net of modifications/cancellations of lease arrangements
Previous Year : ) (¥ in Crore}
Items Net Additions|Depreciation Net Carrying
Added te|to RoU Asset|Recognized value as on
Asset Class RoU Asset|during the Year |During the Year [31.03.2024
as on
: 01.04.2023
Leasehobld Land 18.37 0.27 4.78 13.85
Buildings Roads etc. 0.29 - 0.02 0.28
Plant & Equipmeant - - N .
Transport Equipments 2.49 6.81 2.77 5.52
Total 21.15 7.07 7.57 20.65

As per requirement of the standard, maturity analysis of Lease Liabilities have been shown as part of borrowings under Liquidity Risk of
Note 36: Financial Instruments & Risk Factors.

Details of items of future cash outflows which the Company is exposed as lessee but are not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities are as under; '

Variable Lease Payments

As per general industry practice, the Company incurs various variable lease payments which are based on rate, kms covered etc. and are
recognized in profit or loss and not included in the measutrement of Jease [Eability.

As lessor

Operating Lease ‘

The lease rentals recognized as income in these staterments as per the rentals stated in the respective (¥ in Crore)
agreements:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
A. Lease rentals recoanized durina the period 30.5% 30.12
B. Value of assets gaiven on lease included in tanaible assets .

- Gross Carrvina Amount 8.91 15.08
- Accurulated Depreciation 1.54 3.26
- Depreciation recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.15 0.39

These relate to storage tankage facilities for petroleum products, buildings, plant and equipments given on lease, Asset class wise details
have been presented under Note 2: Property, Plant & Equipments.

Maturity Analvsis of Undiscounted Lease Payments to be received after the reportina date {Z in Crore)
31-Mar-25 31i-Mar-24
Less than one vear 16.74 17.65
Cne to two vears 17.52 15.67
Twe to three vear 18.42 17.52
Three to four years - 16.36 18.42
Four to five years 20.36 19.36
More than five vears 654.08 574,44
Total 746.48 764.07




B Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities amounting to ¥720.28 Crore (2024: ¥630.51 Crore) are as under:
(i) ¥ 589.48 Crore (2024: ¥ 564.67 Crore) being the demands raised by the Central Excise / Customs / Service Tax Authorities including
interest of ¥ 225,89 Crore (2024: ¥ 199.31 Crore).

(i) ¥ 10.27 Crore (2024: ¥ 10.27 Crore) being the demands raised by the VAT/ Sales Tax Authorities and includes no interest (2024: Nil).

(i) T 45.78 Crore (2024: ¥ 54.52 Crore) on account of Projects for which suits have been fited in the Courts or cases are lying with Arbitrator.
This includes interest of ¥ 1.64 Crore (2024: ¥ 8,28 Crore),

(iv) ¥ 74.75 Crore (2024: ¥ 1.05 Crore) in respect of other claims including interest of ¥ 0.25 Crore (2024: ¥ 0,23 Crore}.

(v) The proportionate share of contingent liabilities in respect of Joint Ventures/Associates is ¥ 13.28 Crore. (2024:13.79 Crore).

The Company has not considered those disputed demands / claims as contingent liabilities, for which, the outflow of resources has been
censidered as remote.

C Commitments
(i) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account not provided for ¥ 234,14 Crore (2024: ¥ 98.42 Crore).

{ii) Other Commitments
The Company has an export obligation to the extent of ¥ 219.05 Crore {2024: ¥ 219.05 Crore) on account of concessional rate of
customs duty availed under EPCG license scheme on precurement of capital goods and the same is expected to be fulfilled by way of
exports.
The proportionate share of other commitments in respect of Joint Ventures is Rs. 0.24 Cr (2023: Rs. 0.91 Cr). (Refer Note 31}




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 34 "Related Party Disclosures" in compliance with Ind-AS 24, are given helow:

1.Relationship with Entitles

A. Details of Holding Company
1) Indian Qil Carporation Limited {(I0CL)

The following transactions were carried out with Holding Company in the ordinary course of business:

(¥ in Crore)
Particulars 3i-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
» Sale of Products/ Crude and Services 67303.44 73804.94
» Dividend on Preference Shares 33.25 33.25
* EDP Maintenance 3.99 4,16
« Other Operating Income 31.61 32.67
» Purchase of Raw Material 628.47 -
& Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 206.96 58.59
s Purchase of Stores & Spares 7.23 7.23
+ Canalising commission 8.05 6.75
» Vessel hiring charges 35.23 15.99
s Terminafing and Facilitation Charges 3.13 3.85
* Rental Expenditure 1.50 2.80
+ Subscription Expenses 0.70 .96
« Training Expenses - 0.36
« Purchase of RLNG 2974.91 2536.95
+ Finance Cost - Unwinding of finance cest 0.39 0.39
» Revenue Advances 0.06 0.17
« Qutstanding Receivables 113.90 135.80
s Other Liabilities - Land given on lease 13.09 13.51
* Other Non - current Assets - Land given on lease 82,40 70.48
¢ Cutstanding payables
Trade Payables 2428.58 2866,28
Preference Shares {at face valua) 500.80 500.00
B.Details of Joint Ventures / Associates
i) Indian Additives Limited {¥ In Crore)
Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
* Investment 11.83 11.83
» Sale of Product - 0.0
= Sale of Water 0.05 0.00
+ Rental income - 0.65
« Dividend received 18,28 2.78
« Cutstanding Receivables 0.01 0.26
ii) National Aromatics & Petrochemicals Corp. Limited {¥ In Crore}
Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
» Investrnents in Joint Venture Entities/ Assoclates 0.03 0.03
» Claims recoverable 22,66 22.66
The Investment & claims recoverable has been fully impaired (Note - 4)
1ii} Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (% in Crore)
Particulars { 31-Mar-2025]| 31-Mar-20241
[+ Tnvestments in Joint Venture Entities/ Assoclates { 0.01] 0.01 |
C.Entities Over which KMP has significant influence
i} CPCL Educational Trust {¥ 1t Grore)
Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
« CSR Expenses 8.09 3.03
+ Claims recoverable 0.72 0.72

D. Government related entities where significant transactions are carried out:

Apart from transactions reported above, the company has transactions with other Government related entities,
which includes but net limited to the following:

Name of Government: Government of India {Central and State Government)

Nature of Transactions:

» Sale of Product and Services

« Purchase of Product

» Purchase of Raw Materials

» Handling and Freight Charges, etc.

* Borrowings

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Company’s business on terms comparable to those
with other entities that are not Government-refated
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 35 : FAIR VALUES

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts as per financial statements and fair value of
the Company’s financial instruments, along with the fair value measurement hierarchy:

{Z in Crore)
Carrying vaiue Fair value .
Ao at A As at As at Fair value
Particulars sa s at sa s a measurement

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 pierarchy level

Financial Assets
Amortised Cost:
Loans to employees 166.18 140.01 158.29 125.08 Level 2
Total 166.18 140.01 158.29 125.08

Financial liabilities
A. Borrowings:

Amortised Cost:

Non-Convertible Redeemable 843.09 1650.73 838.68 1625.96 Level 2
Debentures

Lease obligation 16.99 24,15 16.97 24,32 Level 2
Preference Shares 533.25 533.25 545.65 522.80 Level 2
Term Loans frem Qil Industry 24.97 74.70 25.13 75.38 Level 2
Development Board (OIDB}

Term Loan from State Industries 158.12 - 162.66 - Level 2

Promotion Corporation of Tamilnadu
Limited (SIPCOTY

Total 1576.42 2282.83 1589.09 2248.46

Notes:

1. Levels under Fair Value measurement hierarchy are as follows:

{a) Level 1 items fair valuation is based upon market price quotation at each reporting date

{b) Level 2 items fair valuation is based upon Significant observable inputs like PV of future cash flows, MTM
valuation, etc.

{c) Level 3 items fair valuation is based upon Significant unobservable inputs wherein valuation done by
independent valuer,

2. The management assessed that Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances, Deposit for Leave
Encashment Fund, Recoverable from Employee Benefits Trusts, Other Non-derivative Current Financial Assets, Short-
term Borrowings, Trade Payables, Floating Rate Loans and Other Non-derivative Current Financial Liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the shorf-term maturities of these instruments.

3. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale,

Methods and assumptions
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values at the reporting date:

Level 2 Hierarchy:

(i) Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss viz.Foreign exchange forward contracts:
Replacement cost quoted by institutions for similar instruments by employing use of market observable inputs are
considered.

(ii) Loans to employees, Loan to related parties, Security deposits paid and Security deposits received,Lease
obligations: Discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for items on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities

(iiiy Non Convertible Redeemable Preference shares : The fair value of Preference shares is estimated by
discounting future cash flows.

{iv)Term Loans from Oil Industry Development Board (OIDB): Discounting future cash flows using rates currently
available for similar type of borrowings (OIDB Borrowing rate) using exit model as per Ind AS 113.

{(v)Term Loans from State Industries Promotion Corporation of Tamil Nadu {SIPCOT):Discounting future cash
flows using rates currently available for items on similar terms and remaining maturities.
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note ~ 37 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capital managemeant
is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors capital using debt equity ratio, which Is beorrowings divided by Equity. The
Company's strategy is to keep the debt equity ratio in the range of 2:1 and 1:1 under normal
circumstances. The Company also includes accrued interest in the borrowings for the purpose of
capital management.

{¥ in Crore)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Borrowings 3i00.44 276175
Total Borrowings 3100.44 2761.75
Eguity Share Capital 148.91 148.91
Reserves and Surplus 8057.74 8672.01
Equity 8206.65 8820.92
Debt Equity Ratio 038:1 0.31:1

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024
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CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note - 40 : DISCLOSURE ON GOVERNMENT GRANTS

A Revenue Grants

1 Stipend to apprentices under National Apprenticeship Training Scheme (NATS} scheme

Currently, the scheme is operated under the Direct Benefit Transfer {DBT) mode by the Government of India, resulting in no
grant being received during the year; in the previous year, ¥0.51 crore was received and the related expenditure was
presented on a net basis against training expenses.

2 EPCG Grant

Grant recognised in respect of duty waiver on procurement of capital goods under EPCG scheme of Central Government
which allows procurement of capital goods including spares for pre production and post production at zero duty subject to an
export obligations of & times of the duty saved on capital goods procured.The unamortized capital grant amount as on March
31, 2025 is ¥ 12.54 Crore {2024: ¥ 12.54 Crore). The company recognised Nil Crore (2024: ¥ Nil Crore) in the statement of
profit & loss account as amortisation of revenue grant. The company expects to meet the export obligations in line with the
scheme.

3 Structured package incentive from State Industries Promction Corporation of Tamil Nadu (SIPCOT)

The Company signed an Mol in 2015 with the Government of Tamil Nadu in respect of RESID Upgradation Project under the
TamilNadu Industrial Policy,2014 and the obligations w.r.t capital investment as stipulated therein have been fulfilled.

CPCL is eligible to avail the structured Package of assistance in the form of a soft loan of upto Rs. 2407.82 crore (i.e 80% of
the eligible fixed assets of RESID projects) over a period of 12 years from the commisisoning of the RESID project, subject
to achievement of incremental production / sales. The loan carries an interest rate of 0.1% per annum, repayable after a
period of 12 years from the date of disbursement.During the Current year, Loan amounts of ¥173.42 crore (10th May 2024)
and ¥196.98 crore (31st March 2025) have been received under the scheme.

The unamortized grant amount as on March 31, 2025 is ¥ 209.39 crore (2024:Nil). During the year, the company has
recognised ¥ 7.77 crore {2024:Nil) in the statement of profit and loss as amortisation of grants.

B Capital Grants
i) Oil Industry Development Board (CIDB)
The Company has received capital grant in the form of interest subsidy on loans taken from OIDB. The unamortized capital

grant amount as on March 31, 2025 is ¥ 0.07 crore (2024:% 0.69 crore) . During the year, the company has recognised ¥
0.62 crore (2024: ¥ 0.62 crore) in the statement of profit and loss as amortisation of capital grants.




CHENNATI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note ~ 41 : EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Financial and Derivative Instruments:

1 All derivative contracts entered into by the Company are for hedging its foreign currency relating to
underlying transactions and firm commitments and not for any speculative or trading purposes.

2 The company has no outstanding forward contract as at 31st March 2025(2024 : NIL}

3 Foreigh currency exposure that are not hedged by a derivative instrument as on 31st March 2025 is given

below:
¥in Crore
S. No Particulars As on As on
31-Mar-2025 | 31-Mar-2024
Aggregate Aggregate
amount amount
1 Unhedged- Payables 6517.75 6175.98
2 Unhedged- Receivables 722.26 844.73

Refer Note - 10B - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note — 42 : REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The. Company is in the business of refining crude oil and it earns revenue primarily from sale of
petroleumn products and others. Revenue is recognized when control of the goods and services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. Revenue is measured based on the
consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. In determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the company considers
the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, nen-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Generally, Company enters inte contract with customers for sale on EX-MI basis. Majority of
Company’s sales are to Qil Marketing Companies and Downstream industries for which credit period
is less than 1 year, Direct sales to other customers are generally on cash and carry basis. Revenue
is recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer by adjusting the amounts deposited by
customers, if any.

Bifurcation of Total Revenue into Revenue from contract with customers and other sources of
revenue as per requirement of Ind AS 115 is given below;

F in Crore

2024-25 2023-24
Total Revenue 71036.42 79267.47
Revenue from contract with customers 70962.94 79206.94
Revenue from other contracts / from others 73.48 60.53

No impairment of losses on receivables has been recognised during the current and previous year.
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CHENNAX PEFROLEUM CCRPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Hote — 44 : OTHER DISCLOSURES

1 Chennzi Petrgleum Corporation Uimited (CPCL} had Cauvery Basin Refinery {CBR) in Nagapattinam with 1 MMTPA capacity which was not in operation since
91.04.2019 due to implementation of 85- IV specifications and In the absence of secondary treatment facilities at CBR.

Further to the investment and in-principle approval by the Board of Directors of CPCL and I0CL, approval for implementation of the & MMTPA Cauvery Basin Refinery
cum Petrochemical complex at the CBR location in Nagapattinam through formation of Jv Company amengst 10CL, CPCL and with seed investors with initial seed
share capital invested by Financial Institutions pending finalization of financiai/strategic /Public Investors was accorded by [OCL Board on 29.09.2022. The existing
CPCL land on 618 acres {carrying value Rs 10.67 Cr) at CBR is proposed ta be jeased to CERPL after obtakning necessary statutary approvals.

The Joint Venture Company, Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemlcals Ltd (CBRPL) was incorporated en 06th Jan 2023 with Chennai Petraleum Corporation Limited
{CPCL) and its parent company viz. Indian Gil Corporation 1imited {I0CL) each holding 25% equity shares, and balance 50% by other seaed investors.,

The capital structure and project cost of the SMMTPA Refinery project were revised and approved by the Board of CPCL and IOCL in thelr meeting held on 20th Feb,
2024 and 28th Mar, 2024 respectively. In the same meetings , approval was accorded to retain the existing capital structure of CBRPL with CPCL helding 25%, IOCL
helding 25%, and other seed equity Investors helding 50% shall continue tlll approval I$ obtained from CCEA, to enstre the continuation of Pre-Project activitles, ke
Site epabling activities etc,. Subsequently, On 25th Sept 2024, DIPAM approved the revised capital structure of IV formation (CPCL25% and [CCL75%) based on
which fresh PIB/CCEA application was submitted by IOCL cn 26th Sept 2624 to MoPNG.

As per CPCL. & IOCE Board of Directors approval and Jeint Venture agreement entered between CPCL, IOCL and other seed investors on 22nd Nov 2022, the
expenditure incurred by CPCL on behalf of the Joint Venture shall be considered as CPCL’s cantribution towards share capltal or Quasi-Equity Instruments or as may
be decided later as permissible by Applicable faw. Till the recefpt of CCEA appraval far investment, the actual expenditure and the assoclated kabilities incurred on the
project as at the year end, an amount of Rs 1320.10 Cr, Rs 14.98 Cr {(2024: Rs 1102.76 Cr and Rs 18.77 Cr) respectively, has been considered as Asset/ Liability
Included in disposal group held for Transfer. This group consists of Land ameunting Rs 205,66 Cr (662,85 acres of freehold fang), Licensor / EPCM fees, construction
pericd éxpenses, etc., and liability for capltal expenditure, Finance cost allocatien for the year towards the project Rs 60.49 Cr is included under “Assets included in
dispasal group held for transfer” (2024: Rs 47,78 {r as part of 5LNo,3 of Note -8 shown as claim recoverable is reclassified as part of allocated cost and regrouped
under “Assets included in disposal group held for transfer” ).

The capital commitment as at 31st March 2025 in respect of CBRPL is Rs. 2270.94 Cr (2024: Rs.2350.34 Cr) not ferming part of Capltal Commitment disclosure in
Note 32.

The Beard of CBRPL in the meeting held on 23.04.2025 has approved infusicn of funds through share warrants by shareholders and the same is in process,

2 The Company has refineries at two locations viz., Manali and Nagapattinam (Cauvery Basin Refinery - CBR). The operations of the CBR unit have been stopped from
01.04.2019. Accordingly, the value in use of the CBR unit was negative and the reccoverable value of the assets was reviewed and it was estimated that there would
not be any recoverable value for the same and impalrment loss was recognised.Majority of the Assets have been dismantied and scrapped. Impairment provision Rs.
92.47 crore is continued in respect of the balance Assets which have not been dismantled. Some of the facilities continue to be useg for storage of crude and
transportation to Manali refinery till previcus year.

During the year, the crude inventory stored in CBR has been complately evacuated and processed in Manali refinery.

3 Censequant to the Michaung cydone In December 2023
(I) Puring the year, company has received an Insurance claim of R$ 4.4% crore under Public fiability Act policy towards contribution made to Taiwiinadu State Disaster
Management Authority for Imimediate relief of local community.
(ii) Further, the company has also lodged a claim of Rs 19.73 crore under Comgprehensive General Liability insurance towards varicus rehabilitation activities, which
would be reckoned based con settlement of claim.
(iit) The Company is in the process of assessing and ladging insurance claims in respect of restoration costs of the Company’s Property, Plant & Equipments and stores
& spares

4 (i) The Tamilnadu Pollution Control Board {TNPCB) has passed an order in February 2025 levying environmentai compensation of Rs 73.68 crore for the
envirenmental and socio-economic damages afleged to be caused due to the ot spill occurred during Michaung cyclone In December 2023,
CPCL has contested the levy by TNPCB and interim stay has been granted by The National Green Tribunal {NGT) in March 2025 with condition to deposit/ Furnish
Bank Guarantee in respect of 50 % of the portion of demand spacified as envirenmental damage in the aforesaid order amounting to Rs.19.12 crore till further
proceadings.Subsequently , the company has complied with the same by submitting @ Bank guarantee of Rs 19,12 Crore on 15.04,2025,
(1i) Based on the orders passed by the National Green Tribunal (NGT) pursuant to suo motu preceedings
(a) An amount of ¥5 crore has been levied as “no-fault liability”, and the same has been paid and duly accounted under head Note 27.1 -SLNo 19 - Pollution control
expenses, pertaining to Nagapattinam lecation,.
(b) TNPCB had raised demand amounting to 6.24 crore tewards environmental compensation , which was accounted in the previcus year under head Note 27.3
=S4LNo 19 - Pollution controf expense. The same is belng contested befere the Naticnal Green Tribunal and NGT has granted an interim stay on the condition that
CPCL shall deposit 50% of the envircnmental compensation representing Rs 3.12 Crore .The company has continued with the liabillty of Rs £.24 Cr in the books of
aceounts.

5 CPCL sponsors polytechnic college, for which twenty acres of land of the company has been leased to the CPCL Educational Trust for 2 period of 50 years,
& The company operates only in a single segment viz. downstream petroleurn sector, As such reporting is done on a single segment basis.

Segment Reporting

The Company hias "Petroleum Products” as single reportable segment

Information about major customers

Company's significant revenues are derived from sales ta off marketing companies which Is 96.47% and 96.78% of the Company's sales related to petroleum
products for the year ending March 31, 2025 & March 31, 2024 respectively,

No customer {excluding oil marketing companies mentioned above) for the vears ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 contributed 1G% or more to the
Company’s revenue

Infermation about geagraphical areas:

The company cperates solely within India, with all operations and sales confined to the domestic market and we donot own any assets other than in india . Howaver,
CPCL engages i exporting specific petroleum products such as HSD, Naphtha, and LOBS when local demand is exceeded by supply, These exports are facilitated
through Indian Ol Corporation, with IOCL acting as the exporter and CPCL playing a supporting role as a manufacturer. CPCL’s contribution te exports as a supporting
manufacturer stands at 11,68%. for F.Y 2024-25 and 12% for F.Y 2023-24 of Revenue from customers

Revenue from major products

The foliowing is an analysis of the Company's revenue from continuing operations from its major products:

Threshold Limit of 1% of total turnover of each product is considered for reporting revenue from major products
Particulars F.¥ 2024-25 iF.Y 2023-24

High speed Diesel {HSD) 37685.45 43407.27

Moter Spirit [MS) 10046.05 11413.,55

Aviation Turbine Fyel {ATF) 6482.84 7829.25

7 Thare are no other significant subsequent events that require adjustrnents or disclosures in the financial statements as at balance shest date, other than those
disclosed above,




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nota « 44 : OTHER DISCLOSURES

8 A Memorandum of Understanding (Mol) entered between the Parent Campany and its halding company, setting various performance parameters for the Parent
Company including capital expenditure (Capex) by the group. In this regard, the amount of Capex on major capital projects incurred by the Parent Campany and its
proportionate share of similar Capex by its Joint Ventures and Associates during the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

Rs.InCr
Narme of the company/ Jolnt venture Tatal Capex CPCL Share CPCL Share
o
Chennai.Petroleurn Corpyration Limited 673 673,49
(H 14 0. 2.33
Total Capex by CPCL and proportionate share of Jolnt 688.15 6380.82]
venture

9 Other disclosures as required under Schedule 111 to the Companles Act, 2013 are furnished to the extent applicable:
(i) Title deeds of Immovable properties net held in the name of company
Gross carrying vaiue (Rs, In Crores} Whether title
deed holder is
a promoter,
diractor or
Title deeds Property
Relevant item in relative of Under Bispute | Reason for not being held In
Balance sheet 31st Mar #st Mar Acras held in the promoter/ held since {Yes/ No) the name of the company
2025 2024 name of # which date
directer or
employee of
promoter/
director
The Tamilnadu Government has
alletted  the Jand for which
PPE - Frechold Land it Al 40.69 acres chel sot applicable | 26.04.1990 Ho permission Lo enter upon the

land  dated 26.04.1990 s
available. However assignment:
deed is not yet executed.

GO No., 605 dr 31,05,1984,
directs Lo handover  the
PPE - Freshold Land 0,18 0,18 50,93 acres CPCL Not appliceble | 31.05,1984 No possession of property to.
Company. However, assignment
deed is not yet executed.

The Tamilnadu Government has
afjotted the land for which

03.12.2001 perrission 16 enter upan the
PPE - Freehaold Land Nil= il 95,31 acres CPCL Not applicable & No land  dated 03.12.2001 &
20.02.2009 20.02.2009 In respect of 94,39

acres.  However,  assignment|
deed Is not yet executed,

* Value is yet to be determined by Government of Tamilnadu,
# Sublect to reasons menticned,

{ii) The company has faollowing transactions/Dalances with companies, struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 /Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

Balance outstanding as ot currentiRelationship with Balance outstanding as at

Nature of transactions Relatlonship with the struck off

Name of the struck off company period the struck off pravious period
with struck off company Re In Crore company Rs In Crore company
Citi Camputer Lhntk (P} Ltd Trade payables 0,01 0
Skpel Engineering Works private
.l_irr?Ited 9 9 B Trade payatles 0.02 0,02
SHA Hydraullcs Private Limited Trade payables 0,003 0
Net a related
party Not a related party
Aspen Technalogy inc Trade payables 0.14 0.033
Argus media Trade payables - -
RBC BEARINGS PVT, LTD. Trade payables - -
Alliance aviation private limited Trade payables - -
The ratienal sugar mills jtd Customer Advances 0.004 0.004
Total 0.18 0.11
Details of Struck-off investors.holding equity. shares in the company
31.02,2025 31.03.2024
No of Shares held Pald up share capital (in €} |No of Shares| Paid up share capital (in 2)
Name of the struck off company held
Esthetic Rinvest Private Umited 2,700 27,000
Ingram Investments Put, Lid, 2,000 20,000 2,000 20,000
Salzsar Securities Pvt Ltd 200 2,000
Unickon Fincap Private Limited 1,278 12,780 1,278 12,780
¢ Solutk Pvt. Ltd.
Systems Solutions 100 1,000 100 1,000

Hote: The comapany does not have any relationship with the above mentionad struck-off companles

10 Previous year's comparative figures have been regrouped, rac & and racast necessary and the related disclosures are included in the respactiva notes,




CHENNAI PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note — 45 : STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES (FORM AOC-I)

Part A : Subsidiaries
Not applicable as there are no subsidiaries

Part "B" : Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint

Tin Crore

51 No Name of the Associates / Joint Ventures

Indian Additives Limited

National Aromatics and
Petrochemical Corporation

Cauvery Basin Refinery and
Petrochemicals Limited

Limited
1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2025
2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture
was associated or acquired 12-Jul-89 10-May-89 06-Jan-23
3 Shares of Associate / Joint Ventures
held bv the companv on the vear end
i) No. 1183401 25000 12500
i) Amount of Investment in Associates / Joint 11.83 0.03 0.01
Ventures ’ ) )
iii) Extent of Holdina 50.00% 50.00% 25%
4 Pescrlption of how there.|s slgnificant Joint venture Joint venture Associate
influence
5 Reason why the associate / Joint ventures is

not consolidated

L=l

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited balance sheet

~

Profit / (Loss) for the vear
I) Considered in Consolidation
II) Not Considered in consolidation

Consolidated

279.98

117.66
58.83
58.83

Consolidated

(0.00)
0.00
(0.00)

Name of the associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations:

(i) Cauvery Basin Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited

Consolidated

0.01

(0,01)
(0.00)
(0.01)

(i} National Aromatics and Petrochemical Corporation Limited is not operational and the companv has decided to exit from the JV.

As per our Report of even date

For R.G.N. Price & Co
Chartered Accountants

Place : Chennai
Date : 25-Apr-2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

=

“J(H. Shankar)

Managing Director

DIN - 08845247

N - 1004896

ot

(P.Shankar)
Company Secretary
ACS -7624



